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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plcis to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

introduction

TR Property Investmert Trust ple (the ‘Compary’) was
formed in1 1905 and has been z dedicated property
vestor since 1682 The Comrpany 1s an Investment
Tiust and its snares are premium listed on the London
Stock Exchange

Benchmark

The bercrmark i the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterfrg

Investment policy

e Company seeks to acieve its objective by
mvesting .n shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses on an
mternational basis although, with a pan-European
bencnmark. the majority of the mvestments will be
located i that geograpnical area. The Company also
invests ininvestment property located in the UK oniy.

Farther details of the investment Policies, the Asset
Allocation Guidelires and poiicies regarding the use of
gearirg are set out in the Strategic Keport on page 34
ard the entire portfoiic 1s shown or. page 27

Investment manager

Columbia Threadneed'e Investmenrt Business Limited
acts as the Company's alternative investment

fund rmanager {AIFM’) with portfolio management
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (the 'Portfol-o
Marager or the ‘Manager’} Marcus Phayre Mudge
tas managed the portfolio sirce 1 April 2011 and been
partof tre Fund Maragerment team since 1997,

Anrual Report & Accounts 2023

independent board

Tne Directors are ah independent of the Manager

and meet regularly to consider mvestment strategy,

to Tonitor adherence 1o the stated objective and
nyvestment poicies and to review investment
performance Detai s of Fow the Board operates and
fulfils its responsibilities are set out -1 the Report of the
Directors on page 47,

Performance

The Financial Highights fortne current year are set out
on page 2 and Historica, Perfermance can be fourd on
page 3. Key Performance Ind.cators are set out in the
Strateg ¢ Report o pages 35 and 36

Retail investors advised by iFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that

its shares can be recommended by indeperdent
Financial Advisers ('IFAS) inthe UK to retai: investors
in accordance with the Finarcial Conduct Authorty
(FCA) rules inreation to non-mainstream investiment
products and intends to continue to do so. The shares
are excluded from the FCAsrestrctions, wh ch apply
to non-mainstream investment products, because they
are snares In ar adthonsed nvestment trust company

Further information

General shareholder information and detai's of how
to invest inthe Company, includirg investment
through an iSA or savings scneme, can be found on
pages 118 onwards This information can also be
found on the Company's website www trproperty.com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 305.13p 492 43p -38.0%
Sharehoiders’ funds (£'000) 968,346 1,662,735 -38.0%
Shares In issue at the end of the year (m) 317.4 317.4 +0.0%
Net debt’ 12.3% 102%

Share Price
Share price 279.00p 456.50p -38 9%
Market capitalisation £885m £1,448m -38.9%

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 Change
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 17.22p 13.69p +25.8%
Dividends?
Interim dividend per share 5.65p 5.30p +6 6%
Final dividend per share 9.85p g 20p +7.1%
Total dividend per share 15.50p 14.50p +6.9%

Performance: Aésets and Bencﬂﬁmark

Net Asset Value total return -35.5% +27.4%
Benchmark total return -34.0% +12.2%
Share price total return®™ -36.2% +16.9%

0ngoinE;_'Ci'larges‘*f6

Including performance fee 0.73% 2.19%
Excluding perfoermance fee 0.73% 0.60%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.67% 0.58%

1 Netdebl stmetota valueof loan notes, oans (inciuding noticna exposure o CFDs and Tota Return Swap) less cas as @ proport:on o net esset va'ue

7 Dividends persiare ae (e dwdends n-espect of the financ alyes ended 31 a2 2023 Ac nter~— divdend of 5 55 was pa d on 12 Januaty 2023 Afinal
diwv.dend of 9 850 (2077 9 20p1 willbe pa d on 1 August 202310 snarenciders on the reg ster on 30 Jure 2023 “neshares w i be quoted ex-dv dend on

26 June 2023

The NAav Tota' Return for the vear 's caloulated by cemvesting tie dradends ntne assets of the Corrpany o tngre evant ex-d v'dend date Drvidends are deemed
ta be remvested on the ex-d wdend date 35 tvs 5 the protoco used by the Caormpany's benchmatk and other ndices.

[4%]

4 TngSnare Price Total Retunis ca cuizted by reinvest ng the div dends ntne shares of the Company fra Lthe relevant ex-chv.dend date

.

Ongoing Charges ase calcu ated naccordance winthe AIC methodo ogy ~ne Ongong Cnarges retics provded intne Company s key nformaticn Docyent are
caloulated nome w ththe PRIPS regulation wi'cnos d “ferent to the 412 ~eatnodology

6 Considered to be an Aternztve Performrance Measure as def ned on page 196
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Historical performance

fortre vear ended 31 March 2023

Performance for the year:

Total Return {%)
NAY
Benchmark*

Share Price”

Shareholders’ funds (£'m}
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends -

NAV per share (pence)

Share price {pence}

Indices of growth

(LS ERENERC R EE I |

Share price

Net Asset Value-
Dividend Net
RPI

Benchmark -

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.
Tne NAY Total Return for each vear s calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the reievent ex-dividend date Drividends

(A

2013

21.5
17.8
258

684

6.74
7.00

21525
186.30

100
100
100
100
100

2014

224

149

377

809

8.09
7.45

25494
24750

133
118
106
102
107

2015

283
233
285

1,010

889
7.70

318.12
310.50

167
148
110
103
128

2016

8.2
5.4
-1.6

1,065

836
8.35

33506
297.50

160
156
19
105
131

2017

8.0
65
9.1

1118

11.38
10.50

35242
314.50

169
164
150
108
136

2018

155
10.2
255

1256

1322
12.20

39564
382 50

205
184
174
112

146

2019

9.1
5.6
62

1,328

14.58
13.5C

418.54
394.00

211
194
193
115
149

2020

-11.5

140

-16.8

1136

14.62
14.00

358.11
317.50

170
166
200
M8
124

2021

207
15.9
283

1326

12.25
14.20

417.97
39250

217
194
203
119
147

214
12.2
19.9

1,563

1369
1450

4G2 43
456,50

245
229
207
130
155

17.22
15.50

30513
279.00

133
142
22
148

99

are deermed 1o be remvested st the ex-dvidend date as ts 1s tne protocol used by the Company's benchrmatk and othes indices This sconsidered tobe an
Allernative Performance Measure as defined on page 106
B Bencamark index corposite ndex compnising the FTSE EPRANAREIT Teveloped Europe "R ndex up to March 2012, and theeafter the | TSE EPRANARE 7
Developed Europe Capped Index Source Thames River Sapital

@

(D Dwvidends per snare in the year 1o which their declarat on relates and not the yvear 1ney were paid

(EY Snareprioesonly These donotrefect divdends paid

.

151 Price ony value of the md ces set outin (Bl above
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i Ceptaloniy values. Tnese donot ef ect dividends paid

} TaeShare Price Tota Return s calgulated by reinvesting the drvidends ntne shazes of t1e Cormpany from the relevant ex-dradend date
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Chairman’s statement

gg Markets have had to

absorb huge increases

in the cost of capital and

real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of cur markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

This has been a very difficult year for the property
market, for property shares and for the Company Net
asset value total return was -35 5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34.0%. The share price total return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAV and the
share price widened slightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whole Although the change in the second
half was modest {(first half NAV total return of -33.6%
March to September 2022) we have experienced some
very dramatic price action in the imtervening six months.

Macra-economic forces continued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone's
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
conseguences of their actions as market participanis.
Volatility remained elevated. Whilst our total retumn
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK) by
pohitical events in November, did resume in earnest in
January. This three month rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset class. The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks in the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse. This raised knee-jerk concerns of bank contagicn
which here feels sensaticnalist given the enhanced fevels
of regulatory oversight and controls on European banks
post the global financial crisis.

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection. It1s fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad Forced sellers were interested in volume not price.
Small caps, as usual, struggled in these conditions. This
macro-driven environment is hopefully, finally, abating as
investors appear increasingly interested in differentiating
between individual companies’ prospects following the
significant correction,

Qur investment universe has now seen a number of
companies who have suspended or reduced dividends.
These were, in the main, the likely suspects and it would
be a surprise to us If many others now emerge given the
economic cycle Cne of the core attractions of real estate
investing Is the potential of indexed income and this 1s
showing through and remains our focus.

TR Property Investmert irust
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Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13 69p per
share to 17.22p This is an all-time high. Aithough
cormpany earnings did in general recover 1o pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments. More detail of this is set out in the
Manager's repart.

The Board 1s pleased to announce a final dividend

of @ 85p taking the fuli year dividend to 15.50p,
representing a €.9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for income but has alsc been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings

[

Foliowing a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Boerd expect to report a reduction in net incorne for
the year to 2023/24. This is not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced dividend cuts or
suspensions. All companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
been immediate, while for others it will be somewhat
delayed as they continue to benefit fram historic
fixed rates. However, on the income side of the
equation, index-iinked rents will henefit. Companies
need to balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
balance sheets. The medium to longer-term outlook
for interest rates is difficult to predict so it could be

a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlock

f T e e e L
w i . Lou

Gearing at 12.3% is an atmost identical figure tc that
at the ha!f year. Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshots in time; the level of gearing has varied in
respense to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred.

Sterling weakened over the year by just over 4%. This
marginally enhanced our income account as non-
sterling dividends were worth more in sterling terms.

As our balance sheet 1s denominated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The balance sheet exposure
remains materially in tine with the benchmark as we
hedge exposure to match the benchmark

O S L N S VRIS

The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7.3% t0 -8.6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between ¢lose to-1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close to the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatility, no share buy-backs or issues were made
during the year.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

W Benchmark Total Return @ TR Property Share Price Total Return
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Chairman’s statement
continued

| reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity. In January this year we
were delighted to announce the appointment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspective on a
wide range of issues.

We also announced my intention 1o step down from
the Board with effect frorm the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
succeed Kate as Senior Independent Director.

I

ESG reports within annual accounts are becoming
longer and contain more and more detall. This

is wholly appropnate for an operating company

and we welcome the additicnal disclosure. Asan
investment trust company and primarily an investor
in companies, we have to think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Cur ESG approach covers three areas. Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
control of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the iInvestment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by our Manager. Although our
Manager cannot have any direct controlf over ESG
policies in undertying investee companies, it can, and
does, use its influence carefully inrough corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest, Thirdly, cur Manager does have
control over our direct property portfclio and here we
continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmental care in all that we do.

Our Responsibie Investrnent Report on pages 16 1o
25 sets out our approach in each of these areas with
some case study examples. This is of course an area
cf active evolution

CIT RE
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Macro considerations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments. However, this 15 an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Gur central
assumption is that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks'
targets. Listed property companies are genersgily more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of cur companies are
trading at large discounts 1o asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previous cycles, If the
sector 1s undervalued then private capital will be quick

to step in. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company’s 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price. More recently in early May,
Civitas, the sccial housing Yandlord announced a cash bid
from an Asian conglomerate at a similar premium. These
businesses are chalk and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remind us that, for many, real estate is seenas a
crucial part of the investment jigsaw particularly in these
inflationary times.

David Watson

TR Property investment Trust



Manager'’s report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those
sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

IR

The Company's net asset value (NAV") total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35.5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (in
GBP), fell -34.0%. These figures are clearly disappointing
but not materially different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33.6% in the first six
months of the financial year. Equally important t¢ note

IS that these figures are snapshaots in very volatile times.
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the seceond
half of the financial year (i.e. October to January) saw our
universe rally +14.5% only to then give up ali of those gains
In the subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
to the year which was marginaglly worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that shareholders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of travel was obvious and more
protective action should have been taken. It always looks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolic into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents hut then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first quarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you couid still have made
money over a four-week period (in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022 Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal (+9.5%) as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the reguired deflaticnary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% hetween mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the ‘higher for
longer mantra. This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% rally in pan-European property
stocks between mid-October and the end of January
The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year

MIIAIBAD
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Manager's report
continued

Benchmark Performance

W FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Total Return Net GBP {Daily)

5%

%
5%
-10%
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-20%
-25%
-30%
-35%
-40%
-45%

Mar-22 sun-22

Aug-22

Apr-22 May 27 Jul-22

For a 'value' sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out — by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directional shifts are almost unparalleled What

is happening? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour. Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 years' experience recently wrote to clients 'l can't recall
a period of time when capitai values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier demand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust’ | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, yields are rising but so are
rents, this 1s atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022, |
placed too much emphasis on this quality of eamings (and
indeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
market paid tirtle heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
rising yields/capitalisation rates on asset values

The speed at which central banks responded, as
inflation gathered pace tcok many participants by
surprise. The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particular
cohorts of companies. Those companies which had
successfully utilised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (re)financing was
effectively shut. German residentiat businesses,
particularly the larger cnes, Vonovia, LEG and the
rmore diversified Aroundtown (part cwner of Grand
City Properties), are ail seeing their cost of debtrise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing. The other heavily impacted group were
thase with higher loan te value compounded by high
leveis of floating rate debt. The impact on earnings

for this group has been dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fall into this category. Both these

B

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov 22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar 22

cohorts share a couple of similar outcomes; firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
two groups have experienced the greatest volatility within
our universe. To illustrate the point, Swedish property
companies collectively fell 40.5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that period there were three sharp
bear market rallies of +17% (May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-Cctober to the end of January)
These groups were highly susceptibie to changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and marginon
new (or refinanced) debt instruments.

Previously, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentals of German residential, The vast supply/
demand imbalance and the persistent widening of the
gap between regulated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating is that
our largest relative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Ceutschland, which has no refinancing reguirements
untit 2026 ard is a market minnow {(portfolio value less
than €750m) where all sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousing

Collectively the market capitalisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57%. Meanwhile, the
underlying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top line earnings have grown with vacancy levels
stable and the ‘mietspegiel’ (the rent table) continuing to
increase rents, albeit at a sub-inflationary rate. The asset
class offers consistently low vacancy, steady rental growth
and the opportunity to move to market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occuplers. As a result,
yields steadily tightened as the cost of finance fell. By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low nisk prafile of the income. At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has avery dramatic éffect on valuation

TR Property investmert Trust



Much the same effect was felt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industrial/logistics. This sector
had enjoyed & surge in investor demand as strong rental
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led to a quick reversal in yields. However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
streng rental growth will persist in industrial/logistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the sector mast under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from home (‘WFH") regime are still being
worked through by tenants and landlords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conciusions
are hard t¢ pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the half year we
have seen more data to support our current thesis,
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses — physical interaction 1s a vital part
of business fife However, the amount of space required
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
quality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentials The
result is a historically wide market bifurcation between
best in class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest. Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposureis to
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European office exposure (see top
12 hoidings) in therr Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their cuter ring assets saw negative
reversion. Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenan, with central Milan
recording solid demand and rental growth. Central
tondon office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3.7%) and the City (11 9%}

1$ almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Docklands is even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in their space requirements (including HSBC,
Citi and JFMcrgan) or whaolesale relocation (e.g. Clifford
Chance). In the case of the latter, the firm is alsc cutting
its space requirements by 40%. One should be careful
not to read single statistic dcross to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Annual Report & Accourts 2023

Wharf for several years. Thisincreasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattan is
a reflection of both WFH but also the lack of headcount
growth. This is a particular problem in London where
post Brexit, giobal financial services businesses continue
to increase their footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London

This bifurcation of 'best and the rest’ can be clearly
seen in recent vaiuation in the specialist London office
landlords. Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings' EPC (energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels {A&B) saw value declines of 2 5% whilst
C&D rated were -4.2%. Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (>£1,500 per
ft) saw capital drift of -3.5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least («£1,000 per ft) saw value falls of -11.8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the best in class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due to its scarcity. The buik
of ali office markets are made up of much more average
product and take up levels in the pest pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West (the core) saw
available supply fall year on year (-19%) whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the inner Rim {+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best guality in the best
locations. MSCI/iPD’s office sector capital decline in
H2 2022 was -15 7%, underperforming retail which fell
14.5%. Central London inttial yield has moved 80bps
from 4 8% (December 2021} 10 5 6% (January 2023).
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted to mark-to-market
rather than the Continental approach which 1s more
‘'mark-to-model’. The latter approach resulis in a
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are woefully historic when
markets are correcting fast. As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental European
valuations in HZ 2022 would be misleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

Rela

It feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retalling, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as weil as the increasing demand for
ertertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff’. The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK. Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shopping malls, it is alsc crucial
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Manager’s report
continued

1o highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
largely, performed very differently over the last few years.

The worst performing group remains the larger malls
which are, quite simply, too big with an excess cf floor
space, often a shuttered department store {or two) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverabie element
{due to voids) None of this 1s new infarmation | hear you
say. Agreed. However, the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (and lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

10 be repurposed for other uses. Malls must hecome
community hubs with a range of (lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care etc.
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own. The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the outstanding lcans on the asset. The price equated
10 a vield of over 9% on a rent rolt which has diopped
materially over the last decade. We are confident that

at the right rents (and yields) those centres which can
reinvert themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns

The strongest sub-sector remains retait warehousing
and outlet malls For different reasons both offer retailers
sales channels which complement online in the case

of the former, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks. Free home delivery will
become unsustanable from both a profit and an ESG
perspective. Click and collect and free returns 1o store
will drive demand for these super convenient locations
The Company s 8 large holder of Ediston Property which
has anncunced a strategic review given the subscale
size of the business. We are hopeful that this will provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector.
Outlets help retailers offlcad lines withcout damaging

full price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have a non-
controlling stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
rermain confident about their prospects.

The combining of retail, leisure and food continues,
particutarly in tourist destinations. BNP have highlighted
the pick-up in post Covid footfall in the most uprmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barcelona), Via del Corso (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall Increasing on
average by 1/3 and, in some cases, more than 65% (Paris
and Munich)

Retail investrment has been resilient, particularly in
Continental Europe where investors see affordable rents
and higher yields than other sectors. Whilst investment
levels are unsurprisingly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year to £40.1bn {(+2 6%}

ic

according to BNP. In the UK, retail warehousing continued to
dominate volumes (+60%) over 2021 and 2022, This figure
was lower across Europe and highlights the continued lack
of large shopping centre transactions in the UK.

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when compared to a quarterly average of 12 0m sqgftin
2022 and 13.8m sq ft in 2021 but still ahead of the quarterly
average of 8 3m sq ft in the pre-Covid decade Vacancy
remans at 3% and rents continue to rise. Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
prime distribution units between June 2022 and March
2023 Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
market fundamentals are deemed less relevant. Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
caprtalisaticn rate 200bps below the rnisk-free rate. However,
that pricing adjustment has largely been completed in our
view We are beginning 1o see siability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sg metres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the S-year gverage in virtually all markets. Higher
construction and finance costs led to reduced speculative
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbalance in so many markets. Cver €50bn was invested in
2022, again below the record of 2021 but welt ahead of the
S-year average. Yield expansion {c 100bps) was much less
than in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capital back into the sector.

We have long been cheerleaders for multe-let industnials
{MLI), generaily terraces of smaller units, management
ntensive, hut often located in dense urban locations
Very little new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-storey} uses bheing

far more valuable. Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable, The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing ‘'gentrification’ from being the domain

of light industrial ‘metal bashers' to a much broader i
swathe of uses, many born out of intérnet connectivity
and the ability 1o access customers directly. Our largest
exposure was through Industrials REIT, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year end (3 April)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price. The private
equity behemoth already has substantial exposure to
this sub-sector but it is a timety reminder that if quality
assets are left undervalued then prvate capital will
acguire them Qur other MLI exposure s through Sirius
(65% Germany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Picton and London Metric {(which acquired Mucklow in
2021 where we owned 5%}. The healthy supply-demand
imbalance makes it a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
exposure to
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The shortage of private sector rental accommaodation
remains acute, yet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amongst the poorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying income streams and cccupancy
levels. However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rise.

At the asset level, rental growth has remained well below
current inflation rates given the backward-tooking nature
of regulated rents We fully expect to see these rents

rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints. The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment is the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insutation and the type
of heating. In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements wili be passed
through to rent prices. In regulated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth.

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strang rental growth through the cembination of a
shortage of rental stock (amateur landlords leaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to temporarily
rent awaiting price corrections)

e s .
Llood. s

Purpose bullt student accommodation continues to fare well,
with rising numbers of students across the UK and Furope.
Thetraditional accommaodation alternative of private rented
houses (HMOs - Houses in Multiple Occupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up licensing costs and (correctly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommodaticn. Unite, our
fargest student accommodation stock was cne of the few
companies to see positive capital value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annuahsed growth. It has recently increased its rental
growth cutlook for academic year 2023724 from 5% 10 6-7%.
Seif-storage continues to confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to normalise post the
‘Covid boom' but remain encouragingly positive. Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10.7% in the year to October 2022

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to make up for
lost opportunities to travel in 2020 and 2027, Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the guality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +171% year on year and 25% versus 2019

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the alternatives
group. Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation.
Continental Eurcpean healthcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Orpea. The level of state suppord,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors. Even then, the rate of rental growth can be quite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura.

>
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Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year. The total capital raised in 2022 was €14bn
compared 10 €32bnin 2021 and €21bn in 2020. Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
quarter. T illustrate the change in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the most prolific 1ssuer,
Vonovia, Europe’s largest property company. In March
2022, 1t issued 4, 6 and 8 year maturities totalling £€2.5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1 875% and 2.375% respectively. By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
4.75% and 5.0%.

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycle of
increased interest costs resulting in lower earnings, so
risking credit downgrades leading to even higher cost of
debt Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if asset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading at deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
Immobilien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acquisition of a Polish housebuilder They raised £200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
heip pay off the bridging loan from the acquisition. In
November, VGP a Belgium logistics developer raised
£302m. This was more froni-focted with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance

The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on one customer. The CEO and CFO own 49%
of the equity and 'stood their corner’ which reassured
investors. In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1.4bn (£135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whilst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybrid bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet,

The only merger and acquisition activity in the 12
months to 31 March (the privatisation of Industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were two mergers,
both wicely expected but the timing less sure The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finally happened after
a tortuously lang period of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter. The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholiders (we do not own either company) was
that the deal resuits in the repayment of much of
Shaftesbury’s cheap debt due 1o a change of control
provision When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extracrdinariiy high
advisor fees (given it was an agreed {ransaction)
there witl be precious little earnings benefit from

the anticipated synergies The other merger was
between (Xi and Secure Income REIT on a NAV for
NAV basis. It was a much more straightforward
affair. We were a large sharehoider in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV. The managers of SIR were aiso large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycles was once again on
display. They even sold the management company
which had a contract to run SIR for the next three
years.

Portfolio turnover {(purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previous year With average
net assets over the year of £1.18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year.

In the half year report, | recorded that each rally then
trended down to a new low and therefore virtually

all buys locked poor and all sells looked clever

The second haif of the year saw the largest and
longest recovery from October to the end of January,
followed by the most dramatic correction back to the
Octaber lows, this new iow point virtually coinciding
with the year end Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change in the outlook for
interest rates (and the concern that central banks’
behaviour would becorme more hawkish) or renewed
speculation of a failure in the credit transmission
mechanism. Essentially, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change in the price
and availability of debt

in hindsight, maintaining our long-standing
discipline of buying (cr adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the resilience of earnings driven
by market fundamentals just wasn't enough.

As would be expected, we have carefutly analysed

all of our companies’ balance sheet capacity (in
terms of the guantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt). In many cases, the market had quickly
adjusted the earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overly rational about these revised earnings

an
‘2

forecasts. The market was not interested in supply and
demand atthe property/cccupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
development pipeline

The ability of the market pendulum to (over) swing
between exuberance (greed) and melancholy (fear) was
very much in evidence and we battled to

react accordingly

A goed example of this was our collective underweight

to Swedish property companies. Whilst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resulted in multiple
phases of repositioning Whilst the broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged in our investment universe is true, some are
obviously more exposed than others. It was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
als0 to assess when the market had over reacted Those
maost at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank lending or had complex hybrid instruments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price volatility is hest explained in a handful

of figures. EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter
only to recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop to mid-Cctaber and then the long
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, followed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows. These figures are the collective
impact of 18 companies. For the most leveraged (SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater.
Underlying property market fundamentals do nct drive this
level of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outlook for the cost/avaitability of debt impacting
an a tiny market segment (free float capitalisation of just
£20bn).

Our expasure to German residential was the poorest
asset allocation decision of the year. | remmained
convinced, for too iong, that the market fundamentals of
virtually full occupancy and (sub-market) regulated rents
would underpin investor sentiment. The fact that even at
prices a year ago all of these names were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jot. The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the cost of debt. During the year we reduced exposure
in the larger rames (Vonovia, LEG) but maintained

the holding in Phoenix Spree, the small Berlin focused
vehicle itis an externatly managed fund which has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, the manager. Its
assets are al' prime Berlin, where open-market rents
continue to grow The share price total return in the year
was -50% I remain convinced that once prices stabilise
the smaller companies will benefit disproportionately
from the impact of portfolio sales. With @ market cap of
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just £190m and the share price at half the asset vaiue,
itis an excellent example of a portfolic of assets which
are no longer benefiting from being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

It was the lowest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German {and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions, {high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of borrowing. This strong yield compression
{and capital value growth) was even greater in the
mdustrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, in previous reports.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiabte
mvestor appetite for assets with income growth

The reversal {yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to catch the bounce in any recovery.
We are configent that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios will perform well. However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur. In the industrial group in the UK, | would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust. Whilst in Europe the list would include Argan,
Sirius and Catena.

With the lowest yielding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding secters
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retall
property has clearly been cut of favour for many years
as the weakening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued. In Continental Europe, we focused
on Eurocornmercial and Kiepierre given their high

earmings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodameco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
guality spectrumn but both suffered from weak halance
sheets and the need to de-leverage. Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to sell its US portfolio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can. European retall as a subset outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection also added to
perfermance with Unibail -27 5% and Klepierre -2.5%
over the year.

UK retail is now a small part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way to gain exposure
15 through the diversified portfolics of Landsec

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

and British Land. The bulk of our exposure is through
Edisten Property which owns only retail warehouses.
However, its market cap at £140m 1s too small for the
listed market and we applaud the announcement from
the board that they are carrying cut a strategic review
for the future of the company. We remain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remmain in the listed space.
The company was a relative outperformer in the year
{-18%) as were virtually all the high yielding retail names.
Hammerson remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail property. We believe
they are on the right path and we opened a holding in
the year. The crown jewels are the minority ownerships
in the premium outlet malis controlied by Value Retail
Investors will need 1o remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value s reappearing.

Investors’ attitudes towards office property has been
highlighted earlier. We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest. Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arma (Madrid),
Wihiborgs (Malmo, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Core
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec {London).
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business model through Workspace {London} and Sirius
(primarity German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with tatal returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
data reassuring. Landsec {(-16%) was a top performer as
it continued to reduce leverage through sales of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capital recycling and expect to see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, cur overweight to self-storage
was entirely through Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
Yellow (-21%). Safestore has outperfermed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period.
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two
very well managed companies. Both own irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Demand for space has been remarkably stable given
the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accecmmodation provider, was another reiative winner
in the year. The combination of increased earnings
guidance and solid market evidence on modest yield
movement cantinues to support the asset class.
Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditicnal asset
value madel. This was certainly the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets.
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Manager's report
continued
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As noted in the Charrman's Statement, the current
year's iIncome henefited from a number of non-recurring
items. Eurocommercial and Swiss Prime beth changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

each of these companies. The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the {ast
business day in March therefore moves between March
and April. Inthe year to 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in April 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments. If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 falls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2024
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div around
the year end Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2 5% of the portfolic so this has had

a significant impact. Without these (and the small
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been arocund 1 13p
lower than reported. The dividend for the year to March
2023 1s therefore well covered.

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down. In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out ahove, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period before COVID-19 (being the year to
317 March 2019). The full year dividend to 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of a growing dividend
to our shareholders.

Loocking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expect to report a fali in earnings This is partly
explained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above.
However, the additional impact is from the number of
the German residential and Swedish companies that
have announced dividend suspensions and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing levels in the face of
rising debt costs The residential names in particular
are making progress with their disposal programmes
so we expect to see their dividends resuming, although
possibly at a lower level, in the not too distant future.

The impact of higher interest rates will feed through to
earnings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing The impact of this of course depends on the
duration of such debt packages and this varies nugely
across our companies. [tis encouraging to note that

for most of them, the majority of their debt is fixed {or
capped) until 2026 and beyond.

On a more encouraging note, top ine revenue is
benefiting from inflation. All of our Eurcpean companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents linked to some form of indexation. It varies widely
across countries and sectors butis clearly an important
part of cur revenue growth trajectory.

Although the revenue for the forthcoming year is likely
to be under some pressure given alt these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will returm over
the medium term. Market fundamentals continue to
drive organic rental growth in so many of our sectors In
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintain dividend levels over short term
income falls, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Gearing began the year at 10.2%, increased to 12.0% by
the half year and fimished the year at 12 2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughout
the period as gearing has been actively changed

in response to the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%.

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revolving credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked to SONIA {or other currency equivalents).
However, an important part of our debt book are the
EUR 50m and GBP 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
interest. The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at lower levels of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate {so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not too sensitive to the pricing.

P

In the year to the end of March the physical property
portfolio produced a total return of-13 7%, made up of
a capital return of -17.5% and an income return of 3.8%.
The MSCI Manthly UK Property Index returned -14.7%
over the same period, made up of an income return of
5.0% and a capital fall of 18.8%,
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During the year we sold the residential element of the
Colonnades development for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercorn rent. I he value of this element

Is determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual fiats During the Company's
ownership we completed lease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12 5m in premiums.
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the 1sland site as well as all the
commercial elements. The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the old Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing completion. Thig is an important next
phase in the further gentrification of Bayswater.

It was a busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth. The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibiity
for either a refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permission securad in June 2022. During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per sq ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in suppty of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased
The diversity of our occupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to foed
production and even a plant nursery.
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Inflationary pressures persist. Central banks appear
resolutely determined to remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May. Whilst a relatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates 1s having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth. Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-invasion prices. This will socn begin to
feed into lower headline inflation figures and also reduce
the fikelhood of a recession. We expect wage inflaticn,
driven by high employment levels, to persist, resulting in
inflation remaining ahead of central banks' target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, remain sohd with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemic, for a while, and speculative
development will remain subdued. Income, often index-
Iinked, will remain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain our focus on the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
requirements With such a large number of well financed
listed companies, we also expect opportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a long tail of micro-cap companies

and we continue t¢ encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
liquidity and reduces costs. Otherwise, we will cantinue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids (and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the sector and investors

As we go 1o print at the beginning of June, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
{market cap. £1,700m) for CT Property Trust {£180m)
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the announcement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

MIAAIBAN

[
Q
=
@
=1
=
[
=
Pl
1]

Sluawaels leroueul 4

3INS0[25ID (1IW-I1Y DUE AIBSS0(G

WAV 10 22110N

UCI1BWIO U JaDIOYaIBUS



Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises tne importance of considering
Environmental, Social ard Governance { ESG) factors
when making inrvestments and 1n acting as a responsible
steward of capita. This covers the Company's own
responsibilities on governance and reporting ard, the
most material way ‘1 which the Company can have

an impact, through responsible ownersiip of the
Investments that are made or its behaif by its Marager.

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintaining a high level of Governance anrd disc'osure

in the Company's own operations and reporting

is extremely irportant Cur Fund Managers are
encourag ng and sJpporting this from the companies
in wnich we mvest and we cannot fall short of these
standards ourseves

The Company's campiance with the AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s detatled in the Corporate
Goverrance Report on page 50

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there1s

a requirement to detai: .nformat.on about e ployee and
human rights, including informat.or about any policies
N relation to these matters and the effectiveress of
these policies. As the Company has no employees, this
requirement does rot apply Tne Company 1s not with n
the scope of tne UK Modern Slavery Act 2075 because it
"as not exceeded the turnover threshold and 1s therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
statement Tre Drectors are satisfiad that, to the best

of their knowiedge, tne Company's principal suppiers,
which are I'sted on page 120, comply with the provisions
of the UK Modern S.avery Act 2015 These are principally
professional advisers and service providers in the finarcial
services irdustry. consequently the Board considers the
Compary to be low risk ir relatior to this matter

Tne Board carrenty corprises three male Directors
ard three female Directors The Board alsc meets the
FCAsr.les for diversity ard inciusion, folowing the
recommendat ons of the Parker Review.

The actvties of the Nomimation Committee ir re at on
to Board changes are referred to in the No™nator
Committee Report or pages b6 ard 57

The Board's diversity poi cy is octlred . n more deta.dr
tre Carporate Governance Report

The Company has ro greenhouse gas em:ss'ons to report
fram its operations, ror does it have responsibity for any

ather errssions produc:ng sources under the Compares
Act 2006 (Strategc Report and Directors’ Repaorts

6

Regulations 2013). Investment trust companies are
currently exempt frar reportirg against the Task Force on
Climate-Reiated Firancia Disclosures {TCFD ), nowever,
the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) nas now published
regulations that require the Company's Manager, as Its
Alternative Investrent Fund Manager (AIFM’), to report
agamnst TCFD at both the AIFM ard product level by uune
2024, This means that there wiil be a TCFD disclosure
specific to the Company's portfolio available n the future,
which wisi be published on the Manager's website The
Manager Fas produced a report on its overall climate
change approach, which s structured using the TCFD
categories and 1$ avallable an its website

2. Our Portfolio Manager’'s Approach to ESG
Our Portfolio Manager's primary duty is to parsue the
objective set out at the beginning of this annual report,
which s to invest in property and property related
comparies w th the objective of exceeding the returns of
our benchmark.

The Company has not set out 1ts stall to be an ESG
focused fund however as a long-term nvestor,
goveriance and sustainabiiity considerations nave
always beer embedded - our Marager's investment
process ESGrisk assessmerts and consideratiors are
factors which feed nta tne investrrent decisions. This
reflects tne belief that strong governance comrbined with
a resporsible approach to social obiigations and the
comm tment to protect our environment wil: enharce
sharenoldersetuins in the icrg term

Inthe part of the portfolio that s invested directly into
commerc glrea: estate we endeavodr to pract:ce wnat
we preac’

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO

As a dedicated investor in the property sector our Marager
is not having to consider sorme of the more cortroversia,
areas of what 1s ethical investmert However we are
mvesting inba dings where constructior and ongoirg
managemert have a d rect impact on the enviranment
Al' property sin some way deliverng a sccial purpose
Maodern buiding pract ces are very mi.¢h more focused
on reducing energy corsumption and efficiency than in
tne past. Properties have vary ng fespans but are bt
for the longterm Older bulldings whicn are iess energy
efficient thar their moderr counterparts are a fact of

life thenr replacement has w der envronmental and
social repercussiors as we'l as nuge cost implcations
Trey are gongtoform part of the nvestibie un.verse for
tne foreseeable future and their efficiert improvement
and management is just as mportant as ensuring new
developrnents follow the 1 ghest possible environmentas
standards. A'thougn older busd ngs wil most ke show
rferior scores totrer maore moders coarterparts or a

TR Property nvestment Trost



number of enviranmentai meascres, we are looking for
demonstration of best efforts to imprave these measures,
recognising that there will be limitations on what canr be
achieved but wanting to see a positive directior of travel

Tnere are two fundamenta: considerations to nvestment
In property companies: tne assets themsewves and their
management. The Manager seeks to invest in org-term
assets which are managed by quai'ty teams ina we'l
governed corporate stractdre As a result, there has been
a long standing and strong cuiture of stewardship in the
Manager's investment approach The Manager helieves
that engaging with companies 1s best in the first ‘instance,
rather thar simply divest.rg or exc.udng irvestmert
opportunities However, there are nstances where
governance matters have driven a decis.on not to invest
inacompary. As one of the .argest teams investing In
pan-European real estate equities, our Manager meets
with a significant number of management tears of
mvestee and potential .nvestee companies eacn year and
has arobust record of ergagement, wth an agenda of
reducing risk, mproving performance and encouraging
best practice This 1s augmented by the strength of
Columbia Tnreadneedle's Respans.ble irvestment

team and ts broader engagement Over the course of
the year, our management team part.cipated in 227
individual or group meetings witn companies and tneir
maragemenrt teams

The Manager is committed to responsible investmert
and is actively developing new procedures and ways in
which ‘rformatior 1s gathered and used to support therr
engagement with: companies on ESG matters.

Corporate Governance disciosure requirements have
increased transparency encrmaously in recent years and
enabled closer scrutiry and engagement on Governance
issues for some years, Environmental measures are now
rapid y coming to the fore ard, with wider disclosure
reguirements being placed upon our INvestee companies,
the Manager is increasingly able to scrutinise other
measures such as climate change and sustainability
polickes and cutcomes.

However, the Board and Marager are still of the view that
the ESG rating industry ard its approach and processes
has significant imitations, making it difficult to draw

true compansons and make fully informed decisions

Tre assessments from the various data providers

reach different conclusions as they do nat ali score in a
consistent way Some of the assessments are subyjective
and different data providers nave different definitions and
criter:a

Annual Report & Azcounts 2023

This ray eventually converge into some form of
consensus or standardisation bt it stil has a way to

go. Conceptually. making ESG comparnsons betweer
companies and portfolios appears simple, but it is
actual'y rather complex and it is important to ensure that
valid comrparisons are being made. As the snoricomings
are being uncovered and the different approacnes
highlighted we hope that trus wll put pressure on the
data providers to improve the gquality and clar Ty the basis
of their analysis The data services are subscribed to go
have to be 9t for purpose.

Having noted the shortfalls above with the data coliected
from the d'fferent providers, our Manager is enharcing
the way in which ESG date 15 co'lected and compared.
Their owr company database covers financiat and
operaticnal informatior together with extens.wve
modeling. ESG data is being co.lated aiongs de tis,
allowing compansons to be made more easily between
the varous data sodrces fora single company and
irterrogated rather than relying on high level "scores”
Irteractions with companies or ESG matters are

roted and progress, or otherwise, can be tracked more
efficiently.

The Manager 1s therefore dedicating direct resource to
the analysis of the information available and a'so has
the benefit of input from its award-winnirg Responsible
Investment Team. This is wark in progress and a
significant investment ir resource but it wihimprove the
Manager’s ability to engage with our nvestee companies
on env ronmental matters and piay out our responsible
nvestment aims.

It 1s crucial to disaggregate between quality comparies
which aiso have strong ESG credentials and companies
which may appear tc have strong ESG credentia‘s (on
the surface at reast) but w.l make poor imvestments. Gne
example of this approach is Home REIT. On the face of
Home REIT's ESG credertials appeared strong given the
company's business model s focused on the provision
of accommodationr 1o help tackle ncmelessness in the
UK Inaddition, its leases are 100% "green’, meaning
Home and its tenants agree to identify and implement
appropnate strategies for the improvement of the
properties’ environmental performance However, we
elected not to participate in the company's IPO, and

tne furd has never owned the shares subsequently, as
we had reservations about the overail economics of

tne business. We were concerned about the coverant
quality of the tenants (often newly-formed charities)
and betieved that the long lease structures put in place
by Home REIT risked overstating a realistic value of

the underlying assets This approach proved correct

- short selier Viceroy published a report on Home

REIT in November 2022 which highlighted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerns with the business and the company has been
investigated by regulatory bodies on a numiber of items
in recent months. The shares are currently sLspended
pending a decision over the future of the business,
havirg dropped 1% from the origiral IPO price.

An example of a large holding where we believe the ESG

credentials complement the iInvestment case 1s Landsec.

As well as adkering to the governance standards

we wodld expect from a leading listed company, the
company also has a clearly outlmed sustainabiity
framework. This includes long-term targets, progress
aganst whick ‘s regularly monitored and presented
back to investors, such as operationa! carbon emissions
recuction of 70% by 2030 (with a 2013/14 baseline) and
average embodied carbor reduction of 50% compared
with a typicas buillding by 2030. The company's newest
developments, which in our view contr bute posit vety
to the investment case given ther ability to contribLte
to botn earnings ard net tangible asset value over time,
are also all net zero buildings, wrich we believe will
contribute to an improved rental growth tone when the
assets are let. As such there is a symbiotic relatorship
between the company's strong ESG credentials and its
underlying economic performance

Governance

Governance covers matters sach as hoard structure;
effectiveress, divers'ty and independence, executive
pay and criteria, shareholder nghts and financia. and
governance reporting and standards.,

The Manager has a corporate governance voting policy
which inits opinion, accords with current best practice
whilst mairta™ing a primary focus on financial returns
The exercise of voting rights attacned to tne portfolio
has been delegated to the Marager Where practicable,
al- shareholdings were voted at all company meetngs

i1 tne financial year n accordance with Columbia
Trreadreedie’s ownr corporate governance policies This
ersures that a strong, cons'stent approacn is taker to
proxy voting whicn backs .p and reinforces engagenment
takes a robust line on key governance 1SSues sucn as
executive pay and integrates erviranmental, soca &
divers'ty ‘'ssues and sJstamakbility practices into the
voling process.

Columbia Threadneedie’s Stewardsnip Report 2022
provdes mare rformatior or its firm-level stewardsup
policies, as well as how these compiy with the
expectations of the UK Stewardship Code 2527 to wh'ch
tne Manager 1s a sigratory Its statemenrt of comphiance
can be found on the website at

https #www.coumbiathreadreedle com/en/

During the finarcial vear tre Manager voted aganmst at

18

least ore managemrent proposal at 52% of sharenoider
meetings. T1is represents 13% of total items voted Of
the items voted against, the proposals car be broadly
categornised as follows'

2% 2%

Remuneration
“Shareholder rights
Election / Reelection of
Directors

Share repurchase policy
other

Director terms

Ratify Auditor

For tae year, the Manager engaged with 24 companies
direct y on arange of ESG related matters. These
engagements were conducted at both the board and
senior execL! ve level as we!l as daectly with investor
relations Topics of engagement were split as follows:

Climate Change
Environmental Standards
Labour Standards
Corporate Gavernance
Human Rights

The Marager tracks the n'lestones of the engagement
strategy and Fas seer progress thig year or anumber

of matters Examples include the publicat.on of
sustainability reports and board acccuntability o1 human
rignts risk management

Social

All bulldings nave a social functior to some extert,
providing paces to live, work eat, shop, stare elc
Management of bu'ld ngs needs to ersuare any socia
obligations to the occuparts are met 1 terms of
Heaith & Safety. employee management and weilbeing
ard cormitment to communities Most of these
obligatiors are tneresponsibility of the tenart but cur
nvestee compan.es are obhiged to report on matters
affectirg t~err own er-ployees and such statements are
considered

TR Praperty Investment Trus:



Environmental

Environmental policies in the property sector focus
iarge.y on sdstainability and cimate change. Climate
change is one of the defiring challenges of moderntmes.

The management team have scurced data and research
from several providers, includirg the Cotumbia Threadreedie
Regponsible fnvestmert team, MSCl and Giobal ESG
Berchmark for Real Assets (GRESE).

The quantity and depth of data available \n anr secror
varies greatly, the larger companies now have teams
dedicated to providing environmental impact data and
reporting. However many of our companies are small and
do not currently have the resources to cortnbute data

to the organisations providing aralysis to the investor
community As a consequence, we see strong correlations
between company size, maturity and overall scores. Since
ourinvestment strategy -eads us to own focused mid-sized
corpanies In preference to some of the larger diversified
ones, e portfolios overall ESG score might tend to be
unflatter.rg compared to the wider bencnmark. The nigaur
of our process ensures that these companies receive
scrutiny by the tearr.

GRESB is a mussion-drniven and investor-led organisation
provid ng standardised and validated ESG data to the
captal markets Establ'shed in 2009, GRESB now covers
over USD S trillion inreal estate assets, publishing 1) an
anaual real estate assessment score for part cipating
companies, ard i a public disc.osure score for ali listed
real estate companies The real estate assessment scare
ranks Environment Sccial and Governance metrics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

2023

Rated ) Sk 62%
Unrated s 34% 38%
Total 100% 100%

on data contributed directly from participating companies,
whilst the public disclosure score evaluates the leve of ESG
disclosure by listed property companies and REITs.

Further detaii on GRESE canbe found at
\rvfwwgresb.com

For 2023 there 1s increased GRESB Real Estate
Assessiment coverage of the Comrpany's equity portfoio
{66% from 50%).

German residertial compantes representing 11.6% of the
index do not subnit data to GRESE due to the requirement
to submit data at the asset or buildirg level and concerns
araund fair comparisons of data aggregation. We continue
to ergage with GRESB, encouraging them to modify the
requirements to encourage wider participation

MSCIESG research covers a w-de range of environmental
impact measures including CO2 and greerhouse gas
emissions, energy and water Lsage, In addition to wider
corporate governarce scores Furtner detail can be found at
www ITIsci.com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings

Coverage of cur sector redoced from 99% to 26% and the
Company's portfclic increased from 89% 10 96%. Where
coverage is based on pubnc data, a significant proportion
is included, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by companies the coverage 1s currentty much
thinner.

The table below compares coverage by both data
providers year on year,

99% 96% 96% __ 96%
1% 4% 4% 2%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESBE, MSC! Columbia Threadneedle .nvestments Bata asat 3103 2023 Fund exposure calcuiated as tne % weight of the invested equity portfolio

: Pubtic Disclosufe'

2022

Rated 50% 54%
Unrated - 50% 46%
Total 100% - 100%

Source GRESB, MSC Colurnbia Threadneedle Investments. Data as at 31 03 2022

Anrua Repert & Accounts 2023

i Company Rating -+

97% 97% 89% 99%

3% 3% 1% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Fund expostre calculated as the Se weight of the nvested equty partfolo
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Responsible investment
continued

We continue to collect data on emissions and compare
to pror years wih the emphasis being more or direct on
of travel than the absoiute meascres themselves This
IS @iso an area where we expect g see further change
which s also explained

For the year ended 31 Marcn 2022, we disclosed, as best
we were able to, the portfolio-weighted carbon intensity
of the total portfol'o for the first time

Carbon Risk measures exposure 1o carbaon intensive
companies MSCl's defimition and calculation, with

data based on MSCI CarbonMetr.cs, is the portfolio-
weighted average of issuer carbon intensty Atthe
issuer ‘evel, carbor intensity 1s the ratio of annua’
scope 1 ard 2 carbon em:ssions to arnuai reverue.
Carbon Risk is categorized as Very Low (0to <15},

Low (151t0<70}, Moderate (7010 =250}, High (250 to
=525) and Very Hign {>=525). The Carbon Risk of the
equity portfol.o measured at the financial year end, was
42.6 T COZE/5M Sales (2022 63.3T COZE/SM Sales),
fa ing witvin the low risk MSCI category The Compary’s
portfolio-weighted carbon rtersity was ower than tnat
of the bencnmark of 49 8T COZE/SM Sales

Comparrg aganst the resu'ts from last year snows a
headline c.31% decrease in carbon irtensity for hoth our
own equity portfolio and -18% for the index There are a
nuirber of reasons for this, Whi'st the rat.o1s a srapshot
taken at each firancia year end, refecting the cnange
in equity rold.ngs over the periad, there 's also wider
coverage of data at the 2023 firancial year end (98%
fortne current year fund holdings versus 89% for the
proryear) Trelatest emissiors data for each compary
1$ captured by MSClon publication of their data, eacn
compary s rotreleasing the'r data at the same pont
so timing differerces will arise Tne ratio will a.s50 be
impacted by the cnangirg value of $ Sales, inc ud.rg the
qrpact of FX rates However, within trese .mitaticons,
we can be reasonab y cofidert tnat the Carbon Risk of
the portfol o1s improving and currert'y hetter than tne
penchmark

20

T CO2E/$M Sales
70

b0
50

a0

2023
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]
™
]

3 "R Property Investment Trust

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Index

In order to atterrpt to give a p cture of the direction of
travel, we have Iooked at the individual caompanies the
Company no:ds to assess which have improving or
deteriorating carbor intens:ty metrics over three and
five year perods

This aralysis depends upon the mtegnity of the
arderly:ing data ard breadtn of data coverage, so we
would cadticn that th s 1s @ work ir progress, bt 't
mmdicates a positive trend as awareness :mproves ard
companies are obl.ged to d sclose data.

3yr
momentum

5yr
momentum

& Improving
Deteriorating
|| Neutral

By nLmber of comparies Improving wrere erd of period
va.Je s esstnan start of period. Deter orating where end
of period value is greater 3yrs Data for 47 of 61 stocks.
Syrs Datafor43of 61 stocks

BT I e E A [ B R T PP,

IR Property Investmert Trist



For the property sector, the focus 's currently cn the
energy efficiency of buildings once they are occupied,
but we expect in time more attention will be paid to the
carbon emitted 1n getting them built and eventLally
dismantied which accounts for a large proportion of a
buirdirg's emissions over its «fespan.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Sustainabilty 1s core to the strategy of the diwrect property
portfo ¢ which we invest in, no'd and manage on behalf
of sharehoiders and this has beer a key focus far the
management team in their asset management appreach,

Central to the year's approach was energy consumption
As the primary socurce of carbon emissions witnin the
portfoiio, a priority aver tne iast twelve months nas
beento gair a ciear understanding of the consumptior
‘nte~sity across the portfolio. establishing a bencnmark
from which we can map the strategy to manage the
ervirenmental impact of these assets through energy
saving interventions. This data col ection allows us 1o
fix the base year from wh.ch to set out future targets as
we . as a clear patn toward a net zero carbon portfclio.
Alongside this we have also worked hard to future-proof
tre portfolio against the forthcoming Minimum Energy
Efficiency Standards.

We also recognise that the bar t environment plays a
fundamertal role in the life of loca’ communities. Asa
landlord the Company continues to enhance s social
engage et with tne local community stakeholders

at our assels We also strive to work with local supp v
chain partners to deliver a best-in-class service for our
occuplers, whilst also support rg the local economies
surrounding cur assets  This Feips us demonstrate the
social value we brirg to comnunities, occLpiers and
shareholders.

Tne firal strand to our approach 1s governance.

Tnis forms the foundation for how we manage our
properties The manager operates a Sustainability and
Social Responsibility Committee which focuses on tie
implementatior and delivery of ali ESG intiatives ard
provides full transparency on our proactive hands-on
approach From this we can execute our envirenmertal
and social responsibilities We are only able to achieve
our goals through a joned-up approach with our property
manager, energy consultant and other key pariners with
WHOIM we work

Arnua Report & AcCounts 2023

In last year's report we identified the three key piilars

to establisk the foundation for the delivery of our ESG
strategy These three piilars, namely Asset Energy
Performance (Envirorment), Occupier Ergagement
(Social) and Operational Performance (Goverrance)
continue to navigate the Management Team towards the
successful realsation of our ESG strategy.

Whilst the significant progress made over the 'ast 12
months reinforces aur commitment to achieve net zere
carbon by 2050, cur ultimate goal is tc ambit.ousy
improve on this 2050 target To that end, we have
irstructed net zero audits across the portfolic to faci'itate
us inidentifying exactly now we can bring this target
forward from 2050 This strategic framework will be
driven by science-based targets in a cost-efficient
manner and we witi be articulat g our improved
pathway over tne forthcoming year

Environmental

Accurate data collectior and transparent reportirg are
integral to our goal of reduc ng catbon emissions across
our portfolio, We bave putir place a number of in‘tiatives
to this end which are outlined below.

Reliable and accurate data collection s the cormerstone
to understanding tne carbon intensty of our assets Tr s
gives us the abil'ty to set ambitious targets to reduce

the carbon intengity and Scope 1 and 2 emissions for
both ourselves ard our occupiers. To this end we have
beer working in collaboration with our stakehaolders

to implement a programme to instalf automatic meter
readers (AMRS’) across the portfolic to enabye the
accurate measurement and monitoring of each asset's
energy corsumption This consumption data s now
being coliated and analysed by the property industry-
recogn:sed SIERA+ platform. This means we can
measure energy consumption and access live data
which we can analyse and then use to shape our bullding
operation decisions. The AMRS have also pravided the
dataset which will farm part of the Company’s inaugural
GRESE submission currently underway. setting the
benchmark for future ESG performance. With ongoing
access to thus fully transparent and live dataset we can
take control of our carbon emissions with integnty and
pinpomnt exactly where further improvements can be
achieved.
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Responsible investment
centinued

As outlined in the last report a key objective for the Furd
was to commence its first GRESB submission. Now that
we have ar accurate dataset of carbon consuamption, we
have been able to begin the first GRESB subm'ssion for
2022/23 Theresults of this sLbmission wel, be available
in October 2023 and from this we will be able to ident fy
furtner sustainabllity opportunities and errance our
strategy towards net zero. This s & s.gnificant milestone
for the Company ard GRESB will enable us to measure
cur ESG performance within a uniform and globally
established platform,

Another key elerment to managing the carbon mtensity
of the portfono s through the implementation of Green
Leases Clauses across the partfolio. It has enabled us
to embed cur net zero commritrents inte the farmal
structure within wh'ch we lease our assets, setting out
a mutual agreement betweer landiord and occupier

1o stnve to mprove energy efficiencies and reduce
carbon emissans generated by the assets They also
provide a forma: framework far the Company to work
with oceupiers on our data cotlection workstream in
mstances where we are not in control of the Ltaty supply
Thisin turn strengthens our ability to enforce carbon
intersity targets and gain further control of Scope 1 and
2 BmMISsIons

Further contro’ of carbon emissions has been achieved
througr the successful transition of alt energy across
fandlord areas for the wnaie portfolio to renewabe
sodrces Trisis a portfolio-wide initiative and 100% of
landlord electncity ard gas supp'ies are mow contracted
on certified greer taiifis, backed by the Ofgern regl. ated
Renewable Erergy Guarantees of Or'gin (REGQ) scheme,

Fror 1 Aprii 2023 all commercial rental properties
arerequredtonave an EPC of E or better, Thedrect
property portfolia current y meets these standards and,
overal | the portfcl ¢'s EPC profile 1s weli placed for the
soort-term requiremenrts and improved ratings have beer
acnieved over the last 12 months

22

Two s.gnificant achievemerts of note are tne
improvernent of the two EPC G ratings with'n the
portfeio to B and C ratmgs and increasing the
percertage of assels now qualify ng for EPC ratings
by over 20% This has been accomphshed trough
detailed operatioral anaiysis of our assets and the
‘mplementation of energy saving enhancements

It is importart 1o note that tne increase ir Erating 1$

due to changes in the assessment critena and the

major ty of the £ and D ratings are at Wandswortn where
the strategy s to either complete a comprehensive
refurb'shrment or a full-scale redeveloprment in the mid
term. Work on this project will complete pror te the 2630
MEES standard which will require a rinimuarm EPC of

B Once this project has been delivered the percentage
of the portfouo by ERV achieving 2030 compliance wil'
increase to 88%  Tris s before any other enhancements
are impiemerted

Further to th s the Company nas row raised the target
of acnieving a minimum EPC rating to the minimum of &
B for ail p'arned refurb shments ard upgrade works to
the portfolic This forms part of 1ne wider ESG-focused
refurbish-ment checklist

EPC (% of ERV)

E 8%
(2022 6%)

. 3:58%
D:28% {2022 47%)

{2022 32%j)

C. 6%
(2022 13%)

TR Property Investmert Trust



The Company has been working closey with the major
tenant of our Industrial estate in Gioucester to install
PV cels on the roof of the buiiding to generate cheap,
low carbon (carbor neutral) energy on site Infus'on,
who package specalist teas for a number of Righ-end,
3rd party customers have been a key tenant on the
estate singe purchase in 2015 and sustairability 1S key
to the campany ethos  The installation of PV celis on
the roof was a critical development for the compary in
its path towards net zero carben  Results to date have
beer very positive w'th 80% of the onsite generation
beirg consumed on site and the balarce being exported
togrid. Infusion project that 75% of the.r total annua
e'ectrcity consumption wilt be generated on site.

Tre key facts of the installation are:

- System Size — 244 8kWp

« Year 1 Generation Prediction - 231,752kWh's

+ €02 Saving per annum ~ 49 tonres

« EPCimprovement from C rating to B.

This hugely successful project demonstrates car
occupier-focused, opportunity-led approack whereby we
kave champiored our OCCUpIers success .nachieving
their sustainability goals whilst also improving the
erviroamental profile for the portfolio Fellowrgth s

success we are Investigating installing Pv onto the
remaning units on the estate

Annual Repor: & Accounts 2023

‘Infusion GB are extremely committed to reducing our
environmental footprint and the installation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a cnitical step towards this. The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was instrumental to this
and enabled us to mnstall @ self-generating power source
1o our buldings This instiative has been incredibly well
received by customers, suppliers and employees alike”
Bruce Stevens, Cormercial Director, Infusien GB
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

The managemert team has continued actively tc ergage
with occupiers to support and potent ally invest in their
ESG ghjectives. Communnication and cotlaboration plays a
central role in achieving ESG goals

A quarterly ESG newsletter is now pubiished and
circulated with occupiers 1o encourage engagement. Key
content for the newsletter Inc'udes nviting occuplers

to participate in the AMR instaliation programme,
community engagement intiatives and raising biodiversity
awareness across the portfolic which include the
installation of bird boxes and bug hotels at Gloucester

At Wandsworth we have successfully managedto
integrate a crucarniocal commuanily partrerirto Ferrer
Street tnrocgh the letting of Unit 16 to the Wandsworth
Foodbark By iett:ngthe urit at nirert we have enabled
them to continue to support peopie and famil-es facing
severe hardship across Wandsworth Borougn  Inthe
last year over 11,0000 emergency food parce.s were
provded to loca. households in severe Fardship Witk a
larger facility at Ferr.er S5t they have beer able to increase
their emergency food prov'sion by 71% throughout the
borougr and deliver directiy to those households who
cannot access their Welcome Centres

"Wandsworth Foodbank are extremely gratefulto TR
Property investment Trust for enabling our move (o
Ferner S5t The warehouse provides us with a space ta
receive, sort and store large amounts of donated food,
and dispatch nt to cur seven Welcome Centres and
directly 10 people’s homes We are really grateful for this
partnership as we support local households through the
cost-of-hving crisis " Dan Frin, Wandsworth Focdbank
Manager

24
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Tre Colonnades 1s also central to the community
iandscape of the Bayswater area and it 1s vita: that ‘tis
fuily mtegrated into this environment. We nave continued
to work with car locai commuanity partrers at the
Colernades over the last 12 months to help alievaate the
chatenges of rough sleepers in the Bayswater area

Governance

in order to defiver our ESG targets it 1s essential that our
internal management structure 1s fully al.gned with our
strategy. The Susta rabiity and Socia) Responsib.lity
Committee meets on a bimonthly bas's to ensure that we
are on track with our Sustainability Readmap cbjectives
throagh the thorough review of current inbiatives and
implermentation The Committee waorks in partnersnip
with our managing agents (St.les Harrold Wiiliams)

1o ensure we maintain a sustainable supply chain

whicn complements our net zero carban goals This's
demanstrated througn objectives set to ensure 100%

of waste materia: under 'andlord control 1s not sent to
landfiii. The accreditation of our manag.ng agent to Safe
Contractor also derronstrates our commitment to payng
all directly empioyed staff on our assets a real Living
Wage. In addition the management team attend reguJlar
ESG training events and seminars, continuing our internal
education around ESG and makirg sure that all avenues
are being expiored to achieve positive oulcomes across
the porifolio.

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

Tris significant progress over the last twelve months
dermonstrates our firm commutrrent to bring forward our
net zero carbon 2050 strategy. Through our thorough
carbon consumption datz management, GRESB
submission and MEES improvements we will be able

to clearly set out our key objectives for the forthecoming
year.

We will continue 1o expand our AMR programme to
mMaxm-se our comprehensive dataset on Serra+ This
will provide further insight into how we can (dentify and
‘mplement energy saving measures, targeting Scope |
and 2 emissions.

In October 2023 we will have the Company's inaugural
GRESE rating. From this we will be able aralyse the
results to formulate a robust strategy to strengther this
rating and target an increase of at least ore star for the
next submission.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

In order to further futureproof the portfolio agairst MEES
we will continue to track our exposure to inefficient
assets through regular EPC analfysis By reducing the
portfolio’s rehance or fossil fuels and implementing
further renewable energy sources through solar PV, we
will continue to drive dowr tne higher ERC rated assets,

Over the next twelve months we wili strengthen our
rmanagement of Scope 3 emissions. We wil continue to
collabaorate with our suppliers and occupiers to adopt
more sustainable practices, reduce their reliance on
foss'H fuels and deliver best n class asset management
to improve odr pathway to net zerc carbon through
carefLlly planned ard del vered nterventions.

By successfL ly achieving these obyjectives over the
forthcomirg year we expect to be able to declare
ar ambitiods improverient or our net zero carbon
commitrrent, bringmmg t ferward from 2050
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Portfolio

as at 31 March

2022 2022
£'000 %
UK Securities’
- quoted 385,876 40.5 518417 332
UK Investment Properties 73957 77 96,255 6.1
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614,672 39.3
Continental Europe Securities
- guoted 488,839 51.3 940744 602
Investments held at fair value 948,672 99.5 1,555,416 895
- CFD (creditor)/debtar? . aes62 0.5 7857 05
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 100.0 o - UK Securities
UK Property
B [ ] Continental Europe
as at 31 March Securities
%022 2022 ‘ CFD Debtors/Creditors
E£'000 %
UK Securities
- guoted 385,876 35.7 518417 256
- CFD exposure? 75,963 7.0 57,324 29
UK Investment Properties _ 73,957 7.0 96,255 55
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671996 340
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 488,839 45.2 940,744 585
- CFD exposure? ) 54,943 51 87318 6.5
Total investment exposure’ 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,058 100.0
£ 31 March =* Securities
oes o : WXy 2022 2021 2020 2019 UK Property
Total investments £949m £71,555m £1.401m  £113155m  £1,291m
Net assets £968m £1563m £1,320m  £1,136m  £1328m
UK quoted property shares 41% 33% 284% 3N% 33%
COverseas quoted property shares 51% 60% 66% 61% 59%
Direct property {externally valued) 8% 6% 6% % 8%
Yt [ A !
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
Benchmark Company Benchmark
FEERNENT. - % % %
GBP 33.6 353 339 33.6
FUR 42.3 N3 419 423
CHF 9.9 95 7.4 7.1
SEK 13.8 138 163 163
NOK 0.4 0.3 05 0.4

UK secunt os noiudes one uni sted no ding 10 01%:
Netunreal sediloss i ga non CFD contracts held as hzalance sheet i cred tor: debtor
Gross va ue af ZFC positions

Tote nvestents hustrating matkel exposute noiuding e gross caiveof Of O posions

o TR Froperty irvesiment Trus?



Investment portfolio by country

Market
value
%
Belgium T Sweden ' R
Xior Student Housing 15,267 16 wihiborgs 21,999
Aedifica 8,959 08 Fastighets Batder B 19,804
Care Property Invest 7,191 07 Catena 11,166
icade 5,457 06 Sagax 10,677
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 3,476 0.4 Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 8,410
Maontea 1,732 02 Fabege 6,382
Warehouses De Pau 1,429 01 Pandox 3,939
Shugard Soif Storage 601 01 Clatzer Mastigheter 2,706
- o 44112 T o4s Atrium Ljungberg 1,493
T - - = Cibus Nordic Real Estate 1,274
France Fastighets Neobo - o 742
Gecina 34,321 36 - ) 88,592
Klepierre 29,984 21
Argan 22,445 2.4 Switzerland
Covivio 16,785 1.8 Psp Swiss Property 40,606
Carmila 5741 0.6 Swiss Prime Site 25,547
Altarea N 1,170 01 ) 66,153
110,446 1.6
o ' United Kingdom
Germany Segro 79,223
Vonovia 72,456 7.6 Safestore Holdings 42,509
LEG immobilien 14,868 16 Picton Property Income 32,628
TAG Immebilien 13,014 1.3 Industrials REIT 28,318
Aroundtown 4,31C 0.5 LandSec 28,199
" 104,648 110 Sirius Real Estate 23,664
T Phoenix Spree Deutschland 23,137
Netherlands Great Portland 22973
Eurocommercial Properties 24,767 2.6 Ediston Property 19,440
NSI 2,902 0.3 Londonmetric Property 17,115
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 2,110 0.2 Unite Group 15,219
’ o 29779 ER CT Property 14,262
T Workspace 13,390
Norway Tritax Big Box REIT 7,033
Cntra 3,509 0.4 Supermarket Income REIT 2,909
' " 3,509 04 Hammerson 2,827
7 ' Warehouse REIT 2,700
Spain Atrato Cap 2,573
Merlin Properties 26,908 28 Urban Logistics REIT 2,494
Arima Real Estate 10,531 1.1 Shaftsbury 1,709
Inmobitiaria Colonal ] 4,161 0.4 Helical 1,408
41,600 473 Cap & Regional 1,205
T ) - Newriver REIT o 941
) 385,876
Direct Property ) 73,957
CFD Positions (included in
current assets and liabilities) 4,662
Total Investment Positions 953,334
Notes

- Cormpanes snown by countty of listng

- Twe ahove pos tions are the prysical holdings ine uded i the nvestments held at “air va ue in the Balance Sheet The CFD post ons is the net of the profit or loss on the

CFD contracts {1 e not the investrnent exposurel mc.uded in the Balance Sheet curent assets and abtes

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Market
value

%

23
2.1
1.2
11
0.9
0.7
0.4
0.3
0.1
0.1
0.1
23

4.2
2.7

69

83
4.5
3.4
3.0
3.0
25
24
2.4
2.0
1.8
16
1.5
1.4
0.7
0.3
03
0.3
0.3
0.3
02
0.1
0.1
0.1
40.5

7.8

0.5
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Twelve largest equity investments

1 SEGRO

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £792m  £77.3m
% of investment

portfolic” 73% 4.5%
% of equity

owned _09% 0.5%
Share price 768p  1346.0p
Segro (UK)

Segro is the largest UK REIT by market cap
and is the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK, with a
total portfolio of ¢.£718bn {spht c.62.0% in
the UK, ¢.38.0% in Continental Eurcpe, with
€.56.0% urban warehouses, ¢.26.0% big
boxes and ¢.18.0% land and other uses).
Inthe UK the group is mainly exposed to
Greater Lendon industriat and logistics.
Rental growth inthese markets has been
extremely strong as there remains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelled
by tenants’ requirermerits to deal with the
growth in e-commierce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third,
these markets have a lower, but still
posrtive, rental growth outlook (and are
gecgraphically less space-constrained). In

2H22 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,

while EU valuations have lagged the
aggressive repricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages largely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investment
values {¢.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
netinitial yield of 3 7% at FY22) This has
been a successful formula to drive both
earnings and NAV growth, as well as high
shareholder returns

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +45.7%.

1 Notes:

2 VONOVIA

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £72.5m £149.9m
% of investment

portfolio! _67% 8.8%
% of equity

owned i 06%  05%
Share price €17.34 £42.31

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company In Continental Europe by market
capitalsation. Atthe end 0f 2022 the
company owned a portfolic of ¢ £35.8bn,
primarily split between Germany {c.88 9%
of vatuey, Sweden (0.7.4%) and Austnia
(c.3.7%}. The portfolio has increased
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
follawing a stiing of acquisitions, mostly
of listed peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hembla, Victorna Park, and BUWOG.

Vonovia is involved inthe whole value chain

of the residential sector, via its rental business
(¢ 80.1% of group EBITDA), third-party
development segment (¢.6 7%), recurring
sales segment (¢.4.9%), its value-add
segment (energy, multimedia, and other
services segrment, © 4 6%) and I1$ nursing
segment (c.3.0%). The German residential
sector remains heavily requlated, yet Vonovia
has continually beenable to generate solid
rent growth (+3.3%in 2022), whilst also
cormplying with regulations and assuminga
social role, which permits thermio benefit from
critical political goodwill and parinerships (as
observed by the 20,000-unit portfolio saleto
the State of Berlinin 2021). Even though asset
values have come under pressure, as seen
with all real estate asset classes, operationally
the business continues to perform strongly as
seen by FFO | growth of 14 6% p/'s, driven by
operational Improvements and healthy rent
growth. Moreover market evidence points

to further upward revisions to rent growth
estimates as the supply demand imbalancein
Germany persists.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-45.7%.

"<
»

[ . Y
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value £596m  £61.5m
% of investment
portfolio’ _ 55% 3.6%
% of equity
owned e % 1.0%
Share price €20.85 €248

Klepierre (France}

Kiépierre ;s a French REIT, which owns,
operates, and manages a portfolio of
European shopping centres, spanning ten
countries, At the end of 2022, the company
owned a portfolio of ¢ £19.8bn, with major
exposures InFrance (.38 3% of value),
laly (¢.23.8%), lberia {¢.13 0%), Germany/
Netherlands (¢ 9 7%), and the Nordics
{(C.8.7%). The company, like all shopping
centre owners, has reaped the benefits of
areturn to normality as social gatherings
are permitted and travel restrictions have
been lifted demonstrated in its strong
rebound n footfall and tenant sales, While
the ongoing shift towards e-cormmerce

as a retall channel has continued, it has

at a slower rate, even retreating i certain
markets, with digitally native retzilers
pivoting to physical by opening stores On
arelative basis, the company continues to
benefit from its 100% focus on Continental
Europe, without any exposure to weaker
UK and US markets Lastly, the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simon, also Chairman
and CEQ of Simon Property Group, which
owns a c.22 3% stake in Kléperre

In 2022, EPS growth was +18.7% YoV,
benefiling from accelerating indexation
and occupancy improverments. with
EPRA NTA broadly flat Yoy Meanwhile,
it's financial metrics remain conservative
with a net debt to EBITDA of 7 9x and an
EPRA LTV of .43 7%. its average cost of
debtis low at just ¢.1.2%, and s expected
to rermain low, as evidenced by its high
hedging ratio of ¢ 80.0%, and weighted
average loan matunty of 6.5 years

The five-year total shareholder return has
been -4 5%.

» Thepercentage 6F nvestent po oo pos tons set Gut above nclude exposures through CFL “or bath U ind v tis pos tons and the portialo

- Thefye yeastotal snareholder “etung are T9e returns N 1he 1oos currency of 1ne nolding
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4 'LandSecurities

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£593m  £452m
% of Investrment

portfolio’ 55% 2.7%
% of equity

owned oo 13% 0 0.8%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (LK)

Landsec is one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfolio valued at ¢ £11bn. The
company's assets are a mix of offices
(¢.51.0%) retail assets (c.36.0% spiit
between shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses {¢.13.0% such as leisure
assets, retall parks and hotels); ¢.61.0%
of the assets are in central London.

Since joining the business in 2020 new
CEO Mark Allen has soughtto alter the
company’s strategy, pledging to sell out
of its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets and retail parks}, while increasing
the size of the development pipeline to
focus on large mixed-use schemes that
others donot have the capabilities to
deliver. In addition to the established office
development pipeline the company now
plans to spend an additional £1.5bn over
five years on mixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has been relatively
conservative with a very long debt
maturity of 10.9 years as at Septemnber
2022 net debtto EBITDA of 8. 7x and LTV
at September 2022 of 31% (and lower
since that date following disposals of
large office assets including 1 New Street
Square). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeling,
avoiding gearing up despite capex spend,
and has a medium-termtarget of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-17.0%.

1 Notes:

31 March 2022
S”harehoidmg

value _ £524m £44.0m
% of investment

Qprtfolio‘ _48% 2.6%
% of eguity

owned . 0B% 0.6%
Share price £95.55 €114 3

Gecina (France)

Gecina is the largest French REIT

and 1s one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Europe by
market capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at c.€20.Tbn,
comprising of offices (¢.80.0% of value),
residential (¢.18.0%), and student
accommedation (¢.2.0%)

Gecina develops, manages, and owns
adiversified portfolio, which is heavily
skewed toward the Paris region (¢.97 0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris inrecent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
rmuch-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolio. As a result, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a material
increase in occupancy levels YoY which
all helped o drive 7.4% EPS growth Yoy
Assetvalues during FY22 were broadly
flat (-0.6% including value creation from
pipeling), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
strenger indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfolio.

The company is one of a handful of
European real estate companies with an
Acrating from Moody's and S&F given its
conservative financial profile, operating

with an EPRA LTV of ¢.356.8%. The average

cost of debtis low at ¢.1.2%, alongside a
high hedging ratio of c.90 0%, and & long
weighted average loanmaturity at 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
heen-15.4%.

gecina

31 March 2022
Sh.a?eho&dmg

value B £425m  £60.4m
% of investment

portfolio” 39% 306%
% of equity

owned 2% 2%
Share price 950p 1340p

Safestore (UK)

Safestore is the UK's largest seif-storage
operator, owning ©.160 stores, primarily
in the UK {and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). In addition the company
has a large footprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding intc
new European cities (through both JV
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a best in class operating
platformwhich, along with peer Big Yellow,
aliows itto dominate the UK storage
market, particularly in terms of online
search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions. The self-storage market also
performed extremely strongly during the
COVID-19 pandemic and has repeatedly
shown its resilient credentials during wider
economic turbulence,

The five-year total shareholder return has
been+119.6%.

= The percentage of investment po-tic 1o postions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the indendual positions and the portfolio

- The five vear 1otal snareho der -elurns are 1ne returns in the lozal currency of the hold ng

Annual Report & Accourts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

[
;
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i

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £40.6m £44 6m
% of Investrment

portfolio’ 3.7% 2.6%
% af equity

owned _ 10% 0 1.0%
Share price CHF104.0 CHFW2W 5

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies, owning
adiversified portfolio of high quality

real estate assets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHF2 4bn, comprising of offices (.64 0%),
retaill (¢ 16.0%), food (c.6.0%), and

ather (¢ 14.0%). The portfolio is skewed
towards Switzerland's key econormic
centers, including Zurich (c.57.0%, Geneva
(.14.0%), Basel (¢.8.0%), and other major
cittesatc21.0%

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well.
Transactional evidence is light, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stable. Similarly, demand for office
space in economic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva is expected to remain strong.
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year on its vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3.8% to 3.0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%; all this led to EPRA EPS grawth of
+4 1% Mareover, EPRA NTA still grew 3%
over the year on modest revaluation gains
and retained earnings. LTV remained iow
at 32.6%; amongst the lowest levels for
European property comparnies whiie its
current cost of debt is fixed for 4.1 vears

The five-year total shareholder return has
heen +31.4%.

T Notes:

- Tnepercentzge of nvestnent portto o positions set out above nciude exposures trgugn SFC o botn the nds
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& Zus DICTON
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _ £373m  £359m
% of investment

portfoiic! 3.4% 2.1%
% of equity

owned __99% 6.7%
Share price 69p S98p
Picton (UK)

Pictonis a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m portfolio, as at September 2022,
was £.58 0% industrial, .32 0% offices
{of which ¢.22.0% London and the South
East) and ¢.10.0% retail (of which . 7.0%
retail park). Along with a high quality asset
nortfolio, where rental growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the company is

run conservatively, taking very limited
development risk as well as maintaining
avery strong balance sheet. Forexample.
the company's LTV as at December

2022 was ¢ 26 0%, with long-dated delit
maturity (.10 years) and very limited
near term refinancing requirements In
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuable asset management
opportunities, including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space
and the potential for residential conversion
in certam assets which could provide
lucrative upside versus current valuations

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-0.4%.

Thetve yeartotal shareholde retumns are the retuns in the aca Cyrency of the ho d ng
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3 industrials
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £345m  £533m
% of investment

portfolio’ _32% 3%
% of equity

owned 98% 9.2%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials REIT (UK)

Industrnals REIT s a UK focused

multi-let industrial business. The portfolio
has been transformed over a nurmber of
years to focus solely on the UK ML sector,
and the £660m portfolia s now ¢ 95% ML
{as at September 2022) Over a number
of years the UK MLI asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and cngoing ERV
growth (in the 12 months to December
2022 Industrials REIT has seen LfL ERV
growth of +10 5%}, with rents corming from
alow base (average passing rentin the
nortfolio was £5.94 at December 2022} in
addition to its strong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
operating platform gives the compary
access to data on enguiry levels and
demand, as well as aliowing for Innovative
cperational approaches such as the

use of digital short-form smart leases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfolio vacancy.
Total shareholder return since IPO in June
2018 has been +29.0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone at g
premium of +42.0% to the closing price
before the offer was made.

The total shareholder return sincelisting
(15/06/78) has been +29.0%.

1z pas tons and the poticc
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37 March 2022
Shareholding

value £26.9m  £47.8m
% of investment

portfolio! o 25%  28%
% of equity

owned 08w 11%
Share price €806 €10.59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merlin Properties is a Spanish diversified
REIT with a ¢.£17.3bn portfolic. The
majority of the company's assets are
offices (¢ 56 4%), where the cormpany
focusses its exposure on major cities,
primarily Madrid and Barcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (¢.18.9%), data centres/logistics
(C.12.4%), with the residual ¢ 12.4% of
assetsinland and other uses.

As aresult of inflation and continued
tenant demand in the Sparish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7.3% and
year end occupancy of 95 1% (a 60bps YoY
impravement). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
{asset values declined -1 5% YoY) yields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and aretherefore likely to provide maore
protection gaing forward. During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 bank branches
let to BBVA, forc €2 0bnata 17% premium
1o Its book value (the BBVA portfolio
represented ¢.75% of the total portfolio).

As aresult of this transaction, the company
managed to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to ¢.35.8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combination
outlook for property values, Moreover, its
cost of debt remains low, at an average of
¢.2.0%, with a hedge ratic of £.99.6%, and
aweighted average lcan maturity remains
long at 4.9 years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
heen-15.4%.

1T Notes:

- \!, PHOENIX
H /7~ SPREE

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £26.8m £57.9m
% of Investment

portfoiio? 2.8% 3.7%
% of equity

owned I57% 14.7%
Share price 186p 382p

Phoenix Spree {UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland is a UK listed
investment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin Germany. The
company is predominantly invested in
so-called altbau’ properties (typically built
between 1900-1940) which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers, Atthe end of 2022,
the company’s portfolic was valued at
c.€776m. The company aims to maximize
shareholder returns by converting

rental units into condominiums and sell
these in the open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

1o benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specifically, which led o healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers will rent
forlonger as mortgages have become
more expensive This will likely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interestrates, which ledtc a decline inthe
EPRANTA of -G.7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22.4%) ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult of interest rate increases, itis
expected that investment volumes should
pick up again once interest rates have
stabilized

The five-year total sharehelder return has
been -40.5%.

i SWI55 PRIME SITE
31 March 2022
Shéreholding

value £256m  £274m
% of investment

portfolig” 2.4% 1.6%
% of equity

owned i 0.5% 0.5%
Share price CHF76.05 CHF91 25

Swiss Prime Site {Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with a teading real estate
investment (indirect} business. It owns
adiversfied real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF13.1bn, comprising of
offices (¢ 44 0% of value), retail (¢.26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), hotels (c.7.0%), with the
residual ©.14.0% of assets in land and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown in transactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well,
asthe few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts 1o simplify its corporate
structure {the sale of Wincasa, a real
estate services company} and exit the
retail business (Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1 9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

10 4 3%) whilst EPRA NTA increased
modestly with +1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year to 38.9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0.9%.

The five-year 1otal shareholder return has
been +59%.

> Thepercentage of nvestment portiolio positons setout above include exposures through GFD for both the ndvidual posit ons and the port’o o
- The five-year total shasenolde retuns are tne returns in the local currency of the holding

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail Industriat §
west End of London s00 - 50.0
Inper Londan* 17 T e 293
South West - 10.7 10.7
Total 517 48.3 100.0

*Inner London defined as ns'de tne North and Sout

Lease lengths within the direct pro

4 0to5 years
' 51010 years
| 1010 15 years
1510 20 years
[} 20+ years
VT AN e S S G

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
T1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large
mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed
inthe mid-1970s The site extendsto
approximately 2 acres on the north east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road, closeto
Bayswater tube station and ongoing
development of The Whiteley. The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 2015 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Wartrose.

22

hCreuar

perty portfolio

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freshold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Site of just over an acre, 50 metres from
Wandsworth Town railway station inan
area that is predominantly residential
The estate comprises 16 small industrial
units generally let to a mix of smali to
mediurn-sized private companies
Planning permission granted i
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

Contracted rent

- £29m
£FO9mM
£1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principa! tenants: Infusion GB, Puisin Ltd

The IO Centre comprises six Industrial
units occupled by three tenants and
sits ona 4 S-acre site. Gloucester
Business Park s located to the east of
Junction 11 AT the M5 andone mile o
the east of Gloucester City Centre. The
praperty also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4 via
Junction 15.

TR Property Investrment Trust
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The Company's investment cbjective is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationaliy and alsoin
investment property located n the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Furope Capped Net Total Return Index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and as
at 31 March 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index hmits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance.

Business ncao

The Company's business model follows that of an
externaily managed investment trust company
The Company has no employees. [ts wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy, corperate governance,

risk management and internal controf, the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting imits
on gearing and asset ailocation and monitoring
investment performance.

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedle
Investment Business Limited as the Company's
Alternative Investrnent Fund Manager {AIFM’) with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager. They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agresment can be found inthe Report of the Directors
on pages 4910 &7

In accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD’), BNP Paribas
has been appainted as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custodial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are previded

by Columbia Threadneedie Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

The investment se.ection process seeks to ident:fy
well managed companies of ail sizes The Manager
generally regards future growth and capital
appreciation potential rmore ighiy than immediate
yield or discount (o asset vaiue

Although the investment objective aliows for
investment on an international basis, the Compary's
benchmark is a pan-European Index and the
majority of the investments will be located in thai
gecgraphical area Direct property investments are
located n the UK only

As a dedicated investor in the property sector

the Company cannot offer diversificatior autside
that sector, however, within the portfoiic there
are limitations, as set out beiow on the size of
individual investments hexd te ersure that there 1s
dwversification within the portfelo.

£ - o i I

The maximum holdirg in the stock of any one .ssuer
or of a singie asset is imrited 1o 15% of tre portfohio
at the point of acquisition In additicr, any hold ngs i
excess of 5% of the portfollo must nat in aggregate
exceed 40% of the portfolo

The Manager curiently app'ies the folow rg
gu'dennes for asset aliocation

UK"\@ted'équitLes 77777 25 - 60%
Continental European

sted equities 45 -75%
Direct Property - UK. G- 20%
Other listed equities i i 0-5%
Listedbords _0-5%
Unquoted investments 0~ 5%

Tre asset alocatior guidelne upper I'm't for UK
I'sted equities nag increased from 50% 10 60% Tre
regu.rement for the weighting tc UK commercial
property has rot cranged however the nunrher of
compantes holdimg rea. estate iocated '~ Europe
but witm a UK sting has increased, therefore the
asset allocat on guidelire has been changed o
accommodate this

The Company may empiay levels of gearing from
time ta trme with the ain of enharcing returns,
subject to an overall maximum of 25% of the portfolio
value

In certain nrarket conditions the Marager may
cons der it prudent not to employ gearing at al'. and
to "hold part of the portfo 10 in casn

The current asset allocation guide'ine is 10% net
cash to 25% ret gearrg (as a percentage of portfolio
vaiue),

Investment properties are valued every six months by
an external ndependent valuer Valuatiors of a'l the
Group’s properties as at 37 March 2023 nave been
cari'ed out on a 'RICS Red Book’ basis and these
valuations have been adopted in the accounts,

The Group cnarges 75% of arnual base management
fees and finance costs to capita’, In ine with the
Board's expected long-term spht of returns in the
form of capital gains and income All performance
fees are charged to capita

he

It is the Board's current intertion to ho'd no more
than 15% of the portfolio miisted closed-ended
investrment corparies.

Some compan es mvesting in cormercal or
resident al property are structured as listed externally
managed closed-ended investment comparies

and therefore form part of our nvestment universe.
Although trsis not a model usua ly favoured by our
Fund Marager, scrmig irvestments are made 11 these
stractures in order to access a particu ar sector of the
rrarket or where the management team is regarded
as especialy strong. If those companies grow ard
becorre a larger part of our investrent ur verse and/
or rew companrtes come to the market 1 this format
the Fund Marager may wish to .ncrease exposure

to those venicles. If the Manrager w snes to increase
mvestment (¢ over 13%, the Comrpany wi' vake an
announcemert accordingly

IR Propersy Investment Trust



Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’'s
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators ('KPis'):

KPI

The Directors regard the out-performance of the
Company's net asset value total return relative to
tne benchmark as being an overal' measure of va ue
delivered to the shareholders’ over the longer term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the performance in deta’l at each meeting
and discusses the results and outlcok wth the Manager,

KPI

Tre princ pal objective of the Company 1s a total
return objective however, the Fund Manager also
arrsto delver a rehable dividend with growth over
the lorger term,

Board monitoring
Tre Board reviews statements on :ncome received to
date and income forecasts al each meetng

KPI

Whilst expectation of investrment performance is a key
driver of the share price discount or premium ta the Net
Asset Va.ue of an investment trust company over the
longer term, there are periods when the discount can
widen. The Board 1s aware of the vulnershility of a sector-
specialist to a change of investor sentiment towards that
sector, or to pericds of wider market uncertainty and the
impact tnat can have on the discount.

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and
issue shares When considerng the merits of share

buy- back or issuance the Board looks at a number of
factors, in addition to the short and longer term discount
or premium to NAV, 1o assess whether actior would be
beneficial to shareholders overa! . Particular attert.on

is paid to the current market sentiment, the potentias
impact of any share buy-back activity on the liquidity of
the shares ard on Ongoing Charges over the lorger term.

Annual Report & Accounis 2023

Qutcome
NAV Total Return~ (Annualised) -35.5%  -18%
Renchmark Total Return (Annualised) -340%  -49%

*Trae NAV Tota Returts caculated by essurning dradends paid by the
Company are renvested 'n the assets of the Company on the relevant ex
dividend date Tae benchirarktola return assumes dividends are e nvested
an the relevant ex-dividend dates

Although this KPI has not been met in the current year, it

has over 5years. The NAV Total Return has exceeded the

benchmark for the previous 12 years.

Outcome

Compound Annual Dividend Growth™ 69%  49%

Compound Annual RFI _13.5% 5.7%

“ The fina: div dend nithe trme ser es divided by the nit:al dividend n the per od
raised to the power of 1 divided by the nureber of years nthe senes

The exceptional inflation figure for the year to 31 March

2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen

behind RPI on both a cne and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and

previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings through the

COVID pandemic. Over the longer term, the dividend growth

rate has comfortably exceeded RPI on an annualised basis

(10 years: 8.3% vs 4.0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3 6%).

Outcome

Average discount~

-4.7%

58%

Tfotalnumberof§harﬂes repurchased - -

» Average dary discount throughout the period of share price to NAY with
‘ncome Source Bloontberg

The discount has seen wide fluctuations through the year

as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The

average discount gver 1 yearis wider than we have seen for

awhile however, over 5 years 1 at a simiiar level to the prior

year level of -4.6% and to the ten year average of -4.9%.
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
Trie Board is conscious of expenses and aims to
deliver a balance between excellert service and costs.

The AIC defimition of Ongong Charges irciudes ary
direct property costs in addition to the management
fees and ail other expenses incurred inrunning a
peblicly hsted company. As no other investment frust
compantes hold part of the'r portfolio in direct property
{tney either hold 100% of the'r portfolio as property
securnties or as direct property), 1 addition to Ongong
Crarges as defined by the AIC, this statistic 15 shown
without direct property costs ir order to aliow a clearel
comparnson of everall administration costs with those
of otner funds investing in securities

Board monitoring

The Board monitors the Company's Ongoing
Charges, in comparison tc a range of other
nvestment trust companies of similar size, both
property sector speclalists and other sector
specialists The broker provides a list of companes
it believes is a reasonable companson Note there s
no other Investmenrt Trust spacial sing In property
reiated eguities,

Expenses are budgeted for eacn finarc.al year and
the Board reviews reports or actual and forecast
expenses during the year,

KPI
The Compary must continue to meet the requirements
of Sect’'or 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2070

Board monitoring

The Board rev ews finanrc al ~formaton ard forecasts at
each rmeeting which set out the reguirements outlined 1n

Secton 1158,

Qutcome

Omgoihg charges excluding

073%  0.64%

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees and direct
property costs 0&7% D.62%

The Compary's Orgoing Charges are competitive when
compared 10 the peer group

Costs over tne year have not increased significantly; the
ircrease in the ongoing charges percentage 1s as a result
of the fail in NAY over the year

QOutcome

The Drectors be'ieve that the conditions and cngong
reguiremerts Mave been met in respect of ine year to
31 Marcn 20723 and that the Company will continue 1o
meet the requiremerts

The KPIs are considered to be Atternat’ve Perforrrarce Measures as defired later mtne Araual Repart

TR Property Invesirment Trust



Principal and emerging risks

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. it has included below details of

the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commadity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.
Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
has brought challenges not seen for many years and particularly impacted the property

sector.

The legacy of COViD-19 has seen cngeing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are isted on the condon Stock
Excnange and the share price s determined by supply and
demand The shares may trade at a Ciscount ar premium
to the Company’s underlying NAV and this discount or
premium may fluctuate over time.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio

relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfalio is actively managed In addition

to nvestment securities, the Company also invests in
commercial property and accordingly, the portfoic may not
follow ar outperform the return of the benchmark,

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

The Board monitors the leve: of discount or premium at
wh.ch the shares are trading over the short and longer term

“he Boatd encourages engagemeni wth the shareholders
The Board receives reports at ezach meet'ng on the activity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by tne Fund Manager

The Company's shares are available through the Columbia
Threadneedle savings schemes zna the Company
participates n the active marketing of those schemes.
The shares are also widely available on open architecture
platforms and can be held directly <hrough the Company's
registrar,

The Board takes the powers 1o 1ssue ana to buy bac<
shares at each AGM.

The Manager's objective is to cutperform the benchmark
The Board reqularly reviews the Company's ‘ong-term
strategy and investment guidelines and the Manager's
relative positions aganst those

The Management Engagement Committee reviews the
Manager's performance annually The Board has the
powers 1o change the Manager if deemed appropriate
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly and
can adversely impact the value of the Company's porifolio
Although the portfalio s diversified across a number of
geograpnical regions, the investment mandate 1s focused
on a single sector ana therefore the portfolio will be sensitive
towards the property sector, as well as global equity markets
more general'y.

Property companies are subject to many factors which can
adversely affect their investment performance They include
the genera: economic and financial environment in wnich therr
tenants operate, interest -ates, availlabilty of investment and
development finance and regulations issued by governments
and authorities

Rising imterest rates have an impact on both capital va.ues
and distributions of property companies Higher interest rates
depress capital values as investors demand a margin over an
increased nsk-free -ate of return

Altvough the UK has now exited the European Union, the
structure of its relationship with Continerital Europe continues
to evolve and tnere could be an impact on occupat-on across
each sector.

The COV/D-1% giobal pandemic has changed the way we Ive
and wark and uncertanty remains regard.ng the impact on
economies and property markets around the world both inine
short and longer 1e7m

The invasion of Ukraime by Russia in February 2022 created
further market volatiity and unce-tamty which remains
Infiation and interest rates are at elevated ievels not seenin
over 10 years

Any strengthening or weakening of sterling will have a direct
impact as a proportion of our balance sheet is heldin non-GBP
denominates currencies The currency exposure is mantained
nline with the bencnmark and wil' change over ime As at

31 March 2023 66 4~ of the Company's exposure was 1o
currencies other than ster'ing

The Board receives and considers a regular report f-om the
Manager detailing asset allocat-on, Investment dec’sions,
cur-ency exposures, gezring levels and rat’onaie 1in -elation
to the prevalling market conditions

The report consicers the impact of & range of current
1ssues and sets out the Managel's response In posit.oning
the porifolio and the ongoing impications for the property
market, vatuations overal and by each sector

TR Praperty Investmenrt Trust



The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underly:ng portfolio putting pressure
onthe Company's ahiiity to grow the dividend could resul?
from a number of factors:

« Altvough most compariles negatively impacted by
COVID-12 returned to paying dividends during the yeer,
with many at pre-covid levels, rising ‘nterest rates have
posed a new threat. The e*fect on dividends has {in
generali not been fe:t through the financial year that we
arereport-:ng on but the increased debt costs wil have an
Ivipdacl on egrmings and hence distributions in future,

* pro ongec vacancies in the direct property portfolio and
lease or rental renegotiations as a result of longer-term
changes followng COVID-19,

strengthening of ste’ling reducing the value of averseas
dividend receipis in sterling terms The Company saw
a material increase in the level of earnngs in the years

leading up 1o the COVID-19 pandemic A s'gnificant factor

in this was the weakening of sterling following the UK's
decision 1o leave the EU {'Brexit'} Althougn this has now
passed, the value of ster ing may continue 1o fluctuate in
the near or medium term as ihe longer-term implications
of Brexit ana COVID-19 and the mpact e¢n the UK and
curopean economies become cearer The invasion of
Ukraine by Russia has a'so increased market uncertainty.
The longer-term implications will differ across the

European econemies This could lead to currency volatiity

Strengthening of sterling would lead to a fall in earnings;

+ adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or other

ncome rece ved by tne Company,

+ changes in the timing of dividend receipts from investee
Compan es,

+ legacy impac: of COV D-19 on working practces and
resulting changes in workspace demand, and

+ negative outlook leading to a reduct.on n geaning evels in
o-der to protect capital has an adverse effect on earnings

Accounting and operational risks

Disrupuion or failure of systems and processes
uncerpinn'ng the services provided by third part'es and the
risk that those suppliers provide a sub- standard service.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

The Board receives and considers requ:ar income
forecasts

:ncome forecast sensitivity to changes in FX rates is also
monitored.

The Company has substantial revenue reserves whicn are
drawn upon when reguized

The Board continues to moniior the impact of interest
rates, Brexit and COV D-19 and the Inng-termy imp’ cat-ong
for .ncome generation

Third-party service providers produce period ¢ reports
1o tne Board on their contral environments and business
continuation provisions on a regular basis.

The Management Engagemen: Committee considers the

performance of each of the se-vice providers on a regular

basis and considers ther ongo'ng appointment and terms
and conditions.

The Custodian and Depos'tary are responsible for the
safeguarding of agsets. In the event of a loss of assets
the Depositary must return assets of an identical type or
corresponding value unless it +s able to demonstrate that
the loss was the result of an event beyond its reasonable
control.
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of lnvesiment Trust Status

The Company has beern accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment 1rust company, subject to
continuing to meet the relevant elgibihty conditions.

As such the Company is exemnpt from capital gainstax on
the profits reaiised from tne sale of investments

Any breach of the re.evant eligibility conditions could leau
to the Company fasing investmant trust gtatus and bemg
subject to corporation tax on capital gans realised within
the Company’s portfolio,

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Ruies and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, failure to meet the reqguirements of the Aliernative
investment Fund Managers Regulations, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, European anc
cverseas legislation affecting UK companies

Failure to meet the required accounting standaras or
make appropr.ate aisclosures in the Half Year and Annual
Repaorts.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing. etther through the use of bank debt or der vatives,
may be utilised from time to time Whilst the use of
gearing 15 ntenaged to enthance the NAV talal return, 1t will
have the opposiie effect when the return ¢f the Company's
investiment portfoiio s negative or where the cost of debt
1s higher than the return from the perttolio

Other Financial risks

The Company's investment activities expose it 20 @ vanety
of financial risks which include counterparty credi sk,
iquidity risk and the valuation of financial .nsiruments
Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager or other key staff

40

The Investment Manager maonitors the investment portfalio,
mcome and proposed dividend levels to ensure that the
provisions of CTA 2010 are nol breachea Theresulis are
reported to the Board at each meeting

income forecasis are reviewed by the Company’s tax
advisor througn the year who alsc reports to the Board on
the year-eng tax posrion and an CTA 2010 compliance

The Board receives regular regulatory upaates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisers and
the Auditor The Board consicérs those repor:s and
recommendations and takes action accorangly

The Board receives an annual report and update from the
Depositary

Internal checkhists and review procedures a7e In place a*
service providers

The Board recewes regular reports from the Manager on
“ne 'evels of gearng 'n the portfolio These are considered
against the gea' ng lim ts set out in the Boards Investment
Gudelnes and also in the context of current market
canditions and sentiment Tne cast of debt is monitared
and a balance sought between term, cost and flexibiaty

Detaills of tnese rsks fogether with the polic es for
managing themare found in tne Notes 1o the Fancal
Statements

The Cha'rmian conducis regular meetings ~ith the Fund
Managemen: team

The fee basis pretects the core infrastructure and deptn
and gua'ly of -esources The fee structure incent vises
outperformance and ‘s fundamentar nthe ab ity 1o retain
key staff

TR Property (rvesiment Trust



Long-term viability

tn accordance with provis on 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company

to assess the prospects of the Company over

the longer term, the Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Company over the coming three
years. This period is used by the Board during the
strategic p anning process as .t considers this
periad of tme to be appropniate for a business of the
Company's nature and size

This assessment takes accourt of the Company's
current position and the polices and processes for

managing the principar and emerging r sks set out on
pages 37 to 40 and the Campary's ability to contirue

in operation ard to meet its llabilit'es as they fall due
over the period of assessment

Inmaking this statemert the Board carried out a
robust gssessment of tne principal and emerging

nsks facing the Company, including those that might

threaten its bus'ness model future performance,
selvency and liguid'ty,

In reaching their corclus'ons the Directors have
reviewed three year forecasts for the Company with
sensitvity analysis to a number of assumptions
investee compary dividend growth, irterest rates,
foreign exchange rates, tax rates and asset valie
growth.

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Company has a lorg-term investment
strategy under which it invests mainly in readily
realisable publicly listed securities and which
restricts the level of borrowings

+ Of the current equity portfoho, 50% could be
iquidated withir five trading days and 71% witfin
1Ctrading days.

+ OnaGroup bas's, current assets exceed current
Habilities at the Baiance Sheet Date

+ The Company invests in real estate related
companies which hold real estate assets and
invests . commercial real estate directly. These
Investments provide cash receipts in the form of

dwvidends, property income drstributions and rental

Incame

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

- The Company Is able to take advantage of its

cosed-end investment trust company structure
to hetd a proportion of its portfclio in less iguid,
direct property and the less hquid securities of
smaller comparies wit a view to long-term
cutperformance.

+ At the Balance Sheet date the Company had

£120 milion undrawn or its revolving :oan
facilities

- The structure nas a'so enabied the Company to

secdarelong-term financing EUR 50 million loan
notes issued in 2076 are due to mature at parin
2026 and GBP 15 murlior loan notes ‘ssued on the
same date are due 1o matdre at par in 2031

Theresult of th's ‘s that of our own debt, 372% nas
fixed interest rates (assuming ali loans are fu'ly
drawn) The flex'ble structure allows debt levels to
berapidly increased and reduced as needed

+ The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European

commercial property markets continued 1o
dimir'sh through tne vear This resulted ir dividend
receipts from investee companies in the current
year significantly stronger than the prior year as
the majarity of compan:ies have now returred to
paying dividends, aithougn some at lower levels
than before the pardemic

+ Tnenvasion of Ukramne in February 2022 has

created further market volatility and uncertainty
However the portfolic remains hrgnly liquid.

- Thecore part of the direct property portfclio s

defensively positioned, with 40% of the income
secured ta a major supermarket for over 10 years
and benefits from fixed uplifts. The balance of the
portfolio s focused on the industrial sector where
the supply and demand dynamics remain pesitive
from an occupational standpoint.

- The expenses of the Company are largely

predictabie and modest in compar:son with

the assets. Regular and robust monitering of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
throughout the year Analysis has shown that the
Company cou'd suffer a reduction in earnirgs of
86% and still be able to reet its igbilities from
revenue castflow as they fell due Expenses could
be met entirely from capita. if required due tc the
liquid nature of the partfolio.
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Long-term viability
continued

- Index I'rked income will benefit from the increase
N interest rates.

Giobal interest rate increases have adversely
affected the property sector and the resulting
‘ncrease ir the cost of debt wnl Litimately have an
impact on earn-nNgs.

Some companies fixed debt for the medium ferm
so, for these companies, the ‘'mpact of current
rates wil not be felt for a while

- The Company has no employees and
consegLently does not have redundancy or other
employment re'ated liabilties or resgorsibilties

- The Company retains title to its assets held by the
Custadian whien are subject to further safeguards
imposed on the Depositary.

- Theimpact of a range of factors have been
considered interms of the potential effect on
stering 66% of the portfolg is exposed to
currenc.es otter than stering.

The following assumptions have been madein
assessing the longer-term viability:

- Real Estate wi'l cortinue to be an investibie sector
of international stock markets and investors wi |
cortnue to wisn to have exposcre to that sector

« Closed-end mvestment trust cormrpanies will
continue to be in demand by investors and
regulation or tax legisiation w:ll not charge to
an extertto make the structure unattractve in
comparnson to other investrrent products

Tre performarce of the Company vl continLe
to be satisfactery. Shouid the Board deem trat
performarce is less than satisfactory, it has the
appropriate powers to replace tre Investment
Manager

The Company’s business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this to continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have areasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Apr 2072

Experience:

David became Cha.rman i udly 2020,
pricr 1o which he served as the Board's
Senior Ingependent Director {'SID7)

and Chairman of the Augit Committee
David spent 8 years as Finance Director
of M&G Group ple, wherebe was a
direcior of four equity nvestment
trusts, and more recently at Aviva

pic as Chref Finance Gfficer of Avive
General Insurance. He was Chawrman of
Aegon Asset Wanagement UK plc unti
September 2022 Dawvid s a Charterec
Accountant ard has hao a distingushec
career n the financiai services 'naustry

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Throaghout hig executive career David
has accumuated reievant skills in
firance aucit anc nsk management and
experience nthe invesyment INdusiry
His exper.ence as SID and Chairor a
number of boaras have bui significant
expererce in sharehoder ane nyesior
engagement.

Other appointments:

Dav:d s currently a Directer of the
Fragential Assurarce Companry, where
he Chars the Audit Committee

a4

1y

Kate Bolsover
LT LT T T

Appoeinted:
October 2079

Experience:

Kate previously workes for Cazenove
Group and u.P. Morgar Cazenove
between 1995 ana 2005 where she was
Managing Director of the mutual fund
bus'ness and latterly director of Corperate
Cornmunications Pror 1o that, she worked
extensively inthe investment fund ndustry
and was Maraging Director of Baring's
mutual funds group Kate was previously
anon-executive director of JPMargan
American Investrmen: Trust ple, Senior
Independent Director of Montanaro UK
Srmaller Compan es Trust and Chairman
and Trustee of Tomorrow's People

Skills and contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience Kate
contributes s.grificant anarelevant sklls
of the nvestrment ndustry Her roe or
varous boards also gives her the relevant
experence N sharehoder arc nvestor
engagement.

Other appointments:

Kate s currenty Cha rmman of Fioely
AslanValaes PLC arc Senior Irdeperdent
Director of Invesca 3ond income Slus
Limied. She s aiso a ron-execytive
Director of Baii'e Griford & Co Lid ard of
Bel'evue Healthcare Trust

Tim Gillbanks

Appointed:
January 2318

Experience:
T mis g Chartered Accountant, ¢iih

0 vears experience in the financia'
services and investment irdustry. Most
recently be spent T 3years at Columbia
Threadneedle Investments, iritially
as Chief Financial Officer, then Chief
Operating Officer and fina ly as inter rm
Chief Executive Officer

Skills and contribution to the Board:

T brings a wide exper'ence, partizularly
in firanzial services and investment
management His previous financial
expenence aunrg his executive career
nforrrs him nk s role as the Chairmran of
the &udit Commrittee

Other appointments:

T'm.s currently a Non-Execuirve Sirector
of Brown Shipley & Co Limited Janus
Henderson (UK Irvestors Limred anc
Jarus Herdersor Groun Holdings Lirriteo.
He s ziso Vice-Charr of the Boara of
Trustees of 8loog Cancer UK
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Sarah-Jane Curtis

T b xeo b0 oo

Appointed:
Jaruary 2020

Experience:

Sarah-Jare s a Member of the Roya
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. She
was previously Business Director at
Bicester Village for Value Retail. Prior
wothat, Sarah-dane was & giractor of
Covent Garden for Capita: and Counties
PLC. She has also worked for Grosvenor
for 24 vears. includ.ng as London Estate
Directar (retall/res dertialy and Fund
Manager for L verpoolONE,

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gaired extensive
experience durng ber varied

career, particuiarly in the retall and
experience sectors and in fund and
‘nvestment management actvities.

Other appointments:
Sarah-uare s currently Property
Director of Bicester Mction as welias a
consultant to Value Retail PLC.

Arnua' Report & Accounts 2023

Andrew Vaughan

T ERETL L L

Appointed:
August 2022

Experience:

Andrew joined Redeveo UK N 2000 as
Managing Director and was appointec CEC
2071, He begartus career at Friends
Provident where he was & fund manager

Andrew spent three years at Moorfeld Group

as an Investment Spec giist before jo ning
Regevco Hehas a BScinUrban Estate
Surveying.

Skills and contribution to the Beard:
Andrew brings deep experience as a pan-
European cirect property inrvestor

Other appointments:
Andrew 1s Chief Executive Office of
Redevco BV

Busola Sodeinde

O R I i S

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Buscla sz Chartered Management
Accountant who has spent most of her
executive career in Financial Services. Unt
2019 she was a Managng Director/Chief
Financiai Officer at State Street Global
Markets EMEA, prior to which she was
Finance director to the Corporate Finance
tearm of Jedtsche Bank Capital Markets
Busaclaisthe founder of a digital publhishing
firm focused onliteracy andis aiso a
supporter of women-led ventures.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Busola has considerable experience in
the finarca! services sector and from her
non-executive career has gained expertise
nauditand risk She also has experience
indigital (social) media and consumer
engagement.

Other appointments:
Busola is a non-execut ve airector of
Hargreave Haie Al VCT PLC, The
Ombudsman Services, a trustee of the
Church Commissioners for England, where
she sits on the Audit & Risk Committee, and
a Trustee of The Scouts Assocation.
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Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

[ NSt IS

Marcus Phayre-Mudge joined the managemert team
for the Caompany at Hendersorn Slobal investors in
January 1997, initially manag ng the Company's direct
property portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managirg a number of UK and pan European
real estate equity funds in addition to activities in the

Trust Marcus moved to Thames River Caprial ir Gctober

2004 where he s also fund manager of Thames River
Property Growth & Income Fund Lmited. Prior to joining
Henderson, Marcus was aninvestment surveyor at
Krght Frank (1990} and was made ar Associale Partrer
i the fund management division (1995). He q.a ified as
a Chartered Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hens) n
Land Managemert from Reading University

__EN

George Gay

George Gay mas been the D rect Property Fund Manager
since 2008 Hejomed Tramres River Capitalin 2005 as
ass stant direct property manager and qua ifled as a
Chartered Surveyor in 2006 Gearge was previously at
nicke City iImvestmert agert, Morgan Pepper where as
an nyestment graduate ne gained considerable imdustry
experience He nas ar MA n Property Valaation and Law
from C ty Universty

Jo Elliott

. [N

Jo Elliott has heen Finance Manager since 1995, first at
Hendersor G obal Investors then, since Jaruary 2005,
at Thames R'ver Capital, when she joined as CFO for tne
property team She jomed Henderson Globa Investors
in 1995, where sne most recently heid the position of
Director of Property Finance & Operations, Europe
Previcusly ske was Corporate Finance Manager with
London ard Edirburgh Trust ple and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc JohasaBSc (Hons) n Zoology from the Univers ty
of Nottirgham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
with Emst & Young in 1988

Alban Lhonneur

A ban Lhonneur, Depuaty Furd Manager, joined Thames
River Capita 1Ir AugJst 2008 He was previously at
Ciugroup Giobal Markets as an Equity Research analvst
focusirg on Cortnerta Eurapean Real Estate Priorte
that e was at Societe Gerera e Secdnities, where he
focused on transport eguity research He hasa BSc

Ir Busiress and Managemenit from the ESC Tou ouse
ircudirg ore year at Brunel Urwersity, Londor

He aso attended CERANM Nice H gh Business Schoo

[~ 2JC5 he cbta —ed a post-graduate Spec aused Master
" Fnarce ~ 2005 from ESCR-EAR
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Report of the Directors

Tne Directors present the audited financiat statements

of the Group and the Company and thelr Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March
2023, The Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust
plc and its wnolly owned subsidiaries. As permitted by
leg:s.ation, some matters normatly inciuded in the Report
of tre Directors have been inciuded in the Strategic Report
because the Board considers therm to be of strategic
importance Therefore, the review of the business of tre
Company, recent events ard outlook car be found on
pages 410 42

Status

The Company 1s an investment company, as defired in
Section 833 of the Comrpanies Act 2006 and operates as
aninvestment trust v accordarce with Sectior 1158 of
the Corporat'on Tax Act 2070

The Company has a single share class, Ord nary shares,
with a nomiral value of 25p each which are premium
listed on the Londor Stock Exchange

The Company has rece'ved confirmation from HM
Revenue & Customs thal t has been accepted as ar
approved investment trust for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporatior Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved comparies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investrmert Trust (Approved Company) {Tax)
Reg.lations 2011 (Statutory Instrument 20171/2999),
The Directors are of the opinicn that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct ts affairs so as
to mairtan irvestment trust status. The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct
its affarrs, n such a way as to comp'y witn the Individual
Savings Accounis Regulations. The Ordinary shares can
be held in individua: Savings Accounts (ISAS)

Results and dividends

At 31 March 2023 the net assets of the Company
amounted to £968 mulion (2022: £1,563 million), on a per
share basgis 305 13p (2022 492 43p) per share

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to
17.22p (2022- 13 63p) and the Directors recommend tne
payment of a final dividend of 9.85p (2022 9.20p) per
share bringing the total dividend for the yvearto 15.50p
(2922 14 50p). In arriving at therr dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the income forecast for the year to
March 2024.

Annuai Report & Accounts 2023

Performance detaiis are set out in the Financial Highlights

or page 2 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 35 and 36.
The Chairman’s Statement and the Manager's Report give fuil
details and analysis of the results for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity

AL 371 March 2023 the Carrpany had 317,350,980 (2022:
317.350980) Ordinary shares in issae.

At the AGMin 2022 the Directors were given power to buy
back upto 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since that AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares ander
that authorty, which will expire at the 2023 AGM The Board
wili seek 1o renew the adtnonty to make market purchases
of the Company's Grdinary shares at this years AGM

Sirce 1 April 2023 to the date of this report, the Company
nas made no market purchases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares
w'll be repurchased

Management arrangements and fees

Detalls of the maragement arrangements and fees are

set out In the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning or. page 58 Total fees paid to the
Manager in any one year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Sharenolders’
Funds Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2023
amount 1o 0 6% (2022 2.0%) of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. No performance fee was earned in the year ended
37 March 2023 (2022 £24,489,000).

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Corrpany financial staterments for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
going concern basis in accordance with UK-adopted
irternational accounting stardards and in conformity with
the requrement of the Companies Act 2006. The financia
staterments have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice Financia,
Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts' (SORP) to the extent that it is consistent
with UK-adopted Internationa accounting standards

The accounting po'icies are set out in note 1 to t1e
Finarcial Statemerts on pages 80 to 83.
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Company's Firancal Instrements comprise its
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrowings

and debtors and creditors that arise directly from its
operations sJch as sales and purchases awaiting
settlerrent, profit or loss balances on derivative
instrumenris ard accrued income and expenses The
financial risk maragement objectives and policies arising
from its financial instruments and exposure of the
Company tarisk are disclosed n note 11 1o the financia!
staterments.

Risk management and internal cantrol

The Board has overall resporsibility for the Group's
systern of risk management and interral control and

for reviewing its effectiveness. The Portfone Manager is
respensible for the day 1o day investment managerment
decisions on beha!f of the Group. Accounting and
Company Secretarial services ntave both been cutsourced

The systerm of risk managerment and mtérnal controi ams
to ensure that the assels of tre Group are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are maintamed, and the
financial information used withir the business and for
publication is reable Control of the risks identified,
coverng financ.al, operationa!, compliance and risk
management, 1S embedded n the controls of the Group
by a senes of requ'ar investrment performance and
attrbution statermments, financial and risk analyses, AIFNM
and Portfolio Manager reports and gLarterly control
reports,

Key risks have been identified and contrals putin

place to mitigate them, inciud ng those not directly the
responsibility of the ATFM or Portfono Manager The key
risks are explaired ir more detan in the Strategic Report
on pages 37 to 40

The effectiveness of each third-party provider's interral
cortrols s assessed ¢n an ongoing bas.s by the
Compl'ance and Risk departments of the AIFM anrd
Portfolio Manager, tre Admnistrator and the Company
Secretary Each mainta'ns its own systerm of risk
management ard interral control and the Board and
Audit Committee recelve regu.ar reports from them
Tre sk maragemrent ard internal control systerm

Is desigred to provide reasonable, but not absalote,
assurance against matera misstaterert or oss ardto
~arage ratrer tran e'minate, r'sk of falure toc achieve
chjectives Asthe Company rasnoemployees ard its
operatorar functons are undertaker by thrd part eg,

az

the Aucht Committee does rot consider it necessary for
the Company to establish its own internal audit function
Instead, tne Audit Corrmittee rebes on internal contro
reports received from ts principa’ service providers to
satisfy itself as to the controls in place

The Board has estabiished a process for identify ng,
evaiuating ard managing any major risks faced by the
Group It undertakes an annual review of the Group's
systemn of risk managéement and .nternal contreiin ine
with relevant guidarce Business risks have also been
analysed by the Board and recorded ima risk map tnat
15 reviewed regularly. Each quarter the Board receives a
formal report from each of the AlFM, Portfolio Manager,
the Admiristrator and the Company Secretary detailing
any idertified rternal cortrol farures or errors

The Board also cons'ders tne flow of nformatior and
the interaction betwesn tne third-party service praviders
and tne controig in p'ace to ensure accuracy and
compreteness of the recording of assets and ircome,
The Board rece'ves a report from the Portfolio Manager
setting out tne key contrels in operation.

fhe Board also has d'rect access o Company Secretanal
advice and services provided by Coumbia Threadneed.e
[nvestment Business Limited whick through s
norninated represertative, 1s responsibie for ensuring
that the Board and Comm ttee procedures are followed
and that applcable regulations are comphied with

These controls have been in p.ace throughout the year
under review and up to the date of sigrung the accounts

Key risks idertified by tne Auditor are considered by the
Audit Committee to ersure robust internal controls and
monitorng procedures are 'n place 1N respect of these
risks on anongoing bas's.

Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM’)

Tre Company's AGM wil be beld at the Royal Automobile
Club. 88/91 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS on Thursday

20 CLly 2023 at 2 30pm The Notice of AGM s set out on
pages 11C to 114 ard exp'anatery notes foilow on pages
115 and 116

Material interests

There were rc cortracts subsisting during or at the end
of the year nwhich a D rector of the Compary 1s or was
rmatena.ly rterested and whicn 's or was sign-ficant n
relatior to the Compary's business No Director ras a
contract of service w th tre Compary Furtner deta’ s
regarding the Directors appaintment 'etters can be
faund o~ page 57

TR Property Investrren: Trust



Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The Company confirms that there are no items which
require disclosure under Listing Ruie 9 8 4R in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other sharehoiders’
rigts, shares may be 1ssued with such rights and
restrictions as the Company may by ordinary resolution
decide, or ((f there is no sucnresglution or so far as it does
not make specific provisicn) as the Board may decide.
Subject to the Articies of Association (the Articles), the
Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders’ rights,
uniss.ed shares are at the disposal of the Board.

Voting

At a genera: meeting of the Company, wnen vot.ng
Is Lrdertaken by way of a poil, each share affords ts
owrerore vote

Restrictions on Voting

No member shal! be entitled to vote If ne nas been served
with a restriction notice (as defined in the Artices) after
failure to provide the Company with information concerning
interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Companies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Voles are exercisable at a general meeting of the
Corrpany in respect of whieh the business being voted
upon s beng heard. Votes may be exercised in person, by
praxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate
representatives.

The Articres provide a deadline for submissior of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {or such shorter time as the
Board may determine) before the meeting (not excluding
nor-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares inthe Company may be heid i uncertificated
form and, subject te the Articies, title to uncertficated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system Subject
tothe Articles, any member may transfer all or ary of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual
formorin any other form which the Board may approve

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 March 2023, the folowing snarehoders had notified
that they held over 3% of the voting rights in the Company on
anon- discretionary basis:

Shareholder i
Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.0%
Interactive investor Share Dealing Services 8 4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4.9%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 55%
Quilter Chevict Investment Management Ltd 37%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stanley Group plc 32%
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%
* SBee ghove for further infor~ation onthe vot ng r ghts of Ord'nary shares

Since 31 March 2023 the Company has been informed that
integrafin Holdings ple hold 4.0% of tre vating rights in the
Company

Articles of Association

The Comrpany's Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special reso.Ltion at a General Meeting of
the shareho.ders They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are avallable to view on the Cocmpany's webs'te.

Corporate Governance

Fuldetai's are giver in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 to b5 The Corporate Governance Report
forms part of thig Directors Report
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Directors is accountahle to sharehoders for
the governance of tne Company's affairs This staterment
describes how the principles of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the 'Cade } issued by the Finarcial
Reporting Coungt (the 'FRC') 11 2018 have heen applied
to the affairs of the Company. The Code can be viewed at
www fre.org.uk,

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In applying the principies of the Code the Directors

nave also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Goverrance published by the AIC (the 'AIC Code’), of which
the Company is a member. The AIC Code estabishes the
framework of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trast companies. Farthermore, the AIC Code
ras full endorsemert of the FRC, which means that AIC
members who report against the AIC Code meet their
obligations under the Code and the related d'sciosure
requirements contained in the Listing Rules. The AIC Code
can be viewed at www thea'c co uk.

The Directors believe that dunng the year under review the
Company nas complied with the maimn pnnciples and relevant
provisions of the Code, insofar as they apply 1o the Company's
business, and wth the provisions of the AIC Code,

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company d-d not comply with
the following provisions of the Code in the year erded 31
March 2023

Provision 9. Due to the nature and structure of the
Company the Board of ron-execLtive directors does rot
feel 1is appropriate to appoimnt a chief executve

Provison 19 The Chairman has served o the Board far
~ore than nine years. In accordarce w.ih the AIC Code,
the Board nonethe ess considers that he s independert.
He will stand dowr at tre forthcoming AGM.

Provision 24 Tne Board beiieves that all Directors, includimg
the Chairman, shouid gt on all of the Board's Committees

Provis'or 26 As the Compary has 1o empioyees and s
operational furcticrs are urdertaken by thard parties the
Audit Committee does rot corsider it appropr ate for the
Company to estab’ish its own internal aud-t function. The
Comipany's service providers prov de assarance of ther
effective system of nsk management ard interra’ and
control

Frovision 32. Tre Beard does rot have a separate
Remuneration Commi ttee The furctions of a
Remuneration Commuttee are carr'ed out by tne
Maragement Engagerrent Committee

&
[

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently corsists of six Directors, all of
whom are ron-executive. The Board's independence,
including that of the Chairmar, has beer cons.dered
and all of the Directors are deemed to be
independent in cnaracter and have no relatiorskips
or crrcumstances which are likely to affect their
judgement,

The Board s.bscribes to the view expressed in the

AIC Code that long-serving Directors should not be
prevented fror forming part of an independert majorty.
It does not consder that the length of & Director's tenure,
Inisclation, reduces their abiity to act independently.
The Board's policy on terure 1s that continuity and
experience add significartly to the strength of the Board,
although it believes in the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refresnment of 'ts composition.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of d versity and

as at the date of this report it comprises three men
ard tnree women Divergity is taken into account as
part of the recraitment, appointment and succession
planning process The Board 1s committed to
appontirg the most appropriate candidate, regardless
of gender or ather forirs of dwversity ard therefore no
targets nave been set agaimst wh ch to report

In accordance w'ith Listing Rule 9 8.6R (9) (10)
and (11) the Board has provided the following
irformatior in rewation to its diversity:

Board Gender as at 31 March 20230

Number

of senior

Number Percentage positions

of Board of the on the

members Board Board

Men 3 50% 2@
Wwomen 3 50%® 1@

The Campany does not disciose the number of Directors
‘nexecutive management as this s not appiicabe foran
INvesimMent irust company
The three senior positons are Chairman of the Board, Sen-or
independen: Drector and Chainman of the Audi Gormm 1tee
Note the posi: on of the Chairman of the Audic Comrittee
s noteurrenty defined as a sen of postton under the Lstng
Ruies, however the Board believes that, for an nvestment sruss
company, { should be regarded as such az 1 g broad yequ va e
“othe Chief F nanc a Officer of a rrading company
Thig rreets the Listig Rules targe: of 40%

PThisreersthe Lstng Ruestargerof 1.
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Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023 1

Number
of senior
positions
on the
Board

Number Percentage

of Board
members

of the
Board

White British
ar other White
(including minority-

white groups) 5 83% 3=
Mixed/Multiple
Ethnic Groups 1 17% -

i he Company does not d sclose the nuriber of Directors
nexecutve Managerient as this s ot appscable foran
nvestmen: trusT company

- Thethree semior postonsgare Cha rman of the Board, Senior
Independent Drector and Charman of the Audr; Comm Tee
Note the pasiionof the Charman of the Audr Commitiee
15 nat currently defined as a senior pos tion under he Listng
Ru es, however the Board bel eves tha:, for aninves:ment rus!
company, 1 should be regatded as such as t s broadly equivalent
tothe Chief Financial Officer of a rading company

The information mcluded - the above tables has
been obtained throLgn questiornaires completed by
the individual Diectors

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles of Association,
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given
by spec.al resolution, the business of the Company
is managed by the Board wko may exercise all the
powers of the Company, wkether re.ating to the
management of the business of tne Company or not.
In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of
the Company to borrow meoney and to mortgage or
charge any of its urdertakings, property, assets and
urcalled capital and t¢ 1ssue debentures and other
securities and to give security for any debt, liability or
chbligation of the Company to any third party

Board meetings

There are no contracts or arrangements with third
parties which affect, alter or terminate upon a
cnange of control of the Company

Directors

Simon Marnson retired from the Board at the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM . Andrew Vaughan
was appointed a Director on 1 A.Lgust 2022 and
Busocla Sodeinde joined the Board 0on 24 January
2023 The Directors’ biographies are set out

on pages 44 and 45. All Directors witl stand for
re-election by shareholdors at the fortncoming
AGM in accordance with tne Code, with the exception
of David Watson, who wilt retire fram the Board at
the conclusion of the meeting. Kate Bolsover wil!
succeed nim as Chairman ard Tim Gilibanks will
become Senicr Indeperdent Director,

Board committees

The Board has established an Aadit Committee,

a Nominatior Committee and a Management
Engagement Committee, which aiso carries out
the functions of 2 Remuneration Committee. All
the Directors of the Company are non-executive
and serve on eack Commrittee of the Board. It nasg
been the Company's palicy 1o include all Directors
on all Committees This encourages unity, c.ear
communicatior and avoids duplication of discussion
betweer the Board and the Committees

The roles and responsibilities of each Committee
are set out in the individual Committee reports
which follow. Each Comimittee has written terms
of reference which clearly define its responghilities
and duties These can be found on the Company's
website, are avaliable on request and wili also be
avallable for inspect.on at the AGM

The nurrber of meetings of the Board ard Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are shown below:
Board
Attended

Eligible

6 6
6 6
2 2
6 6
6 6
4 4
2 2

David Watsan

Tim Gilibanks

Simon Marrison’

Kate Bolsover

Sarah-Jane Curtis

Andrew Vaughan:

Busolz Sodeinde”
Retired from the Board on 26 Ju y 2022

“appainted to tne Board on 1 August 2022
Apponted to the Board on 24 January 2023

Audit
Attended

O =N =N

MEC Nomination

Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

O =2 NN N =2 NN
T Y o T Ry
P T T Y o I S

In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a rumber of ad hoc meetings which

are convened ag and when necessary
Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

The Board s responsible for the effective stewardsnip
of the Company's affairs Certair strategic 1ssues

are montored by the Board at meetings against a
framework which has beer agreed with the Manager.
Additional meetings may be arrarged as required. The
Board has a forma: schedule of matters specifically
reserved for its decision, which are categonsed under
various headirgs, Including strategy, management,
structure, capital, finarcial reporting, internal cortrols,
gearing, asset al.ocation, share price discount, contracts
investrment policy, finarce, risk, investment restrictions,
performance, corporate governarce and Board
membership and appointments.

In order to enable therm to discharge ther resporsibiities,
all Directors have full and timely access to relevant
information. At each meeting, the Board reviews the
Company's investment performance and considers
firancial analyses and other reports of an operatioral
nature The Board monitors compliance with the
Company's cbjectives and is responsible for setting asset
allocation and investment and gearing imits withuin whicn
tne Portfolio Marager has discretion to act and thus
supervises the management of the mvestment portfolio
which is contractually desegated to the Portfolic Manager

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
investments in unguated investrments and any
nvestmerts in funds maraged or adv sed by the
Portfolio Manager It nas also adopted a procedure
for Directors, In the furtherance of therr duties totake
irdependent professional adv ¢e at the expense of the
Company.

Conflicts of interest

In line witn tne Companies Act 2006, the Board has tne
power to authonise any potential conflicts of interest
that may arise and Impose such imits or condtions

as itthinks fit A register of potential conflcts 's
rrairtained ard s reviewed at every Board meetng
toensdre aidetal s are kept ap-to-date Appropriate
author sat’'or will be sougnt priot to the appontmert of
any rew Directar or if any new conflicts arise

Relations with shareholders

Shareo der relat.ons are given high prier ty by the
Board, the AlFM and tre Portfol'o Manager The prime
medurs by wnich the Company communicates with
srareno ders is tarough tne Half Year and Annwal
Reports woich airm 1o prov de snareho ders with a cear
Jnderstarding of the Corrpany’s activit es and therr
results. This irformation ‘s supplemerted by the daily
calcaiation of the Net Asset Vaiue of the Company's
Ordnary shares which iz published on the Lendor
Stock Exchange

This information is aico avarable on the Conrpany's
website, www trproperty com, together with a
monthly factsneet and Manager commentary.

The Annual Report and Accounts and Notice of the
AGM areissued to shareholders so as to provide at feast
twenty working days’ notice of the AGM, n accordance
with corporate goverrance best practice Shareholders
wishirg to lodge questions in advance of the AGM, or to
contact the Board at any other time, are invited to do so
by writing to the Company Secretary at the registered
address givenon page 118

General presentations are gven to botn sharehaolders
and analysts foilowing the pub ication of the arnua:
resulis Al mreetings between the Manager and
sharehoiders are reported to t1e Board

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Section 172 of the Carrpanies Act 2006 requires
dinectors to act ir good faith ard in a way that 1s the
most likely to premote the success of the Compary
inaccordance wih trereqLirements of the
Companies {M'scellanecus Reporting) Regulations
2018 beow the Company expars how the
Directors have discharged tneir duty under section
172 durng the year. Fu-fi I'g th.s duty naturally
sJpports the Corrpany 11 achieving its Irvestment
Object've and nelps to ensure that a | decisions are
made in a responsible and susta nable way.

Cn appointment Directors are provided with a
detaned nduction cutlin ng therr daties, egally

and reguiatary, as a Drector of a UK public .o ited
company and continue tG recelve regllar re evant
technica’ updates ard tra ning The Direclors also
have access to the adv.ce ard services of the
Compary Secretary and, when deemed recessary,
they nave t~e opportunity to seek iIndependenrt
professioral advice in the furtherance of their daties
as a Director, at the Company's expense.

Decision making
The ‘mportance of stakerolder cons derations,
In particular in the context of decision-raking, is
regdlary brought to tne Board's attertior by the
Comrpary Secretary ard taken into account at every
Board meeti~g. The Board corsiders the impact
that ary materia. decis onw I have on all relevanrt
stakehoders to ersurethat itis making a decis'on
that promotes the iongter™ success of tne Compary,
whether th sbe, for exarmrple nre atonto dvidends
rew Mvestment opportun t'es or the Cormpany's
future strategy Ir additon, t~e Board together with
the Marager ho ds a meeting focused or strategy
on ar arnua basis to ook ahead in the market and
anhicipate potentia scenaros and how tnis may
mpact tne Cormpany’'s stakenolders

TR Property Irvestmert 7|
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Stakeholders

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company's stakeho'ders and ersures that they are
considered during all its discussions and as part of its
decision-making Since the Comrpany 1s an investment
trust company that 1s externally managed, the Company
does not nave ary employees {tie Directors have a

Company), nor does it have a direct impact on the
communty or envirgnment in the conventional sense
The Beard recognises its key stakeholders and explains
below why these stakeholders are considered important
to the Company and the actions taken to ensure that
their interests are taken nto account.

Letter of Appointment and are rot employees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Sharehoider support is
essentia: 1o the ex'stence
of the Campany ana
delivery of the .ong-term
strategy o the business

The Manager

Holding the Company's
shares offers investors a
hquid investment venicle
through wnich they can
obtain exposure to the
Company's diversified
portfelio The Investment
Manager's performance s
critical for the Company
to successfully deliver its
investment strategy and
meet its abjective

Anrual Report & Accounts 2023

The Company has over 3,000 shareholcers, including inshitutonal and retail invesiors

The Board is committed to maintaining open channe.s of communication and to engage with
sharehoiders namanner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below

- Annual General Meeting — the Company welcomes and encourages attenaance and
partic pat on from shareholders at 1ts AGM. The Manager gives a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the future outlock. Shareno'ders have the
opportunity 1o meet the Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly
The Company values any feechack anc quest.ons it receives frem sharehoiders ahead of
and during the AGM ang taxes action or makes changes If anc when appropriate.

+ Publications — the annua: and half year reports are made aval able on the website and
sent 1o shareholders. These pukiications provide informaton on the Company and its
portfolio of investrments anc 2 hetler understanaing of the Company's financial position
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAY an the London Stock Exchange and
mon:h'y factsheets on the Company's website, The Company s open to feedback from
shareholders to improve 11s pub'ications

Shareholder meetings — the Manager meets with snareholders periccically and often and
feeaback 1s shared with the Boarc

.

.

Working with the Brokers - the Manager ana Brokers work together to mamtam d:alogue
with shareholoers and prospective mvestors at scheauwed meetings The Board s provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if recuired

Shareholder concerns - n the event that shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are we-come to <o s0 at any ime by writ ng to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senicr Independent Director 1s also available ta shareholcers if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman nas fasiea to
resolve ar for which such contact 1s inappropriate.

.

Mantaining a ciose ang constructive working refationsnip with the Manager is crucial, as the
Board and the Manager hoth aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective, Important components in the collaboration with
the Manager, representative of the Company's culture include those listed beiow,

- Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and ‘nnovative thinking.

« Ensuring that the impact on the Manager 1s fullv considered and understcod before any
business decision is made

« Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managea effectively.

The Beard holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an angoing basis inaddiion, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure g c-ose dialogue 's maintained
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

Arange of advisers
enables the Company

to function and ensure
matit meets s relevant
obligations as an
investment trust company
and a constituent of the
FTSE 250.

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company's ab'ty 1o take
advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

Regulators

The Company can only
operate with the approva,
of its regulators who have
alegitimate interes® 1n how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

Investee Companies

Fortfollo companies are
ultimately shareholders’
asse’s and the Boarc
recagr'ses tne Impo-tance
of good stewardship and
communicaion with
investee companes In
meeting the Company's
mvestment oljectve and
strateqy.

The Board 1s a.ways rurdful of the requirement to act n

The Boara mainiains reqular contact with i1s key externa providers and receves regular
eporting from them through Boara and comm itee meetings, as well as outsice of the
reguiar meeting cycle Their advice, as well as Their needs and views, are routinely taken into
sccount. Tne Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment at least annuaily 1o ensure that the key serv.ce providers
continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately remunerated to deliver

the expected level of service The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the control
environments in piace at each service provider as appropriste

The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it is a well-managed business, capabie of
aelivering long-term returns consistently

The Board regularly considers how it and the Company meet the various regulatory and
statutory obligat.ons and follows voluntaty and best-practice guidance, including naw aimy
governance decisions it makes can have an impact on 28 stakeholders, bothin the shorter
znd 1n the longer term.

The Manage- communicates regu'atly with portfolic companies and s an engaged
shareholder {on beha'f of the Company) Tne 3oard montors the Manager's stewardsnip
arrangements and receves reqular feedback on meet ngs with t4e management of porifalio
companies and voling at the'~ general meetings

Dividends

tne best interests of shareho'ders as a whole and o nave
regard to the cther requiremerts of section 172 wnicn form
part of Board's decision-making process The faiiowing key
decisions taken by the Board during the year ended 371 Marcn
2023 are exarpes of this.

Gearing

Dur ng the firancial year, the Company cortinued to
Ltlise its existing revolving annaal loan facnites and
followirg a review of the ava labie options each were
renewed or broad'y simnar terms as the renewd’'s fe'
due throughout tre year The Board is keen to Tawta n
a wide range of barking re'ationsh ps to ersure trat it
has access to a diverse range of terms ard s not reaant
or any one provider The fac [ tes provide flex bl ty and
complerrent the ,orger-term private placerent fixed
tern debt that sin place

54

s

Subyect 1o srareholder approval of the proposed final
dwidend, the Company wili pay a tota' dividend of 15 50p for
the financia: year, representing an increase of ©.9% or the
previoLs year Income rase sharply as companies resumed
paying div dends and, as a result, this year's dividend is
covered by earnings. Intial forecasts for the financ'a' year

t@ 31 March 2024 dicate that revenue may fal' agar as a
qumber of companies have susperded dvidends. Tne Board
recogrises the impartarce of dividends to sharehoders ard,
subject to carefu: review of the Compary's revenue forecasts
ard reserves together wth the irvestmert outiock, tremairs
prepared ta . se reverue réserves to support the div dends
paid to snarenaiders over penods of income skortfa'i or
volatility for dentified reasons

TR Property Investment Trust



Portfolio management

During the vear the Board contirued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company’s
Investment olyective within ar appropnate risk

framework The Board continued to consider the impact

on the Compary (including portfolio activty, risks and
opportunites, gearing, revenue forecasts and the aperations
of ather third party prov.ders) of a number of events through
the financial year 1o ensure that the portfolo bad sufficient
resilience together with the Company's operational structure
to meet the unprecedented circumstances,

Culture and business conduct

The Board believes that having a good corporate

cdlture, particu.arly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareto'ders and other key stakeholders, a.ds delivery of

its leng-term strategy. In line witk th.s purpose, the Board
promotes a culture of openness, debate and ntegrity through
ongoing engagement with tne Manager and with its otner
service providers The Directors agree that establishing and
mantaning a healthy corporate culture within the Board and
inits interaction with tre Manager, shareholders and other
stakenolders wil' support the delivery of its purpese, vaiues
and strategy. The Board strives to ensure that its culture is in
fine wth the Commpany's purpose, values and strategy

The Company nas a number of policies and procedures

in place to assist with maintaining a cu'ture of good
governance including those relating to diversity, Directors’
conflicts of rterest and Directors’ dealings in the Company's
shares The Board assesses and monitors compl-ance with
these policies as we | 35 the gereral cuiture of the Board
reg.larly through Board meetings and in particular during
the annual evaluation process (for more information see the
Board evaluation section on page 56)

The Board seeks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaiuates their service on a requiar basis as
described on page 58. The Board cons'ders the culture of the
Manager and other service providers, including their policies,
practices and behaviour, through regular reporting from
those stakeholders and in particular during the annual review
of the performance and continuing appoint-ment of all service
providers.

Employee, social impact and wider community
The Board recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detait nformation about numan rights,
employees and community issues, including irformation
about any pol'cies it has in reiation to those matters and

the effectiveness of those policies These requirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as it has no
employees, al. the Directors are non-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functors to third-party service
providers. Therefore, the Company has not reported furtherir
respect of these provisions,

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Directors’ indemnity

Directors’and Officers’ liability nsurance cover ‘s in
place in respect of the Directors The Company's Articles
of Association aliow it, 1o the extent permitted by the
Companies Acts, to indemnify the Directors aganst any
hability.

The Company has entered irto deeds of indemnity for

the benefit of each Director of the Cempany inrespect of
tabilities which may attach to them in their capacity as
Directors of the Company Tnese provisions, wn.ch are
qualifying third party indemn’ty provisiors as defined by
section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were introduced in
Jandary 2007 and currently remain in force

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors who were members of 1he Board at the time
of approving the Directers’ Report are listed or pages 44
ard 45 Having made enqures of fellow Cirectors and of the
Company's Auditor, eact of the Directors confirms that:

- sofar as they are aware there is no irformation of which
the Company's Auditor 1s unaware, and

- each Director has taken ali the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make themse'ves aware of
any relevant audit nformat.on and tc establish trat the
Company's Auditor 1s aware of that nformation,

Tks information 1s given and should be interpreted i
accordance with the provisions of Sect'on 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

L attan

By order of the Board,

Columbia Threadneedle Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary

T
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

+ Review the Board and its Committees and make
recormmendations to the Board 10 relation to structure,
size and corrposition, the balance of knowledge,
experience and skili ranges,

Consider succession plannmng and tenure poticy and
oversee the deveiopment of a diverse pipeling,

Consider the re-eiection of Directors, and
Review the outcome of the Board evaiuation process

The Nominat'on Committee meets at least annually,
and more frequenrtly as and when reguired. It 1ast met in
March 20232

Activity during the year

The Committee discussed succession planing of

the Board, ists tenure ard diversity poiicies. 1t reviews
annually the size and structure of tre Board and wi'l
continue 1o review saccession planning and fuither
recruitment, taking into account the recommendat.ors
of Board evaluations. The Commiitee appoirted a search
consu'tant and, following interviews with a number of
suitable candidates, it recommended the appontment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board.

Board evaluation

Durng the year the Board engaged Tin Stephenson

of Stephenson & Co, an independent company which
specialises 1N irvestment trust board evaluations, to
facutate an ndependent evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Board, its committees and the performance of
each Director. I addition o the Directors, the most
senior members of the Investmert Management teams
were Mterviewed. Mr Stephenson’s report was discussed
by the Commr ttee

The eva.uation was considered by the Cormrittee to be
constructive in termms of analysing Board compaositon and
providing recommendations on Board successior plarning

There were no sigrificant actiors ar sing from tre
evaluation process and t was agreed thal the current
compostt or of tre Board and its Comm.ttees refiected a
suitable mix of skilis and experience, and that the Board
as a whngoie, the rdividual Directors and (ts Comim tees
were functioring effectively

Inight of the externa! performance evaluation, the Board
confirms that the performance of each Dnector cortinues
to be effective and demonstiates their commitment to
their role. Therefore all Directors, with the exception of
David Watson, wili offer themseives for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM, Further irformation on each Director's
skills, exper.ence and teir contribution 1o the Board are
outlined ir the biographies on pages 44 and 45

In accordance with the provisions of the Cade 1t s the
intention of the Board to engage an externai faclitator to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluatior will be carried out during
the year ending 31 March 2026, The Board will cortinue
to comp.ete an'nternal board evaluation annually i1 the
ntervening years

Board’s policy on tenure

Frovision 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance
allows a different approach to tenure ir reation to investment
companies reflecting how they differ to operating
companies in rot having a chief execdtive The Board took
into considerat'on the approach and iIntroduced 1ts 'Poic
Govern'ng Board Members' Tenure and Reappointment’.
This palicy outimes the Board's approach to tenure and
reappointment of non-execuitive directors 1t states its be'ief
that the value brought tnrough cortindity and experience of
Directors with 1onger penods of service 1 not on'y desrab'e,
but essential in an nvestrment company. The Boarddd

"ot fee: that twolld be approprate to set a specific tenure
himit for ind vidual Directors or the Cha.rman of the Board

or its committees. Instead, the Board wil seek to recrut

a rew Director on average, every two to three years so as
regularly to bring the stmulus of fresh tinking into the
Board's discussions, ersuring that 01 each occasior that the
Board enters mto new mvestmert commitrents at ieast
nzalf the Board members nave direct persona, expernence of
regotiating previous comntments with tne Manager.

Board Succession

Having served as a Directar since 2012 1 wil stand down
from tne Board at tne concluson of the farthcorirg
AGNM Kate Boisover wil succeed me as Cha rmaan,

Tim Gil'barks wil' succeed Kate as Senior Independent
Director. Buso'a Sgdemnde was appointed a Drector on
24 Jaraary 2023 Aroindeperdent thrd party agency,
MNurole Lrrited, was ergaged for the recruitrent process
wincn resuited i Buso a's appomntrrent Nuro e have ro
other connectior witn the Compary

TR Property Irvestmrent Trust
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Directors’ training

On appointment, new Directors are offered training tc
siit tneir needs. Directors are alsc provided with key
nformation or the Company’s gctivities or a regular
basis. inc'uding regulatory ard statutory requiremerts
and interral controls. Changes affecting Directors’
responsibilities are advised to the Board as they arse.
Directoars ensdre that they are pdated on reguiatory,
statutory and industry matters

uodal aibaens

Letters of appointment

No Director nas a contract of employment with

the Comrpany. Directors terms and corditiors for
appontment are set out in letters of appoictment which
are avai able for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the AGM

David Watson
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the ‘MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
« Monitar and review the performance of the AIFM and
Fartfalio Manager,

Review the terms of tne investment Maragemenrt
Agreement,

+ Annually review the contracts and performance of
each exterral third-party service provider, and

Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration of the
Directors.

I addition toavestmert managemert the Board
has delegated to external thurd parties tne depcsitary
and custodal services functions {which include the
safeguarding of assets), the day to day accountirg
company secretarial, administration and share
registraton services, Eack of these contracts was
entered into after full and proper considerat’on of the
qualty of the services offered, inciuding the contral
systems in opevation -nsofar as they relate to the
affa’rs of the Corrpany. The MEC determnes and
approves Directors' fees, raving regard to the level of
fees payabie to non executive Directors nthe industry
generaly, the role that irdwidual Directors fulfil in
respect of Beard and Cormmittee responsibitities ard
the time commrited to the Company's affarrs For
further detal's please see tne Directors’ Remrureration
Report o~ pages 63 to 65.

The MEC meets at least arnua'ly, towards the erd of
the financia' year and ast met ir March 2023

Activity during the year

At the meeting held in March 2023, the MEC
reviewed the performance of the AIFM and Portfouo
Manager and considered both the approprateness
of the Marager's appoirtmert and the cantractLa’
arranger-~ents (ircluding the structure and level of
remunerat.on) witn the Manager

i1 addition to the reviews by the MEC. tne Board
reviewed and cors'dered performarce reports
from the Portfolio Manager at eacn Board meetirg
Tre Board also received reguiar reports fromithe
Admun strator and Company Secretary

The Board bel eve t~at the Manager's track record
and performarce rema ns outstand ng. Asaresut,
the MEC confirmed that the AIFM and Portfclio
Manager should be retained for the firancia vear
end'ng 31 March 2024, being N the best interests of
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all sharenoiders. A summary of the significant terms

of the Investment Management Agreemert and the
third-party service prav.ders who support the Campany
are set out below

During the year, the MEC also reviewed the performance
of all their tiurd party service providers includirg 8NP
Paribas, Compttershare Columbia Threadneedle actirg
as Company Secretary, bath “irms of corporate brokers,
Panmure Gordor and Stfel, and PwC (as tax advisors)
The Portfolio Manager provides regular updates on the
performance of all third-party providers during the year
ard atterded this part of the MEC Meeting The MEC
confirmed that twas satisfied witn the ievel of services
delvered by each third-party provider

Management arrangements and fees

On 171 July 2014 the Board appointed BMO Investment
Business Limted {now Columbia Tnreadneedie
Investment Business Limited) as the Company’s
Altermative Investment Fund Marager (ir accordance
with the Alternative Investment Fund Maragers
Drrective) witn portfolio management de egated {o the
Investrent Manager, Trames R ver Capital LLR

Tne s.gnifica~t terms of the Investmenrt Management
Agreement with the Marager are as follows

Notice period

The Irvestmert Maragement Agreement (IMAY)
provides for terminatio” of the agreement by either
party without compensat an on the provision of not
less than 12 morths written notice.

Management fees

The fee for the period under review was a ‘ixed fee of
£3 895000 pus ar ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based
on the net asset value (determined 1IN accordance w'th
the AIC method of valuaticr} on the fast day of March,
<L1e September ard Decerrber, payahle guarterly -
advarce The fee arrangements Fave been rev ewed by
the Board for the year 1o 31 March 2024 and the fixed
element of the fee w  ncrease to £4,0%90.000, wni'st
the ad vaiorem rate wi:lrera n uncnanged

The Board continues to consider that the fee structure
aligns the nterests of the sharerolder ard the Manager
as well as baing rgh'y compet:tive

Tne fee arrangemenrts wil continue to be reviewed o~

anarnua bass

Performance fees

In additor to the maragement fees, the Board has
agreed to pay the Marager performance related fees r
respect of a~ accocunting penod if certain performanrce
object'ves are ach eved

TR Property Investrent Trust



Aperformance fee s payabie if tne total return of
adjusted nct assets (after deduction of all Base
Management Fees and other expenses), as defined
In the IMA, at 31 Marcn each year outperforms the
total return of the Comipary's benchmark plus 1%
{(the 'hurdie rate’), this outperformance (expressed
as a percentage) 1s known as the ‘percentage
outperformance’ Any fee payabte w.ll be the
amount equivalertto the adjusted net assets at

31 March each year multip-ied by the percentage
outperformance, then multiplied by 15%. The
maximum performance fee payable for a period is
capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets However,
if the adjusted ret assets at the end of any period
are less than at the beginning of the period, the
rmaximam perfarmance fee payebie will be imited to
1% of the adjusted net agsets

‘Adjusted Net Assets’ means the Net Asset Vaiue
after (1} exclud.ng any ~creases or decreases in Net
Asset Value attributable 1o the issue or repurchase of
any Ordinary Snares; (i) adding back the aggregate
amount of any dividends paid or distributions made
m respect of any Ordrary Snares; and (1) excluding
the amount of any Performance Fee accrued for

the period

If the totai return of sharenolders’ funds for any
performarce penod 1s 1ess than the benchmark

for tne relevant performance period, such
cnderperfarmance (expressed as a percentage; will
be carned forward to future performance periods

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
(expressed as a percentage) will be carried

forward and applied to affset any percentage
underperformance in future performance periods.

Ir the event that the benchmark is exceeded but

the hurdle is not, that outperformance of the
benchmark car be Lsed to offset past or future
underperformance. These amounts can be used

for offset purposes only and therefore cannot have
the effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the

fee in that year. The -1 5% underperformance of

the benchmark 1n the current vear has been offset
agamnst the brought forward cutperformance

as described above. As a result of this the carry
forward of outperformance at 31 March 2023 is G 4%
(2022:1 9%).

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Management company

Or 8 November 2027 BMO's asset management
business in Europe, tne Middle East and Africa became
part of Columbia Threadneed.e Investments, the gioba.
asset management business of Amenprise Financial,
[nc. The process of integrafing the two firms s well
advanced ard both compan:es nave confirmed the
importance of maintaining the stability and continuity
of the teams wr ch support the Compary

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paribas was appoirted as Depositary on

14 July 2074 in accordance witn the AIFMD,

Tne Deposdary's respons’biities include: cash
ronitoring, segregation and safe keep'ng of the
Company's financia, instrurents, and monitorng the
Company's compliance win investment and ‘everage
requirements. Tre Deposiiary receives for s services
afeeof 2 0 basis ponts perannum on the first

£150 milion of the Compary's assets, 1.4 basis points
per annum on assets above £150 mllicn and betow
£500 milion and 0.75 basis points 01 assets above
£500 mition.

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided

by BNP Paribas and Company Secretanal Services

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited The fees for these services are charged
direct'y te tre Company and are disclosed within other
administrative experses disclosed in ngtes to the
accounts

David Watson
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities

.

Review the rternal financial and non-financia’
controls;

Review reports from key third party service providers;

Consider and recommend 1o the Board for approval the

contents of the draft Half year ard Arnual Reports,

feview accounting policies and sigrificant financial
reporting judgements;

Monitor, together with tne Manager, the Company’s
compliance w'th financial reporting, maintenance of
Investment Trust status and regu atory reguirements,
and

Consider the impact of providing non-audit services on
the externat Auditor's independence and objectivity

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit ard
corrpliarce departments may attend cemm ttee

m

eetings at the Commitiee Chairman’s reguest

Representatves of the Company's Auditor attend tne
Comrittee meet rgs at whick the draft Haf Year and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed and are given

th
W
M

e opportunity to speak to the Committes members
thout tne presence of the represertatives of the
arager

The Board recogrises the requirement for 2t .east one
Committee member 1o have recent and relevant firanc al
experence and for the Audit Commrittee as a whole to
have competence re'evant 1o the sector The Committee
Crairmrar, Mr Watson and Ms Sadeinde are gua'ified
accauntaris with extensve and recent experience in the
Firancial Services Industry The otner members of tne
Comimittee have a combination of property “inarcial,
investmert and business experience through senior
positions heid throughout their careers.

Activity during the year
During the year the Committee met twice w th all

r

embers at eacn meetirg and corsdered the followirg

Cors'deration of the R sk Map: ary cnanges o

ihe ikelhood or impact of risks and corsequentia’
charges requred to Board Moritoring and rutigation
procedares Consderation of any new or e~ergirg
nsks and irclusor intne Risk Map if appropr.ate.

This nas included consideration of the impact of the
COVID-19 panderric. Russia's invasion of Ukraine,
inflationary and interest rate 'ncreases across a range of
risk categores,

Tne Group’s Internal Cortro.s ard corsideratior of the
Reports thereon,

The ISAE/AAF reports or their equivalent from BMO/
Columbia Threadneedle and BNP Paribas;

Whether the Company should Fave its ownr internal
audit functon,

The external Auditor's panning memorandum setting
outtne scope of the arnualaudit and proposed key
areas of focus

+ Thereports fro the Aaditor concerring its audit

of the Firancia: statements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relation to the
Financia: Statements,

The appropnaleress of, and any changes 1o, the
accounting pol-cies of the Company, Inc'udirg the
reasonabeness of any judgements required by such
po'icies,;

- The Long-Term Viabi! ty statement and corsideration

of the preparation of the Financ al Staterrerts or
a Going Concern basig, taking account of forward
looking ircome forecasts, the quidity of the
investment portfolo ard debt profle;

- The financia' and other disclosures inthe Fnarcial

Statements,

The information presented in the Half Year ard Arnua)
Reports to assess whetner taken as a wnole, they are
fa.r baarced and understandabie and the informatian
presented wi erab.e stareholders {0 assess tre
Company’s pos'tion, perforrance, business mode!
and strateqgy,

The performarce cof tne externa aud tor to approve
their aud t fees ard corsider tne assessmenrt of
Mdependence,

The rev ew and subsequert propasal ta the Board of
the ntermard final d'v derds and

Tne rev ewal of the Comir.ttee’s terms of reference,

ensuring tney rermrain appropriate ard comphiant with
tre 2018 UK Corporate Governarce Code

TR Property Investrrent Trust



Going concern

In assessing whether it cont'nues to be appropriate to
prepare the Accounts on a Going Concern basis, the
Committee has made a detalled assessment of the
abhity of the Company and Group to meet s liabilities
as they fai: due ircluding stress and I'quidity tests which
considered the effects of substantial fal:s 1 investment
valuations, substartial reductiors 10 revenue received
and reduct:ions in market liguidity.

I hght of the testing carried out, the overall ievels of

the irvestment iguid'ty held by the Company and the
significant net asset position, the Parent Company and
aroup, the Directors confirm that they are satisfied that
the Company and the GroLp nave adequate finarcia
rescurces to continue inoperation for at ieast the

next 12 monthg forlowing the signing of the fimancial
statements and therefore it 1$ appropriate 1o continue 1o
adopt the Go'ng Concern basis of accounting.

The long-term viabihity of the Company was a.s0
assessed as set out on pages 41 and 42

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibiity for the Group's
system of Risk Managemert and Internal Controi and for
reviewing their effectiveness. Key risks identified by the
Auditor are considered by the Aud't Committee to ensure
that robust internal controls and monitoring procedures
inrespect of these are in place on an ongaing basis
Further details can be found or page 48

The Audit Comm'ttee received and considered reports
on Irternal Controls from the key service providers No
areas of concern were hightighted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered 1o identify

any emerging nsks and whether any adjustments were
required to existing nsks, and the contrels and mitigat.on
measures in place in respect of those risks,

Elevated levels of inflation and interest rates and the
Russian invasion of Ukraine were also considered and
the r'sks assoc.ated with those events refiected in the
rsk map.

The legacy impact of COVID-16 or economies around
the world and cperational changes made by our service
providers in response to changing workplace practces
were considered and the nsk map adjusted accordingly.

Based on the processes and cortro's .n place within
Columbia Threadneedle Investmenrts and other
significant service providers, the Board has concurred
that there 1s no currert need for the Company tc have its
own internal audit function.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

The Committee nas considered this report and finarcial
statements and the Long-Term Viability statement

or pages 41 ard 42 The Committee considered the
Auditor's assessment of nisk of matenial misstatement
and reviewed the ‘nternal controis in place in respect

of the key areas identified ard the process by which

the Board monitors each of the procedures to give the
Comrittee comfort on those risks or an orgoing basis.
Those nsks are also nighlighted 1 tne Comm'ttee’s Risk
Map.

+ Carrying amount of hsted investments {(Group and
Parent Company) — the Group's investnrents are
priced for the dany NAV by BNP Paribas

The quoted assets are priced by the Admunistrator's
Global Pricing Platform which uses independert external
pricing soarces. Tne contral process surrounding this is
set out in the BNF Paribas AAF 01/06 Interna. Cortrols
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
per'cd reported to 30 September 2022 which did not
revea: any significant exceptions. The quarterly control
report to the Board from BNP Paribas covering the period
upto 31 March 2023 disclosed no sign ficant issues to
report In add'tion, or each husiness day, the Manager
estimates the NAY using ar a'ternative pricing source as
an independent check.

The Auditor agreed 100% of the isted investments of the
portfoio to externally quoted prices and ndependently
received third-party confirmations from investment
custodiars and found the carryirg value of listed
investments tc be acceptable.

+ Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group and
Parent Company) — the phys.cal property portfolio is
varded every six months by professionai independent
valders.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of

Fair Value in accordance with tne RICS Valuation -
Professional Stardards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which appy the definition of Fair Value adopted by the
International Finarcial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as.

"The amount for which an asset could be excnanged a
lability settled, or an equity instrument granted could be
exchanged, between knowledgeable willing parties in an
arm's iength transacton’
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

In undertaking therr vaiuation of each property,
Knight Frank make their assessment on the basis of
a colation and aralysis of appropriate comparable
mvestnents, rental and saie transactions, togetner
with evidence of demand within the vicinity of eacn
property. This information is ther applied to the
properties, taking into account size, location, terms,
covenant and other matenal factors

The Board has rev ewed reports from the Manager
ard the external valuer and determ ned the valuation
to be reascnable

The Auditor has set out therr detailed testing and
pracedures in respect of the direct property valuation
and conciuded that they found the Company's
va.uation of investment properties to be acceptable,

There as been nothing brought to the Committee's
attention inrespect of the financial statemerts for
the year ended 37 March 2023 that was material

or significart or that the Commmuttee felt should be
brought to shareholders’ attention.

Auditor assessment and independence
The Company’s external auditor, KPMG LLP { KPMG')
was appainted as the Company's auditor at the 2016
AGM. The Committee undertook a review dur.rg
2021 to ensure that shareholders were receiv rg

the Dest services and value for money. A nurber of
firmrs were Mvited to express interest and respond
an a smal number of key points Tre dec-sion was
ade for the acdt to remain with KPMG Tnis is Mr
Merchant's second year as the Company's Audit
FPartner.

Tre Commitiee expects to repeat a tender process
no ater tran 2026 1 respect of the audit for the
following 31 March year end, 10 ime with the current
acdit regu ations.

At the half year meetirg of tre Cormmittee KPMG
presented their audt pian for the year end and the
Co~mittee considered tne audt process and fee
proposa. The Comm:ttee a'sc reviewed KPMG's
indeperdence pol ces and procedures, 'ncud g
gJality assurance precedures, It was considered that
those policies are fit for purpose and the Directors
are satisfied that KPMG is independert,

Total fees payable to the Auditor inrespect of the
audit for tne year to 31 March 2023 were
ES7.00012022 £82 0001, wh.ch were approved by
the ALdit Cormittee

The Committee has approved and implemented

a policy or the engagement of the Auditor to
supply non-audit services, taking into account the
recommendations of the Account'ng Practices
Board with a view 10 ensuring that the exterra!
Auditor does ot provide non-aud't services that
have the potential to impair or appear ta impait the
independence of their audit role 11 addition, the
Committee reviewed the actiens put in place by
the Audior to ensure there was a clear separation
between audit and advisory services The Commuttee
does not beleve there 1o be any impediment to the
Auditor's objectivity and independence

Full details of the Auditor’s fees are provided I note
6 1o the accourts or page 85 The fees for non-
audit services for the year to 31 March 2023 were 1l
{2022 mil)

Foilowmng each audit, the Commuittee reviews the
audit process and considers 'ts effectiveness

and the gquaaty of the services provided 1o tne
Company Wihin this process, the Committee
takes intc cons deration their own assessment, tne
self-evaiuaton of the auditor and the Audit Jua ity
Review Report produced by the FRC in order to
monitor the progress of the Auditor's performnance
comparab e with 1ts peers ard the targets set by
the FRC Trereview fol ow:rg the completion of
the 2023 audit corcluded that the Comm.ttee

was satisfied with the Auditor's effectiveness and
perfarmance The Comrmittee felt that KPMG had
run ar effective and efficient audit process witn
appropriate challerge Aresolution to re-appoint
KPMG LLP as tne Company’s Audtorwr e put to
shareroders at the forthcom ~g AGM

Tim Gillbanks
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board has prepared this report ard the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, .n accordance with the
requirernents of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium
Sized Companies and Groups (Accourts and Reports)
Regulations 2013. An ord'nary resolution for the
approval of this report will be put to the members at the
forthcoring Anrual Gereral Meeting

I he law requires the Company’'s Auditor, KPMG LLF
to audit certain of the disciosures provided. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are irdicated
as such The Auditor's opirior is included in the
Independent ALditor's Report’

Annual statement from the chairman

of the committee

Tre MEC met in Marcn 2023 and corsidered the results
and feedback from the Board evaluat.on It was agreed
that the Drectors' fees would be increased, w.ih effect
from 1 Apri. 2023, to the fcltowing levels: Chairman
£73.000; Audit Commttee Cnairmar £43,00C, Senior
Irdependent Director £43.00C; and other Directors
£37.000

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company’s policy is that the fees payable to the
Dnrectors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company’s affars and the responsibiities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of lugh calbre to be recruited The policy is
for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Senior Independent Director to be
pard higher fees than the ather Directors in recognition
of their mare onerous roles This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention 1s that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2024 In accordance with the regulations,

an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’
remuneration poficy wilf be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three years.

The Directors are paid in the form of fees, pavable
monthly in arrears, to the Director personaliy or to a third
party specified by that Director There are no long-term
incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related

to the Directors’ performance, either mdrviduatly o
collectively.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

The Board comprises entirely of non-executive Directors,
whose appointments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time, there are nc notice periods and no payments
made foir loss of office. The terms of then appointment
are detatled in an appointment fetter when they join the
Board As the Directors da not have service contracts,
the Company does not have a pohcy on termination
payments The Companys Articles of Association
currently limit the total aggregate fees pavable to the
Board to £300,000 per annum

Any shareholders views inrespect of Directors’
rermuneration are communicated at the Company’s
AGM and are taken into account in formulating the
Directors remuneration palicy At the 2022 AGM,

90 8% of shareholders’ votes cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Directors' Remuneration Report,

with 0 2% against, showmng very sigmficant shareholder
support

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comiprised in the
Directors remuneration policy of the Company are
set out below, with a description and approach to
determmnation
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Directors’ Remunetration report
continued

Reruneration Type

Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Other

The aggregeate limit for Additional fees may be paid The Directors a-e entitied Board members are not

the fees for the Board to any Direclor who fulfils the o be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pens-on
as a whole is £300,000 role of the Chairman, wno expenses properly mcurred benefits, share options,

per annum which, in chairs any committee of the Ly them attending meetings  long term incentive schermed
accordance with the Board or who 's appointeo wth shareho'ders or other or other non-cash benefits or
Articles of Assoziaticn. as the Senior Indepencent Directors or otherwise in taxable expenses.

1s divided between 11e D'rector connection with the discharge

Directors as they deem of tneir duties as Directors

Tnese fees are setat a

appropriate. -

pRrop competitive level to reflect
Fees are set to reflect experience and time
the role of each Board commitment

member and the time
commitment reguired

to carry out ther duties
and are reviewed with
reference 1o tne fees paid
to Directors of similar
nvestment companies

Annual remuneration report

For the year enaec 31 March 2023, Directors fees were pand at the annual rates of Chanman. £72,000(2022 £70,000!
anc alt other Directors £36,000 (2022 £36.000). An additional £6,000 was pa-c per annum “or eacn of the roles of Audit
Committee Chairman anc Senor Independent Director The actual amounts paic to 1ne Directors during 1he financial year
under review are as shown below

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
The fees payable in respect of each of *he Cirectors who served during the financial year were as foliows

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ £

David Watson 72,000 70,000

Simon Marriscn 14,000 40,000
Tim Gillhbanks 42,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover A0,069 35,000
Sarah-Jane Curtis 36,000 35,000
Andrew Vaughan * 24,000 -
Busola Sodemnde - L - 6831 L

Total L 234900 220,000

Ai fees are at @ “ixed rate and there I1s no vanzbie -emuneration Fees are pro-rated where a change takes piace cur 1g 2
financial year There were 10 payments to Tirc paves inclucec nthe ‘ees referred to 1 the table above Trere are no “urther
fees 1o a'sclose as the Company has 1o employess, cief executive or executive directors

regigned frar the Board on 25 Juiy 2022

zppointed Sen o' ndependent Drecter on 76 Juy 2022

appointed to the Board on 1 Augist 2027

- appointed o tte Boatd on 24 Januay 2075
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Company performance

The graph beiow compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2023, the percentage change over each period
in the share price tota. retuin to shareholders compared
10 the share price total return of berchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropriate berchmark
far investment performance measuremernt purposes. An
explanaton of tne performance of the Company 1s given
in the Cnairman’s Statement and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4200 - —
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. TR Property Share Price Total Return . Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investenent of £1,000.0n 31 March
2013 and reinvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses).
(Source. Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assurning notionat investment into the index of
£1,0000n 31 March 2013, (Source, Thames River Capital}

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of

appointment 31 March 2022
David Watson 47,864 36,407
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks - -
Busola Sedeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan 1o n/a

Since 31 March 2023 to the date of this report, there have
been no changes ta the Directors' interests in the shares of
the Company

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Relative Importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£000 £000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 45,381 3.8%
Directors'fees 228 _2Z0 3.6%

Five year change comparison

Owver the :ast five years, Directors’ pay has increased as sét
out in the table below

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£'000 £'000 5 years Change
Chairman 72 70 2.9% 0.6%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Sermor
Independent
Director 472 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director 36 - 33 2.1% 1.8%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The table beiow sets out the annual percentage change n
fees for each director who served in the year under review,

EXSENL M % change % change

Lt vZ from 20271 from 2020

to 2023 to0 2022 to 2021

[ElLHCT )M (audited)  (audited)

Director % % %
David Watson +158  +51.2"
Simon Marrison +4.7- +9.7

Tim Gillbanks 0.0 0.4
Kate Bolsover 00 +100.0°
Sarah-Jane Curtis 0.0 +449 3 -

Andrew Vaughan n/a n/a

Busola Sodeinde n/a n/a

Appointed as Casooman Juiy 2070 ncrease st acly
tae g patt year and subseguert Tl vez ntnerce

Appointed as Son o0 nocpendent Cirestor with ef oot from 25 uly 2020,
norease refects the nue part veas and subseguent Tuver inthe oe
apponlod 6 o non-execut ve Drector on T October 2018 increese
wwfects tre first fu e vear v th e Company

Appo nled £5 a non-execnt ve Doeator on 28 lanuany 2020 inorezse
refonts the fiist f'u year w thtae Company

Felrea 26 Juw 2007

Appo nted as Serior Indeperdent Lonector woth effect for 20y 2022
CrCasr Cfiorts the snarge o e dunmg the vear

Apponted @s & nomrexecutive Certo on 1 Augost 2087

Apponted 28 g non-erenutye Drettaron 24 anuaty -

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the Group and Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with appucabie law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financiai statements for each
financial year. Directars are required 10 prepare the Group
financiar statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and applicable

faw and have elected to prepare the Parert Company
finarcial statements on the same basis

Urder company law the Directors must not approve

the financial statements urless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of tne state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and af the Group’s profit or
lossg for that period In preparnirg each of the Group and
FParent Companry “rancial statements, the Directors are
required to

- select suitable accounting pol cies and apply them
consistently,

make judgemenrts ard estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable;

state whether trey have been prepared «n accordarce
with international accountirg standards ir conform ty
with the requirements of UK-adopted nterraticral
accounhng standards.

- assess the Group and Parent Compary's abuity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable
matters related to going concern, and

- use the going concern basis of accourting un.ess
trey either nterd to I'quidate the Group or t~e Parent
Company or 1o cease aperations or nave norealistc
alternative but to do so

Tre Directors are regsponsibie for keepirg adequate
accounting records that are sdfficient 1o show and
explair tre Parert Company's trarsactions a~d disc'ose
w th reasonable accoracy at any t me the financa
position of the Parent Corrpany and enable them to
ersare that its irarcia statements comply witn the
Companies Act 2006 Threy are resporsble for such
internal centro as they determine is recessary to enab e
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
mater.ai m ssiatement, wiether due to fraud or error
and have gereral responsib ity for taking suc~ steps as
are reasonably open to then to safeguard tne assets

of the Group ard to prevert and detect frawd and other
regular ties

6&

Under appicable law and regulat'ons, the Directors
are also responsible for preparing a Strateg ¢ Report,
Directars’ Report, Directors’ Remoneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement

Tne Directors are responsib e for the mairterance
and integrity of the corporate and financia
information ncluded or the Company's website,
Leg'slationir tne UK governing the preparation ard
dissemiration, of firancial staterrents may differ
from legislation :n other jurisdictions.

In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Ru'e 4.7 14R, the firancial statements
will form part of the annuar inancial report prepared
us'ng the single electronic reporting format under
the TD ESEF Regulation The Auditors report on
these “inancial statements provides no assdrance
over the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annuai financial report
Each of the Directors confirms that to the best of
their krowiedge

- tne financ al statements, prepared in accordance
w'th tne appl.cable set of accourting stardards,
give a true and fair v ew of the assets, habllities,
‘inancia’ position and profit or loss of the Group
and Parent Company and the undertakings
mcluded rine corsplidation taker as a whole; a~d

« the strategic report inc.udes a fair review of the
development and performance of the busiress
and the pos tion of tne issuer and tne undertakings
inc.uded in the consolidation taken as a whoe,
together with a descr’ption of the principai risks
and uncertanties that they face

The Directors cons der that the Annual Report
ard Accourts, taken as a wnole, sfair, balarced
and understandahb:e ard prov.des tnhe 1~formation
recessary for sharehclders to assess the Group's
positior and performarce, busiess model and
strategy

By arder of ine Board
David Watson

TR Property trvestrrent Trust



Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Qur opinion is unmodified

We have audited the firanc al statements of TR Property
Investment Tru.st Ple {the Company’) for the year
ended 31 March 2023 wrich comprise the Group
Statement of Comnrehensive income, Group and
Company Statements of Cnanges 0 Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group ard Company Cash
low Statements and the reiated notes, including the
accou~ting policies in note 1

In our opinion:

- the financ’ar staterrents give a true ard fair v ew of
tne state of the Group's and of the parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 Marcn 2023 and of the Group's return
for the year tnen ended:

- the Group financial statemerts rave heen properly
prepared in accordance witn UK-adepted international
accounting standards,

- the parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared n accordance with UK-adopted
internatiora. accounting standards and as appliedin
accordance with the provisiors of the Companies Act
2006, and

- the financial staterments have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We corducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Alditing (UK} {ISAs (UK}) and applicable
law Cur responsibiities are described below. We believe
tmat the audit evidence we have obtained I1s a sufficiert
and appropriate basis for our opin‘on Cur audit opinion
is consistent with our report to tne audit committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the Direclors on

2 Noverber 2016 The perod of tota: uninterrupted
engagement s for the seven financial years ended

371 March 2023 We have f.lfilled our ethica:
responsibilities under, and we remain independent of
tne Group in accordance wih, UK ethical reguirements
ncluding the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to histed
public irterest entities. No non-audit services prohibited
by that standard were provided.

Overview

l]:ﬁaterl‘a“ty group £10 5m (2022: £16.8m)
Inancial statements 1% (2022 1%) of Total Assets

as awhole

Key audit matters vs 2022 vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct property ),
Investments
Carrying amount of IIsted <
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of materniar misstatement (whether or rot due
to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect or the overal audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters
(Lnchanged from 2022, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our gudit op nion above, together

with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our findings from those procedures ir order that the
Company's members, as a body, may understand better the process by which we arrived at odr audit opinicn. These
matters were addressed, ard our findings are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the
purpose of, our audit of the finarcial statements &s a whole, and n forring our apimion thereon, and consequently are
incidentat to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement - - 1 .o~

e rs Uur response
1

Valuation of direct
property investments
(Group and Parent)
(£74.0 mulion;

2022 £96.3mition)]

Refer to pages 6010

62 (Audit Committee
Report), pages 81 and 82
{accounting policy), note 10
on pages 89 to 92 (fnanc al
d.sclosures)

Subjective valuation:

7 0% (2022 57%) of the Group's,

and 6 8% (2022 5.6%) of the Parent
Company's, total assets (by value) a“e
held in investment properties

The fair value of each property requires
significant estimation, in pa-ticuiar with
regard to the estimated rentai value and
yeld assumptions The assumptions
wili be impacted by a number of factors
‘ncluding quality and condition of the
huilcing and tenant financial strengin

The effect of these matiers is that,

as part of our ngk assessment, we
determinet that the valuation of
nvestment properties has a hugh
degree of estimation uncerzanty, with &
potential range of reasonable outcomes
greater than our matenality for the
financia’ statements as g whole. "he
fnancial statements inote 101 disclose
the sens tw.ty esimated by the Group

We performed the cetalled tests beiow rather
than seeking to rely on any of the Group's
controls, because the nature of the balance
15 such that we would expect 1o obtam audit
evidence primarily through the detalled
procedures described

Our procedures includea

+ Assessing vaiuer’s credentials: Using cur own
property valuation spec alist, we evaluated the
competence, expenence and indepencence of
the external valuer;

* Tests of detail: We compared tne information
provided by the Group to its external property
va'uer for a sample of properties, such as
rental iIncome and tenancy data to supparting
documents Mcluding 'ease agreements:

* Methodology choice: We he'd d.scussions
with the Group's externa’ property vatuer to
determine the valuation methodology used is
appropriate Usng our own progerty valuztion
specialist, we cnitically assessed the ~esults
of the valuer's report by checking that the
vaiations were .n accordance with the RICS
Valuation Professional Standards 'the Red
300k’ and IFRS and that the methocology
adopted was appropriate by reference 1o
acceplable valuation practice;

Benchmarking assumptions: \With the
zssistance of our own property va'uation
specialist, we held discussions witn the
Group's externa. property valuer io unde-stand
moverments in property values. For a sampie of
properties, we assesses The key assumplions
used by the valuer upon whnich the valuations
are based, inc'uding those "elai ng to estimated
entat value and yie.d, by making a comparisen
to our ownunderstand ng of the market and to
mcustry cenchimarks;

« Assessing transparency: We also considered
the adequacy of the Group's cisclosures about
the cegree of estimation and sensitivity to key
assumpticns madce when valung the direct
propesty investments

Our findings

e found the Group's valuation of nvestment
proper es 1o be bslancec 12022 balancec). We
nave cons.dered the zesociatec oisclosures to
Le proportionate

TR Property [rvestment Trust



heris Our response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£872 1 million;

2022 £1,456.8 million}

Refer to pages 6010 62
(Aud t Commitiee Report],
page 82 {accounting policy)
and note 10 an pages &9 to
9% if nanc'al disclosures}.

Low risk, high value:
“he portfoio of l:sted levei 1

investmenis makes up 83 0% {2027
86.4%) of the Group’s, anc 80 2% (2022:
84 .6%) of the Parent Company's, total
assats (by value) anc 1s one of the key
drivers of ~esults. We do not cons:der
these investments to be at a hugn risk of
materia’ msstatement, or to be subject
1o a significant level of judgerment
because they comprse liguid, quoted

We pe-formed the detaited tests below rather
than seeking to rely on any of the group’s
controls, because the nature of the balance
15 such that we would expect to obtain audit
evidence pramary through the deta'lec
procequres describeq,

Our procedures ncluded:

* Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 1350%.
of level 1 isted Investments in the porttc. o to
externally quoted prices; and

nvestments However, due to their

materiaity in the context of the
financial statements as a who e, they
are cons'derec to he one of the areas
wnich had the greatest effect on our

+ Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of
level 1 listed investment noldings in the
portfolio to indepencently recerved third party
confirmations from nvestment custoc.ans.

overal audit strategy ang allocation of
resources i1 planning and completing

our audit.

Our findings

we found no differences from tnira party
holdings confirmations nor from the externally
guoted prices of 2 s1ze 10 reguire reporting te the
Audit Committee (2022, no differences)

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole
was set at £10 5m (2022 £16 8m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1.0% (2021 1 0%)

Materiality for the parent Company financial statements
as awhole was set at £997m (2022: £16.0m), whicn

Is the component materality for the Parent Comipany
determined by the Group audit engagement tearr. This
is lower than the materiality we would otherw'se have
determ'ned with reference to Parent Company tota!
assets, of whicn it represents 0.95% (2022: 0.95%)

In Ine w.th our audit methodelogy, our procedures

on indwidual accoudrt balances and disctosures were
performed to a lower threshold, performance materiality,
s as toreduce to an acceptable level the risk that
mdvidually immatenal misstatements in individual
account balances add up to a material ameount across
tne firancial statements as a whole. Perfoermance
materiaiity was set al 75% (2022 75%) of materiality
for tne financial statements as a whole, which equates
to £7.85m (2022 £12 6m) for the Group ard £7.45m
{2022 £12m) for the Parent Company. We applied
this percentage in odr determiration of performance
materality because we did not identify any factors
indicating an elevated level of risk,

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncarrected identified m'sstatements
exceeding £0 53 (2022 £8 84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0.5m (2022, £0.6m) for the Parent Company,
‘n additior to cther identified russtatements that
warrarted reporting on quantative thresholds

The audit team performed the audit of the Group as a
sngle aggregated set of firanciai infermation rather
than scoping in indvidual components. This approach

is unchanged from the prior year The audit of the

Group and Parent Company was performed using the
materiality levels set out above and was performed by a
single audit team The scope of the audit work perfermed
was fully substant've as we d'd not rely upon the Group's
internal contrels over financial reporting.

Group Materiality
£10.5m {2022 £15.8m)

Total Assets
£1.051mM (2022 £1,686m)

£10.5m
Whole financial statements
materiality (2022° £16.8m)

£7.85m

Whole financial statements
performance materiality
(2022, £12.6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiafity
(2022: £16.0m)

£0.5m

Misstaternents reported
to the audit committee
(2022: £0.8m)

B Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit
we have performed a risk assessment of how the impact
of climate change may affect the financial statemerts
and our audit Level 1 listed investments make up

83.0% of the Group's total assets, for which fair value

is determined as the quoted market price. Therefore,

we assessed that tne financial statement estimate that

is prirrar-y exposed to climate rigk is the iInvestmert
property portfolic, for which the valuat:on assumpt ons
ard estimates may be impacted by physicai and policy
oriegal climate nsks, such as flood'ng ot an ircrease

in cl'mate reiated compliance expenditure We heid
discussions witn aur own climate change professionals
to cha'lenge our risk assessment. We assessed that,
wh:lst ciimrate change posed a risk to the determination
of mvestment property valuat-ors in the current year,
th:s nisk was not significant when considering both the
nature and domicile of the properties and the tenure of
unexpred ieases Therefore, there was no significant
impact of this on our key audit matters

We have read tne disclosdre of climate related rarrative
in tne front alf of the financial statements and
considered consistency with the firancial statements
and our audit knowledge

0S5 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the “inancial statements

on the going concern basis as tney do rot ntend to
iiguidate the Group or tne Compary or to cease their
operatiors, and as they have conc.ded tnat the Group's
and the Company's financia position mears that this

1s realistic Tney have a:so corcluded that there are no
mater-at uncertainties that could have cast sign ficant
doubt over ther abiliy to continue as a gaing concerr for
at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
staterments (the going concern peniod’).

We Lsed our knowledge of the Group. 1ts Irdustry,

and the gereral economic environTert to identify

the mherent rrsks to 1ts busiress model ard analysed
row tnose risks mignt affect the Group or Company's
fimnancial resources or abinty to continue operations over
tne go ng concern period The risks that we considered
most iikely to adversely affect the Group or Company's
ava'iable finarc'a resources and 1g ability to operate
over this period were

+ The impact of a significart redaction ir the valuation
of vestrents and the ‘mplications for tne Group or

[ — e Tl =) el l=lat=Ta
Lompany s aebt covenarts,

+ The ligudity of the investment pertfoio ard its ability
to meet the iabiiities of the Group as and when tney
fali due, and

+ The operat oral res’lience of key service organisations.

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect
the iguidity or covenart compliance in the going concern
period by assessing the degree of downside assumption
that, individually and ccllectively, could result in a hiquidity
issue taking into account the Group or Company's
current and projected cash and liquid investment
pos.tion (ard the results of their reverse stress testirgh

We cons.dered whether the going concern disc.osure
in note 1 gives a full and accurate description of the

Directors’ assessment of going concerr. including the
identified risks and re'ated sensitivities !

Our conclusions based or this work;

+ we consider that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accourting in the preparatior of tne
finarcial staterrents 1< appropr.ate:

we nave "ot ident fied, and concur w.tn the Directors’
assessment that trere .5 not, a Matenal uncertainty
related to events or corditions that, ndividually or
collectivery, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
or Compary s ability to continue as a goirg corcern
for tne going corcer penod,

- we have noth'ng matenal to add or draw attertion o
Ir reiatior to the Directors’ staterrert onthe use of ine
going corcern basis of accounting with ro materiai
uncertairties that may cast sigmificant doubt over
tne Group and Companry’s use of tnat basis for the
going concern peried, and we found the going concern
disclosure r note 1 to be acceptable, and

+ thereiated statemert under the Listirg Ruies set out
on page 61 15 mater a'ly cons stent with the firanc.a
statements and our audt know:edge.

However, aswe car—ol predict al futLre events or
cordit ons and as sobsequent events may rescit in
outcomes that are mcorsistent w'th judgements tnat
were reasonable at the time they were made the above
conclusions are Mot a guarantee that the Group or tne
Corpany w 'contirue ir cperation.

TR Property Investmert Trust



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations - ability to dectect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Toidentify risks of material misstaterent due to fraud
{(fraud risks’}) we assessed events or conditions that
could Indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opporturity to comrmit fraud Cur risk
assessment procedures ncluded:

+ Engquiring of Directors as to the Group's high-leve!
potcies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
as well as whether they have knowledge of any actLal,
suspected or aleged fraud;

-+ Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, tne Administrator ard the Group's
Imvestment Manager; and

- Reading Board and Audit Committee minLtes

As required by auditing standards, we perform
procedures 1o address the r sk of management overnde
of controis, in particular to the risk that maragement
may be 'n a position to make inappropriate accounting
entries We communicated identified fraud risk
throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audit We evaluated
the des.gn and implementation of the controls over
Journal entries and other adjustmerts and made
inquires of the Adrin strator about inappropriate or
unusual activity relating to the processing of jourral
entries and other adjustments.

We substantively tested all material post- closing
entr:es and, based on the results of our nsk assessment
procedures and understand:ng of the process. including
the segregation of dut'es between the Directors and

the Administrator, no further high-risk journal entries or
other adjustments were identified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud nsk related
to revenue recognition because the reverue is

non- jJudgemental and straightforward, with imited
opportdnity far manipulation. We did not identify any

significant unusual transact.ons or additioral fraud risks.

Annua Report & Accounts 7023

identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identfied areas of laws and reguiations that could
reasonably be expected to have 3 matenal effect on

the financial statements from our general commercial
and sector experience and through discassicn with

the Directors, the Irvestment Manager and the

Adrmin strator (as required by auditing standards)

and discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures reqarding corrpriance with laws and
regulat:ons. We communicated identified laws and
regulations throughout ourteam and remained alert to
any .ndications of ron-compliarce throLghout the audn
As the Parent Conrpany is regulated, oLr assessment of
rsks nvolved gan'ng an urderstandirg of the control
environment including the entity’s procedures for
comp'ying with regu-atory requirements

The potential effect of these 'aws and regulations on the
financial staterments varies considerably

Firsty the Group 1s subject to laws ard regulations

tnat directly affect the finarcial statements including
financial reporting egislaton (including related
companies legislation), d'stributable profits legislation,
and its qualfication as an tlvestment Trust under UK
taxat'on legislatior, any breach of whicn could 'ead to
tne Group tosing varnous deductions and exemptions
from UK corporation tax, ard we assessed the extent of
comphance witn tnese laws and regulations as part of
our proceddJres on the related financial statementitems.

We assessed the legality of the distribut:ons made by
tne Company ir the period based on corrparing the
dividends paid to the distributable reserves prior to each
distribution

Second’y, the Group 1s subject to many other laws and
regllations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a materal effect on amounts or disclosures
in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation We identified the
following areas as those most likely to have such an
effect money laundering, data protecticn, bribery and
corruption legislation and certain aspects of Company
legislation recognising the fimancia nature of the
Group's activities and its legal form. Auditing standards
It the required audit procedures to identify non-
compiiance with these laws and regulations to enquiry
of the Directors and the Administrator and inspection of
requiatory and ‘ega! correspondence, if any. Therefcre,
if a breach of operational reguiations is not disciosed to
us or evident from relevant correspondence, ar audit wiil
not detect that breach
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independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations —
ability to detect - : - :

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law ar regulation

Owng to the inherent hmitations of an audit, there is an
unavoldable nisk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements i the financial statements, even
though we have proper'y plarned and performed our audit
ir accordance with auditing standards. For exampe, the
further removed ron-compliance with aws and requiations
is from the events and transactions reflected 'n the financial
statements, the less likely the inherentiy imited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it

1 addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher sk
of nor-detection of fraud, as these may involve coliusion,
forgery, intertiora. omissions. misrepresentations, or the
override of nternal contro.s. Cur audit procedires are
designed to detect matenal misstatement. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannct be expected to detect non-cormp 1ance with al laws
and regulations

07 We have nothing tc report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the otner information
presented in the Anndal Report together with tne finarcial
statererts Ourcepinion on the finarcial statements
does not cover the other \nformat on and, accordingly,
we do not express an audit opin or o, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Qur responsibiliay s te read the other information and,

in doing so, consider wnether based on cur ‘inancia
statements audit work, the mformat or therei~ is
Taterially misstated or incons stent with the firancia
statements or our audit knowledge Based so'ely orthat
work we have not identified mateniar misstaterrents in
tre other inforrmation

Strategic report and Directors’ Report
Based sole'y on our work o0 tne other rformation

+ we have not ‘dentfied materai misstaterrents N tre
strategic report ard the D rectors’ report,

" our opin-on the informat o1 given in those reports
for t~e finarc'al year 's cons'stent with the financ al
statements and

* nouropnontnose reports have beer prepared ir
accordarcewith tire Compantes Act 2006

%]

Directors’ remuneration report

ir our opinian the part of the Drrectors’ Remuneratior
Report to be avd ted has been properly prepared in
accordance with tne Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are reguired to perform procedures 1o identify
whetner tnere .s a matenal nconsistency between
the Directors’ disclosures in respect of emerging ard
principal risks and the v ability staternent. and the
‘inancial statements and  our audit know'edge

Based onr those procedures, we have nothing matena' to
add or draw attention 10 i1 relatior to

- the Directors’ confiimation withir the Long-term
Viabiity statemert on page 41 that they have carred
ouJt a robust assessrment of the emerging and principal
risks facing the Group, ircludirg those that would
tnreater ‘1s business model, future performarce,
salvency and ligudity,

- the Principar ard emerging risks ard uncertainties
disclosures describing these risks and how emerging
risks are identified. and explaining naw they are being
Tanaged and mitigated, and

- the Directors’ explanation in the Lorg- term Viability
statement of now tney have assessed the prospects
of the Group, aver wnat per od they Fave dore sc and
wny they considered that penod 1o be appropriate, and
their staterrent as to whetner they have a reasonabie
expectation that the Sroup w.l' be able to continue
in operat on and meet 'ts labiities as they fa'l due
over the penod of the r assessment, incicding any
resated disc'osJres drawng attention to any necessary
gualficat ons or assumptions

We are a.so required to review the Long-term Viability
statement, set out or page 41 ard 42 under the | sting
Rules Based on tne above procedures, we have
corcluded that the above disclosures are materially
consistent witk the firancial staternents ard our audt
knowledge

Our work s 'mited 1o assess ng trese matters n the
cortext of only the krow'edge acqu'red during our
firancial statemerts audt Aswe cannct pred ot al
futLre events or cordtions ard as subsegJént events
vayresat noutcorres that are mconrsistent with
jLdgeTerts that were reasonabie at the t me tney
were made, the abserce of arything to report on these
statemertsis not a guarartee as to the Graup's and
Companry's anger-termvabl'ty.

TR Property Irvestmen: Trust
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Corporate governance disclosures 09 Respective Responsibilities
wWe are required 1o perform procedures Lo identify Directors’ responsibilities
whether there is a materniai incors.stency between the As explained mare fuliy In their statement set out
Directors’ corporate governance disclosures and the or page 66, the Directors are respensible for the g
financial statements and our audit knowledge preparation of the financial statements including being if
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, such internal e
Based on those procedures, we have concluded that control as they determine 1s necessary to enatle the “é
each of the fo.lowing 1s matenal'y consistent with the preparation of financial statements that are free from -
financial statements and our audit knowledge: materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
assessing the Group ard parent Company's ability to
+ tne Directors’ staterrent that they consider that the continue as a go rg concerr, disclosing, as applicable,
arnJal report ard finarciai statements taken as matters related 1o going corcern; and using the going
awhole ‘s fa'r, batanced and understandable, and concern basis of accounting unless they either ntend to
provides the information necessary for shareroders 'iguidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
to assess e Group's position and performance, operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

business model and strategy;
Auditor's responsibilities

+ the section of the anrual report descnbirg the work of Our cbject ves are to obtanreasonable assurance
the Audit Committee, ‘ncludirg the significant 1Issues about whether the financial staternents as a whoie are
tnat the audit committee considered in relation to free from material misstaterert, whether due to fraud
the financial staterments, and how tnese -ssues wereg or error, and 1o 1ssue our opinion 1in an auditor's report.
addressed; and Reasorable assurarce is a high :evel of assurance, -
but does rot guarantee that an audit conducted in 3
- the sect'on of the arrual report that describes accordance with 1SAs {UK) wil always detect a materia’ g
the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise 8
management and interal control systems from fraud or error and are considered materal if, §
incvidually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 3
We are required to review the part of the Corporate expected to influence the economic decisions of users
Governance Statement re-ating to the Group's taken on the basis of the firancial statements.
comp iance witn the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the List.ng Rules for our A fuller description of our respansibilities 1s
review. We nave nothing to report in this respect. provided on the FRC's website at www fre.org.uk/

] auditorsresponsibiiities.
08 We have nothing to report on the other

INSOIOSIP (1N AIY DUE AeSSoIn

matters on which we are required to report The Compary is required to ‘nciude these financial
by exception statermerts in an annual financial report prepared Jsing
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are reguired to report the single electronic reporting forrat specified in the
to you if, 'mour op:nion TD ESEF Regutation This auditor's report provides no
assurance over whetner the annual financial report has
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by been prepared in accordance with that format
the parent Company, or retarns adequate for our audit §
have not been receved from brancnes not visited 8
by us, or §
+ the parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneraticn Repart 10 be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
- certain disclosures of Drectors’ remuneration g
specified by law are not made; or g
§
- we have not received all the information and g
explanat:ons we require for our audit, g
o
-

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023



Independent auditor’s report
continued

10 The purpese of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, 1 accordance witn Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement
by the Company Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to ther in ar auditor's
repcrt, and the further matters we are required to state
to therm in accordance with the terms agreed with

the Company and for no other purpose. To the fuilest
extent permitted by law, we dc not aceept or assume
responsibility to aryone other than the Compary and the
Company's members, as a hody, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opimors we have formed

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditer)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

KPMG

TR Property Irvestment Trust
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 - 44170
Other operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2,773 - 2773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1,103 - 1,103

(Losses)/gains on investments
hefd at fair value 10 - (549,430} (549,430) - 249,038 243038

Net moverment on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780) (2,780) - 1136 1,136

Net movement on foreign
exchange, cash and cash

equivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 (45,556) (36,094) 5,701 16,367 22,062
Total Income 66,253 {595,738) (529,4_8_5) 53,752 267172 320924
Expenses

Management and performance

fees 5 (1,560) (4,680) (6,240) (1,663) (29,477} {31.740)
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 (1,660) - (1,660) (1.435) - {1.435)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,163) {542) (1,705) (1,627) (608) (2.229)
Total eperating expenses {4,383) (5,222) (9,605) (4,719) (30,085) {34.804)
Operating profit/{loss) 61,870 (600,960) (539,090) 49,033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs 7 (1,146) (3,438) (4,584) (629) (1.886) (2,575)
Profit/(loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235,201 283,605
Taxation 8 (6,087} 2,495 - (3,592) (4,967) 3.049 (1,918}
Total comprehensive income 54,637  (601,903)  (547,266) 43437 238,250 281,687
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share 9 17.22p (189.67)p (172.45)p 13.69p 75.07p 88 76p

The Total column of tis statement represents the Croup's Statement of Comprehensive Income prepared in accordanice with
JK-adopted interiational accounting standards. The Revenue Return anc Cap™ai Return co urmns ae supplementary 1o this
and are prepared under guidance published by the Assoc’aton of Investmen? Companies Allitems in the above statement
derive from continuing operations.

Tre Group does not have any other Income o- expense tatis not included i the sbove statemen? therefore "“ote’
compreliens ve ncome” 1s & so the profit and loss for the year

Alincome is ati:butable 10 the shareholders of the parent company

The notes f-om pages 8700 104 form part of these Financial Siatements
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Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes €000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) (547,266)
Dividends paid B 7 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehersive income - - - (547,266) (547,266)
Dividends paid_ B 17 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £°000 £3600 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43977 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid ) 17 L (45381) (45,381}
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43971 1,158,962 1,326,433
Total ccmprehensive Income 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid B 17 N (45.381) (45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43971 1,396 268 1,562,739

The notes from pages 80 t6 104 form part of these Fnancial Statements

Annual Repors & Accounts 2023
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Group and company balance sheets

1

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022

Notes £000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets

Investments held at fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1,506,436
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 - 36,297
Investments heid for sale 10 - - 48,980 48,980
948,672 984,964 1.5554716 1,581,713
Deferred taxation asset 12 903 903 G03 o 3903
949,575 985,867 1,556,379 1,592,016
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97,673 97,208
Cash and cash equivalents 36,071 36,069 32109 32107
101,358 101,362 129,782 199315
Current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950) (66,109) (101,539)
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 63673 27376
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1,618,092 1,619,892
Non-current liabilities o 13 (98933)  (58933) (57,253) o (57.253)
Net assets 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43971 43971 43971
Retainedggﬂ@ggm ) o 16 801,875 801875 1,396,268 1,396,268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739

Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492.43p

These financial staterments were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust ple [Company No 844921 and
authorsed for issue o1 1 June 2023

D Wataon

D Watson

Director

The ~otes from™ pages 837 to 104 form part of these Financial Statererts
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Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£000 £'000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to het cash outflow from
operating activities
(Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) (543,674) 283,605 283605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2515 2515
Losses/[gaing) on investments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
or loss 594,986 594,990 (265,399} (258,387)
Net movement on foreign exchange, cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes {336) (336) (977} (977}
Serip dividends included in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325) (6,325) (10,839} {10,839)
Sale of investrments 448,587 448,587 544370 544370
Purchase of investments (427,509) (427,509) (430,830} (430,831
(Increase)/decrease In prepayments and
accrued income (978) (978) 8 8
Decrease/{Increase) in sales settiement
debtor 30,399 30,399 (32,871} {32,871
Increase in purchase settlement creditor 3172 3172 5170 5170
Decrease in other debtors 1,419 1,413 2,957 2,951
{Decrease)/increase in other creditors 7 (22,265) (21,797) 13.809 6,798
Net cashftow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 111,512 111,512
Interest paid (4,584) (4,584) (2,515} {2,515}
Taxation paid o (3.403) (3,869) (1.258) (1,258)
Net cashflow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (47,127) (47,127) (45381) (45381}
Repayment of loans L (25,000) (25,000) (60,000) (60,000)
Net cashflow from financing activities _ {72127) B (72,127} (105,387} (105,381}
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2.358 2,358
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 29,114 29112
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash eguivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32,109 32,107
The notes from pages 80 1o 104 form part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements

01 Accounting policies
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a gaing concern basis, in accorgance with
UK-adopted Internationa: accounting standards and in conformity with the requrrements of the Companies Act 2006 The financia
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the Staterment of Recormmended Practice, "F nancial Statements of
Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capitai Trusts, ('SORPY, to the extent that it1s cansistent with UK adopted international
accounting standaros.

Inassessing Going Concern tne Board has made a detailed assessment of the abil ty of the Company and the Croup to mee:
s habilites as they fall due, including stress and squidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falis in investment
valuaTions, revenues recelved and market uguidity as the giohal economy continues to suffer disruption aue to inflationary
pressures, the war in Ukraine and the after-effects of the COVID-19 pandermc

Im hight of the testing carried out, the 'guidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value.
and the net current asset position of the Gioup and Parent Company, the Drectors are satisfied that the Company anc
Croup have adequaie financial resources to continue In operation for at least the next 12 months fellowing the signing of
the financia statemenis and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements ate expressec in sterang, wnich 13 11eir functional and preseniational
currency Sterlingis the functicnal currency becausge it1s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates. Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000; except where otherwise ind'catec.

Key estimates and judgements

Twe preparat.on of the financ al statements necessarily requires tne exercise of juagement, botn n application of
accounting policies, wnich are set out helow, and in the selection of assumptions usec in the calculation of estimates.
These estimates and jJuagements are reviewed on a1 ongoing Dasis and are continually evaluated based on h:stornical
experience and other factors However, actuzl resuts may differ from these estimates The only key estmate

3 congidered fo he the vaiuation of mvestment properties See section (f) of this note “here are not considered

10 be any key jucgements

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidste the finanzia. statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March
2022 Allthe subsidianes of the Company have been consolicated in these *nanc ai slatements 'n accordance witn
IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on tne basis that

It obtains funds from inves:ors and provides those investors with investment management services;

-t commits to 1ts nvestors that 'ts business purpose s o mvest funds solely for returns from capita appreciation anc
investment income, and

* I measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of s nvestments on s farr value basis

Zach of the subsidiaries of the Company wes established for the so.e purpose of operating or supporting the investment
operations of the Company (inz uding raising aad tonzal financing), anc s not itself enimveéstment entity 1RE 10 sets out
thatin the case of controlles entit’es that support 1he mves ment activity of the investmen: entity, those entilies should be
consoadated ratner than presentec as .nvestments at fair vaiue Accordngly tne Company has consohcated the results
and financial pasitions of tnose subsidiaries

Subsdianes a“e conso.udated from the date of their acquis ton, being the date on wiich the Company obtams control, ana
continue 1o he consolicated until Tie date tnat such control ceases. The financial staterments of subsid anes used in the
preparation of the consolicatec financiai statements are based on consisient eccounting policies All intra-group balances and
transact ons, :ncluding unrealised profits ansing tnerefrom. are eliminatec

b} Income

Cwicends “ece'vatie on equity shares are treated as revenue far the vear o1 an ex-dvidend basis Where no ex-div dend
date s ave: able civ.dends recewvabe on or hefore tne year enc are treatec as revenue or the year, Provision s made

for gny dividends rat expected *o be rece ved Where the Group has eiectec 10 “ecelve ithase civiaends in the form of
adcimions shares ratier than cash tae amount o cash civicend foregone is recognised as ncome. Sifferences between
the vaiue of shares received anc t1e casn divicend foregone are recognisec in the cap tal returns of the Group Statement
o’ Comprehensive ncome The fixeo returns on gebt secur ties are "ecogn'sed on a time appariionment bas's sc as to
reflect the effective yield an each such sesurity interest recervahle from cash a1d sno T term cepos1s 15 acorued to the
ena of the year Stock lencing iIncome 18 recagnisec on an accrua's bass Lnaerwntng comm’ss onis taken to revenue,
unless any shares underwntien are required 1o be taken up, in wh:ch case tme proporicnate commiss'on ~ece ved g
aecucted from the cost of the investment

Recognition of property rental income 1s ge* out 11 sect an if: of this note

Recogtion of moome from contracts for difference is set out ngechonigl of theg noie

a0 TR Property Investmnen: Trast



Accounting policies
c) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accountec for on an accruals basis. An ana'ysis of reteined earnings broken down nio
revenue and capital items s given in note 16 [0 arrv ng at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue
‘tems except as follows

- Expenses which are incigental to the acguisition or disposal of an investment;

+ Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the mantenance or enhancement of the va.ue of the
investments zan be demonsirated, ths incluces irrecoverable VAT Incurred on costs reiating 1o the extension of
residential leases as premiums receved for extend ng or terminat ng leases are recogn:sed in the capital account

« One guarter of the base management fee 's charged to revenue, with three guarte-s allocated to capita! return to reflect
tne Board's expectauons of long term nvestment retirns All performance fees are cnarged to cap.tal return,

- The fund administration, cepositary, custocy and company secretanal services are charged directly te the Company and
are incluged within Other administrative expenses’ In note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three guarters to capital,

d) Finance costs

ne finance cost in respect of capital nstruments other than equily shares s calculated 30 asto give a constant rate
o return on the outsiancing balance Qne guarter of the finance costis charged to revenue and three cuarters 1o
capital return.

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to he recoverer from or paid 10 the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and :aws tnat are enacted or substantively enactec by e ba ance sheet dat

ncome tax is charged or credited airectly to equity if 't relates to items tnat are zredited o charged to equity.
Orherwise income tax s recognised in the Group Staternent of Comprenensive Income.

The tax effect of cifferent items of expenditure 1s allocatec between capiial and “evenue using tne Greup s effective rate
of tax for tne year, The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the vear and takes into account taxation deferred
because of temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxat'on and accounting purposes

in accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method usec to calculate tax reief on expenses
presented against capital returns \n the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprenensive Income is the
‘marg nal basis” under this basis, If taxabie income is capable of being offset entu-ely by expenses presented inthe
revenue return coumn of the Statement of Comprehensive ncome, then no tax relief i1s transferred 1o the capiral colurmn

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payabie or recoverable on aferences between the carying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s
accounted for using the balance sheet labiity method Deferred tax abilities are recognisec for all taxable temporary
gifferences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probab’e that taxable profits will be avalabie
against whicn deductible temporary differences can be utiised

The Company 15 an investment 1rust under s 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, 15 not Hable for tax on
capital gans Capital gains ansing in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

f) Investment property

nvestment property IS Measured initiady at cost including transaction costs, Transaction costs inciude transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and 1nit'a: leasing comm 55 ons to bring the property 1o the condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating The car-ying amount also ncludes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that cost 1s incurred if the recogn.tion criteria are met The purchase and sale of properties s
recognised to be effecteg on the date unconditionai contracts are exchanged.

Subseguent to Initial recognition, investrment property is statec at fair value Gains or losses ansing from changes in the
fair values are inciuded 'n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year In wAich they arise.

Investment property I1s derecognised wnen it has been disposed of or permanently vathdrawn from use and no future
sconomic benefit is expected from its cisposal. Any gans or ‘'0sses on the retirement or disposal of investment proper:y
are recognised n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on tne disposal of investment property are getermined as the difference between net disposa! proceeds
and the carrying vatue of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revailuation of investment properties

The Group carries its .nvestment properties at farr value in accorcance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes
in fair values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Croup engaged Knight Frank as
independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

01

87

Accounting policies

Valuations of investment properties

Determination of the fair vaiue of investment properties has been prepered on the basis definea by tne RICS valuation -
Globat Standards (The Red Book Giobal Stancards) as follows:

“The estimated amoun® for which a property shouid exchange on the date o valuation between a willing buyer anc a
wiling seller inan arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein ne parties nad each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion”

The vaiuation takes into account future casn flow from assets (such as lett ngs, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmenial matiers and the overall repair ana condition
of the property) and d.scount rates appiicabie 1o those assets. These assumplions are hased on loca market conditions
existing a* the ba'ance sheet date

In arrving at ther” estimates of fair values as a1 31 March 2023, the valuers have usea their marke! knowledge a1d
protessiona’ jJudgement and have nat onty relied solely on historica' transactional comparables, Exarnples of inputs to the
valuation can be seenin the sensitivity analysis aisclosen in note 10 (&)

Heid for sale investrent are presentec separately on the face of the Balance Sheer,

Held far sale
Investment property classified as held for sale 1s measured farr vaue

This condition is regarded as met only when the mvestment property is avallable “or immediate sale ' ts present
condition anc the sale is highly probable

Management must be committec to a plan for sale with an acuve programme to 1dentify a buyer at @ reasonable price .
re ation ro s fair value which shouid he expected 1o qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one vear from the
cate of classification

Rental income

Rental ncome receivable uncer operating ‘eases ‘s recognised o1 a straight-'ine basis over the term of the iease. except
for cantingent rental -ncome which 1s recognised when it anises.

IMcentives for essees to enter into lease agreements o~ other negotiated rent free per-ods agreec are spread evenly over
the leage term even If Ihe payments are not made on such a basis The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the
ease togetner with any further term for which the tenant has the opt.on to continue the lease, where, at the incept on o*
the \ease, tne directors are reasonagbly certain that the “enant w.i exercise that option Premiums received to terminale or
extend leases are recagnised i1 the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arse

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

[Mcome arising from expenses recharged to tenants s recogn sed in the perioc N wh ¢ tne expense can be contraciually
recovered Service charges and other such receipts are inc.uded gross of the related costs in revenue as 11e directors
consider that the Group acts as principal inth's respect

g) Investments

Vynen a purchase or sale 1s made under contract, the terms of which “equire de.ivery within the tmeframe of 1he ~e'evan:
market, the investments concernec are recogn sed of derecognisec orni the trade date

All the Groups investments are cefined unde IFRS as investments designated as fair va'ue through profitor loss but are
also describec nthese Inancial siatements as invesiments hed at faim va ue

Al investments are cesignated upon nitial recognition as held at faur value, anc are measured at subsequent repoting cates at far
value, wich, for guated investmems, 15 deemed 1o be closing prices for stocks spurced from European stock exchanges and for
SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS 1s the London Stock Exchange elect-onic trading serv ce covenng
most of tne marketincluc.ng all tne FTSE All-Share and the most hiquid A™ constituents Uncuotec invesiments o7 investments
forwhicn thete s only an ‘nactive market are helc at fair vaiue whicn is basen onvaluaiions made by the a rectoss naccocance
Wit IPEVCA gude'ines and us ng cutrent market prices, trading conaitions and the genera economic ¢l mate.

Inits “nancia siatements tve Company recognises the fair value of its investmeniis in suksidiar es as beng the agjusted net asset
vatue The subsidiar’es have hustaricaily been holding vehicles for o rect property iqvesiment o~ financing venicles No assets are
current y Reld trougn the subsiciary structure anc a1 f nancing meiruments are directly held by the Company

Cnanges in the fa ~value are recagn sed in the Group Statement of Comprenensive Income. On d.sposz’, realisec gains
and losses a7e also recogn sed 11 the Group Statement of Comprehieasive 1come

Derivatives

Derwvatives a'e neld at fa - value based on traded prnices Gains and losses an dervat ve transact ons are recognised i1
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income Gans and losses on covtracts for difference { CFDs | and totai return
swaps resu-ing from movements 11 the price of <he underlying stock are reatec as capital, Svvcends from tne uncerlying
nvesiment and financing costs of CFDs and total return sviaps are treated as revenue cap-ta expenses

Cans and ogses ¢n forward currency comtracts used for caprig hecqing putposes ate treated as capia

TR Property investrent Trust
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G1 Accounting pohicies

Derivatives continued
CFDs are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investmenis' undertying market values.

The sources of the returns under the denvative contract {e.g notional dividends, financing costs, :nterest returns and
capital changes) are allocated 10 the revenue and capital zcceunts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source
of income anc in accordance w'th the guidance gvenin the AIC SORP Notional dividend mcome or expenses ansing cn
long or snort posriions are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expensa on ong positions 's
apportionec between revenue and capial in accordance with the Board's long term expecied returns of the Company
(currently determined 1o be 25% to the revenue account and 75% to cap tal reserves) Changes i value relating io
unaerlying prce movements of securities in relation 1o CFD exposures are ailocated wholly to capital reserves

uoda aiBajens

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

Alltoans and debentures are initialy recognised a1 the fair value of the consideration receivec, 'ess 1ssue costs where
applicable. After initial recognition, al: interest beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost Amiortisec cost s calculated by taking into account any ¢ scount or premium on settlement The costs of arranging
any Inerest bearing loans are capitalised and amartised over the life of the ioan on an e'fective interest rate basis

20UBLIBAOY

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactons involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the ransaction.

Foreign cutrency monetary assets anc habilities are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date
Fore'gn exchange cifferences are recoegnised n tne Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Casn and casn equivalents are measured at amort.sed cost and comprise cash inhanc ana demand deposits.
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

interim dividends are recognised in the period .n which they are paid and fina divicends a'e recognised when agpproved
by shareholcers

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adoptea are cons.stent with those of the previous consoncated financial statements

Tnere were no amendments o International Financia’ Reporting Standards or Interpretations that had an effect qunng the period

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting cate that become effect ve after 31 March 2023 are not expected to have
amateral effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period The Group has not earty adopted any new nternational
Sinancial Report ng Standard or Interpretation Standards, amendments and interpretat:onsissued but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements are listed below

IAS 1 Amendments - Crassification of Liabilites as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 January 2023),
The amendments spec-fy the requirements for classifying fiakilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not
expected to have a matenial Impact o1 the Group's financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendrments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023) The emendments require an entity to
disclose its material accounting pobey information instead of 1ts significant accounting policies. “he amendments contain
guidance and examples on identifying matenal accounting policy information

2
o
7
w
4
<
w
3
a
E
]
=
o
=]
w0
Q
[=]
w
c
s
m

z

|AS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates {effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting 2

esumates as 'monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty . The amendments 5

aiso clarfy the interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. 2

IAS 12 Amendments - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabities ansing from a Single Transaction {effective 1 January

2023} The amendments require entities with certain assets to recognise deferreg tax on parucular transactons that, on

Initial recognition, give nise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

0z

03

04

Investment income

Dividends from UK listed investments
Dividends from overseas listed investments
Scrip dividends from listed investments

Net rental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs

Operating leases

2023 2022
£000 £'000

3,084 3101
30,891 21349
6,325 10,692
"7z 9,027
52,077 447170

2023 2022

£000 £000

3,513 2773

946 1103
 (1,660) B (1.435)
2,799 o 2,441

The Group has entered :nto commercial leases on its property porfolio Commercral property leases typically have lease
terms between 5and 15 years and incluce clauses to enable penodic upwarc rev.sion of the renta charge accarding to
prevaning market conditions. Some leases conta 1 aptians to breax before tie end o the lease term

Future minimum renta's under non-cancellable cperat ng .eases as at 31 March are as foliows’

Within 1 year
After 1 year but not more than 5 years
More than Syears

Other operating income

Interest receivable
interest on refund of overseas withholding tax
Income received to capital

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

2,900 2,800

9,900 10,250

] 415 17.500
26,950 30,550

£000 £'000
255
- 5
I ¢ _
267 5

TR Procerty lrvesimrent Trust



05 Management and performance fees

2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £'000 £000

Management fee 1,560 4,680 6,240 1,663
Perfarmance fee - ) - _ - )
1,560 4,680 6,240 1663

2022
Capital
£000
4,988
24,489
29477

A summary of the terms of the management agreement ig given in the Report of the Directors on page 47

Under the terms of this agreement the manager is not entitled to a performance fee for the year to 31 March 2023

06 Other administrative expenses

2023
£'000

Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 o 65) 228
Auditer's remuneration:

— for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial

statements 97
Legal fees 1
Taxation fees 90
Other administrative expenses 187
Other expenses 532
lrrecoverable VAT L L ~ .. 2B
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,163
Expenses charged to Capital L e 542
o (1,705

Ocher administrative expenses include depositaty, custody and company secretarial services These expenses are

2022
Total
£000
6657
24 489
31,140

2022
£'000

220

82

27
77
199
869
153
1,621
608

2229

charged on the same bas’'s as the base management fee, 25% to income and 75% to capita' Total other adm nist-ative

expenses charged to both income anc capital are £721,000 (2C22: £807,00C)

Other expenses include broxer fees, marketing and PR costs, Directars' National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars
and listing fees, and ennua' report and other puklication printing and distribution costs These expenses are cha-ged

soiely to the revenue account

Annual Report & AcCounts 2025
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

2023 2022
£'000 £000

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafts repayabie within 1 year 3,189 1,162
Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 837 314
Loannotes repayable after 5 years ) - . ©558 - 539
4,584 2,515
Amount allocated to Capital S o (3438 {1886)
Amount allocated 1o Revenue o - 1146 o 6209
08 Taxation

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000

UK carporation tax at 19%

(2022: 19%) 4,221 (3,521) 700 2,832 (2.832)
Qverseas taxation 2,148 1,026 3,174 2135 - 2135
6,369 (2,495) 3,874 4967 (2,832) 2,135
Over provision in respect of prior
vears (282) - {282}
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (28323 2,135
Deferred taxation - - - - (217) (217}
Current tax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (3,049 1.918

o TR Preperty irvesiment Trus?



08 Taxation

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessec for the year s lower (2022 lower) than the standard rate of corporation ax in the UK for a large
compariy of 19% (2022 19%)

The difference s explained below

2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Net profit/(loss) on ordinary

activities before taxation B 60,724 {604,398) (543,674} 48404 235207 283605

Corporalion tax charge a1 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538 (114,836) (103,298} 9197 44 688 53,885

Effects of;

Non taxable losses/(gains} on

investments - 104,392 104,392 - (47,317} (47,317}

Currency maverments not taxanle - 145 145 - (337} (337)

Tax relief on expenses charged to

capital - (1,878) (1,878) - 3,243 3243

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656 - {3,709} (3.109)

Nen-taxable UK dividends {586) - (586) {603) - (603)

Mon-taxable overseas dividends (6,791) - (6,791) (5,810 - (5,810}

Overseas withholding taxes 2,148 1,026 3174 2135 - 2135

Deferred tax movement - - - - (217) (217}

Over provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282)

Diszllowable expenses 131 - 131 26 . 26

Deferred tax not provided (71) - (71) 22 - 22
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (3.049) 1,918

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for ceferred taxation providea at 25% (2022: 25%) comprise’

Group
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Unutilised losses carried forward - {903) {903) - ~(203) (903)
Shown as:
Deferred tax asset _ - ~ (903) {903) - (903) (903)
Company 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Unutilised losses carried forward - (903} (903) - (203) (903)
Shown as’
Deferrad tax asset _ - ~ (903) (903) - (303) (903)

Annual Report & Accounis 20232 &
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08

0%

Taxation

c) Provision for deferred taxation continued

The movement in provision in the year is as follows.

Group 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686) {686

Unutilised losses carried forward ] - - o - - (217} (217)

Provision at the end of the year - {903) (903} - (903) (903)
Company

2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Revenue Capital Total

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686) (686)

Unutllised losses carried forward - - - - (2¥7) (217)

Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903) - (903} {903}

The Group has 1ot recognised defer-ed tax assets of £5601,217 (2022 £8,007,769) ansing as a resu t of losses carmed
forwara 't1s cansidered oo unceriain that the Group wiil generate profits in e relevant companies that tne lesses would be
available <o offset against end, on this basis, the deferred tax asset 1IN respect of these expenses has not been recognised

Due 1o the Company's status as an investment trust company and the iniention 1o continue meeting the cond-tions
required to obtain approval for the foreseeable futu-e, tne Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains
ansing on the revaluation or disposal of Investments.

Earnings/{loss) per Ordinary share

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Net revenue profit 54,637 43437

Net capital profit ) ) (601,903) 238,250

Nettotal profit ] ) L _ o __{547.268) _ 281,687
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year ] 317,350,980 317350980

Revenue earnings per share 17.22 1368

Capital earnings per share (189.67) 7507

Earnings per share - (172.45) ) 88.76

The Group has no securities in issue that couid dilute the return per share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per share
are the same.

TR Zroperty Investment Trust



10 Investments held at fair value

a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £000 £'000

Listed in the United Kingdom 383,302 383,303 516,076 516,076

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,573 2,573 2,341 2,347

Listed Overseas 488,839 488,839 940,744 940,744

Investrment properties 73,957 73,957 47275 47,275

vestments held forsale - - 48,980 ) 48,980

Investments held at fatr vaiue 948,672 948,672 1,555,416 1,555,416
Investments in subsidiaries

at fair value B s 36,292 - 36,297

97478,672 984,964 1555476 1,591,713

Investments held for sale: mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a

sale expected to complete by the end of June 2022. Uitimately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commercial element for the foreseeabie future. There are no investments held for sale as
at 31 March 2023,

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

31 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Listed investments 1,456,820 {52,591) (532,087) 872,142 51,450 43,775
Unlisted investments 2347 - 232 2,573 627 395
Contracts for difference - 7657 42,561 {45,556) 4662 9462 5,701
Total nvestments segment 1,466,818 {10.030) (577.4171) 879,377 61,539 49,871
Direct property segment 96,255 {4,723) {17,575) 73957 4,459 3.876
1,563,073 (14,753)  (594,986) 953,334 65,998 53,747

In seeking to ach.eve Its ‘nvestment obsective, the Company invests n the shares and secur es of property companies
and property e ated bus nesses internationally and atso in nvestment property ;jocated inthe UK The Company
therefore considers that there are two distinet reporting segrments, investments and direct property, which are used

for evaluating performance and alocat.on of resources The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives
mformation on the two segments on a regu ar bas:s Whilst revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed
10 the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be split to allow a profit for each segment io be
determined The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,660000 (2022 £1,435,000) and deducting these costs from the direct
property gross revenue ahove would result in net income of £2.799,000 (2022 £2 4471,000) *or the direct property
reporiing segment

Annual Report & Accounts 2023 ge
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10

Investments held at fair value

c) Geographical segment reporting |

Gross Gross
Valuation Net BEe  Valuation revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 (disposals) (depreciation} 2023 2023 2022 '
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £:000
UK listed equities and convertibles 516,076 46,391 {(179,164) 383,303 15,941 11,731
UK unlisted equities 2,347 - 232 2,573 395 395
UK direct property’ 96,255 (4722} (17,575) 73,957 4,459 3876
Continental European listed equities 940,744 {38,982) (352923) 488,839 35,741 32044
1,655,416 (57,314} (549 430} 048,672 56,536 48046
UK contracts for difference? 1627 31,268 (33837M) (936) 3,425 1676
European contracts for difference? 6,030 11,293 (11,725) _ 5,598 6,037 4085
1,563,073 {14753} (594,986) 953,334 65,998 53747 I

included 3 the above figures are purchase costs of £881.000 (2022 £489,000) and sales costs of £238,000 (2022
£25%,000).

These comprise mainy stamp duty and comm ssion

The Company received £512,155000 (2022 £544,092 000) from investments, inc'uding direct property, sola in the
year The book cosl of these investments when they were purchased was £412,279,000 12022 £3496,438,00C:. These
‘nvesiments nave been revaluea over time and until they were sold any unrealisec gains/losses were incluged in the fair
value of the investments

’ Net adations/idisposael nciuges £480,000 (2022 £366.000] oif capital expenditure Net appreciat on/(depreciation)
nciudes amounts inrespect of rent free periods

7 Grossrevenue for contracts for arfference relates to dridends recervable, on an ex dividenc basis, 01 tne underlying
cositions held The appreciation/{deprecation) in CFDs reia‘es to the movement in farr value n the year

: “he depreciation n the TRS relates to tne movement in fair va'ue in the yvear unt: maturizy.

d) Substantial share interests

The Group held nterests in 3% or more of any class of capital 'n 6 companes (2022 8 companies) nwhich it invests
None of *ese investments is considered significant inthe context of these financiz statements See note 21 on pages 103
anc 104 for fu-ther detalls of subsidiary Invastmeants

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financ.al asse's and financial Lakilities are cariec 11 11e Ba ance Sneet e ther at their fair va'ue linvesiments) or the
balance sheet amount 's a reasonable approximation of fair value [due from Grokers, div.cencs anc interest receivable,
due to brokers, accrua's anc cash at bank}

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Categonisation vatin the tuerarchy has been determined o the basig of 1ne lowest ieve: nput that s s gnificant to the farr
value measurement of the relevant asset as follows

Leve' 1 -valued us ng cuoted prices .1 an active marke: for icentical asse's
Leve: 2 - va ued by reference 10 valuaton techn ques us ng cbhservakle nputs ather than quoted prices witn 7 Leve 1
_evel 3 - valued by ~eference 1o valuat on technigues using .nputs that a'e 1ot basec o observakb e matket cate

The va uation technigues used by the Group are explained 1 1ne accountng pohcies mnotes 109 anc 1i¢,

TR Sroperty Investment Trust



10

investments held at fair value

€) Fair vaiue of financial assets and financial liabilities continued

The table below sets cut fair value measurements us:ng IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Level 1
At 31 March 2023 £000
Eguity investments 861,611
Investment properties -
Contracts for difference -
Foreign exchange forward contracts -

o L 861,611

Level 1
At 371 March 2022 £'000
Equity investments 1,456,820
Investment properties
Contracts for difference
Foreign exchange forward contracts

1,456,820

Level 2
£000

10,531

4,662

(386)

14,807

Level 2
£'000

7,657

2,736

10,393

Level 3 Total
£000 £'000
2,573 874,715

73,957 73,957

- 4,667
- o  (386)
76,530 952,948

Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000
2,347 1,45%2161

96,255 96,255

7.657
2,736
98,596 1565809

e table above ~epresents the Group's farr value hierarcny The Company's fair value hierarchy 1s identical except for the
meclusion of tne fair value of the investment in subsidiaries which at 31 March 2023 was £36,292 000 (2022 £36,297.000;
Tnese have heen categorised as ievel 310 both years. The maovement .n the year of £5,000 (2022 £7.015,000) 15

the change in fair value in the year The total financia- assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2023 was

£984,964,000 {2022 £1,581,713,0001.

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March

2022

At 31 March 2023 £'000

Unlisted equity investments 2,341
Investrment properties

- Mixed use 48187

— Office & Industrial 48,008

B 96,255

198,596

Purchases
£'000

387
a3

480

480

Sales
£000
(5,203)

(5,203)
(5.203)

31 March

Appreciation /

(Depreciation) 2023
£'000 £000

232 21§_?3

(6,746} 36,625
(10.829) 37,332

(W 7,575) 73,_957
(17.343) 76,530

All appreciation/{depreciation) as slated above relates to movements in fair value of unlisted eguity mvesiments and

mvestment properties hield at 31 March 2023

Tne Group heid one unguoted investment at tne vea” end {see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers duning the year between any of the levels

Lnnual Report & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10

11

Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The signif cant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement calegorised within Leve 3 of the fair value
nierarchy of iInvestment properties are;

- Estimated renta! value: £7 5- £65 per sq ft {2022 £6 5-£65)

+ Capialisation rates: 3 0% - 6.0% (2022, 2.0% - 8.0%)

Significant Increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growta nisolation would resuit in a sigficantly

higher (lower: “air value measuremen: A significant increase [gecrease) inlong-term vacancy rate inisolation would
result in a s'gnificantiy lower (fugher] fair value measurerment

There are interrelationships between the yields and renta’ values as they are partiaty determined by market rate
condition The sensitvity of the valuation to cnanges in the most significant inputs per ¢ ass of investment property are
shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2023 arising from £'000 £'000

Increase inrental value 5.0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
Decrease in rental value 5 0% {289) {1,712) - (2,001)
increase In Yield 0.5% (3,538) (3,466) - (7.004)
Decrease in Yield 0.5% 4,343 4,261 - 8,604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2022 arising from £'0006 £060 £'600 £'060
increase inrental value by 5% 306 2,266 145 2717
Decrease in rental value by 5% (294} (2,266} () (2,561}
Increase inyield by 0 5% (3,865) (6,343} (832) (11.040)
Decrease inyield by 0 5% 4,847 871 1,100 14653

No impa rment losses nave been recogn'sed as at 31 March 2023

Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures

The CGroup Mvests In equites and otner nstruments for the long termon the pursuit of the Investment Objective set out
on page 33 Tne Group 1s exposed 1o g variety of risks thet cou d resurt in e tner a regustion of anincrease i 11e pro‘ins
valiable ‘or disiribution by way of dividends

Tne principal nsks *ne Croup faces inits porto’ ¢ management activities are
- Market ns< (comprising pnce nisk, currency ris< and nterest -ate risk:

- Licugity misk

- Credrnsk

The Manage-'s polic es and processes for managing these “isks are summanised o1 pages 37 10 40 and have beenapphed
throughout e yeg-

TR Sraperty Investrent Trust
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Financial instruments
11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its acuvities, the Group's investments are exposed 1o mar<et price fluctuations.

Management of the risk

The Manager runs a diversified portfolic and reports to the Board on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board
meeting The Boarc monitars the investment activ ty and strategy to ensure it 's compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group's exposure to changes 'n market prices onits quoted equity investments, CFDs and 'nvestment property

portfalio, was as folows:
2023 2022
£'000 £000

948,672 1,555,416
130,906 144,642

Investments held at fair value
CFD long gross exposure

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Folicies on page 34, there are guidel nes to the amount of exposure to a singie company,
geographical region or direct property These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to indwvidua: or sector
price nsks, As an invesiment company dedicated to investment in the property sec:or, the Group is exposed to price
movements across the property asset class as a whole

Price risk sensitivity

The following table Hustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and tne value of sharehoicers' funds to
an increase or gecrease of 15% 1n the far values of the Group's equity, fixed ‘nterest, CFD and direct property mvesiments
The level of change s consistent with the tustration shown i 1he previous vear The sensitivity is basec on the Group's
equity. fixed interest, CFD and drect property exposure at each balance sneel date, with al, otner variables neld constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£000 £'000 £000 £°000
Statement of Combreﬁénswe ] - '
Income - profit after tax
Revenue return (71) 71 (115) 115
Capital return ] 142,826 (142,826) 234176 (234,176)
Change to the profit after tax for the
year/sharehclders’ funds 142,755 (142,755) 234061 (234,067}
Change to total earnings per Ordinary
Share ) 44.98p (44.98)p 73.75p (7378)p

11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group's portfolio is 1nvested in overseas securit-es and their sterling value can be significantly affected

by movements in foreign exchange rates

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio neld in sterling,
Euros or other currencies The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movemen:s outside the Eurozone by
funding investments in overseas securities with unsecured .oans denominated in the same currency or througn

forward currency contracts

Cash deposits are helc in sterling andsor Eure denominated accounts.

Anrual Report & Accounis 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11

Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure
(sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency plyk 2022

Sterhing 34.0% 340%
Euro 42.0% 42 0%
Swedish Krona 14.0% 16.0%
Other 100% __ B80%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to fore'gn currencies
of tne net monetary assets and habiites,

Swedish
Sterling Krona

2023 £000 £'000

Receivables {due from brokers,

dividends and other income recevable) 10,534 51,105 2,811 837
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,226 20,620 4,299 2,926
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (10,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (10,573) (1,221) (1,474) -
FX forwards 7 (118,592) 52,283 39,628 26,295
Total foreign currency exposure on net
rmonetary items (120,405} 122,787 45,264 30,058
investments held at fair value 459,832 330,586 88,592 69,662
Non-current agsets 903 - - -
Non-current liabilities _(15000) (43,933) o - L -
Total currency exposure N 325,330 409,440 133,856 - 99,720
Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2022 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Receivables {due from brokers, o - B B
dividends and other income receivable} 53,912 27758 12,659 6508
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341 3247 2,883 5638
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (35,000} - - -
Payables (due o brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (25,6472) (111) (1,634) (3.722)
Fxforwardgs (88,280} 1 0,996) 59877 B 42,135
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items {74,669) 19898 73,785 44 659
Investments held at fair value 614672 680,755 181,455 78,534
Non-current assets 903 - -
Neon-current ligbilities ) (15,000} (42253) - ) -
Total currency exposure ] 525806 658,400 2557240 B 123,193

Foreign currency sensitivity

The follgwing tabe ihustrates the sensitraty of tne proft after fax fo- the yea  on e Group s equitly nregarc "o The
exchange -ates for stering/Fu-o and steriing Swedish <rona and other curencies

T assumes tne ‘ollowing changes nexchanige rates

» sterhing/Euro +:- 15% 12022 15%)

< steming/Swedign Krona +- 154120322 157

- sierlng other + - 15% (2022 15w

TR Property Investmert Trus
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Financial instruments .. -~

Foreign currency sensitivity continued

If stering had strengthened against the currencies shown, tnis would have had the foilowing effect

Year ended March 2023
Swedish

Euro Kroha
£'000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax

Revenue returp (4,080) (354) (370)
Capital return ) (53,496) (17.442)  (12,993)
Change 1o the profit after tax for

the yeat/shareholders’ funds (57,576) (17,796)  (13,363)

2023

Change to total earnings per share (27.96)p

Year ended March 2022

Swedish
Euro Krona Other
£°000 £'000 £'000
{3,215) {3599} (252)

(72,110) (33,256} (16,053}

(75.325)  (33,655) (16,305)

I sterling had weakened zga st the currencies shown, this wouid have the foliowng effect

Year ended March 2023
Swedish

Euro Krona
£'000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive
Incorme — profit after tax

Revenue return 5,392 446 475

Capital return 72,392 23608 17,586

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds 77,784 24,054 18,061
2023

Change to tetal earpings per share ) 37.78p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect

-the fair value of any investments in fixed interest secunities;

- the fair value of the loan notes,

- the level of mcome recevable from cash at bank and on deposit,
- the level of interest expense on any vanable rate bank loans, and
- the prices of the underlying securities heid in the porfolios

Management of the risk

2022
(39.48)p

Year ended March 2022

Swedish

Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000
4419 475 314
136,656 45017 4T
141,075 45492 5085
2022
60.3%p

The possibie effects on fair value and cash flows tnat could arise as a result of changes ininterest rates are taken 1nto
account when mak'ng investment decisions Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of
gearing and structure of its debt portfol'ois a key factor when assessing the investment m a property company

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate horrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed,
detalls gre set out in note 13 In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan
facilities which carry variable rates of interest basec on the currencies drawn, plus a margin The unused facilties total

£120,000,000 (2022 £95,000,000)

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11

G5

Financial instruments -

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the leve' of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (" e the oan notes and any bank .cans
drawn) and the "see-through’ gearing, taking into account the assets and ‘iabiities of the undemy ng iInvesiments, when
considering the investment portfolic These gearing levels are reported reguiarly to the Board.

“me majority of the Croup's investment portfolio 15 non-interest hearing Asa resuit the Group's fnancial assets are not
directly subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations i the prevailing levels of market interest rates

Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 March of “inancial assets and financiai habilities to nterest rate n1sk is shown by reference to:
- floating interes: -ates when the interest rate is due to be re-set

« fixed interesi rates: when the financiai Instrument 1s due to be repaid

Tne Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets 's £81,170,000 (2022 £77,242000)

The Group's exposure 1o f xed interest rates on liabilities is £58,633.000 {2022 £57,253,000)

The Group's exposure 1o floating interest rates on habiities 15 £10,000,000 (2022 £35,000,000)

Interest receivable and finance cos's are at the following rates

+ Interest receved on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, s ata margin over SONA orits foreign currency I
equivalent {2022: same;
Inzerest paid on borrow.ngs under the mut -cur-ency 'oan facilities, is at a margin over SONIA or its fare:gn currency
equivaient for the type of loan (2022: same)

¢ The f nance charges on the £50m and £15m loan notes are at iqterest rates of 1.92% and 3 59% regpectively

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure 1o Interest rates dunng the year as the leve of exposure
changes as investments are made n fixed interest securities, borrowings are d-awn down and epa’d, and the mix of
bo-rowings between floating and fixed interest rates changes

interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on nterest rates at the reporting date wou d have had the foliawing direct impact

2023 2022 2022

2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£'000 £'0G0 £'000 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (198) 198 (243} 243
Change to 1otal earnings

per share {0.06)p 0.06p (0.08p 0.08p

This level of change 1s not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the year
This assessment does not ta<e Nto account the impact o interest -ate cnances on the marxet value of t1e Investments
the Group "o'cs

11.4 Liquidity risk
Jaguoted myvestments 1 the port®o 1o are subject to hguicity nsk 7ne Group neld one ungquotes Investmen: at the year
end (see 11.6 below)

n certain market cond T ons, the hgu a =y of direct prope~ty vestments may be reduced AT 31 Margh 2023, 8% (2022: 6™
of tve Group's investmen: portfolio was he ¢ nc'rect property nvestments

At 31 March 2023, 02, (2022: 947 of the Group s ivestmen: portiohc 1s held in 'stec secunities wh on e predom nan: v
reacly realisatle

Ban« ‘oan faciities e short termirevo ving loans which it is intended are renewed o replacec but "enewal cannot be
=
certain. _ocan notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in Februaty 2026 anc 2037 respect vely

Tretatle snows tne tmng of cash outflows 1o settie the Croup s cur-ent - ab 1ties togethe with antic pated interes! cosis

TR Property Investmer: Trust
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Financiatl instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within More than
1-2years 2-3years  3-4years 4-Syears Syears
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,933
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and l0an notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditars _ 141 - - - - - - 14
23,012 1,382 45,174 539 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 35000 - - - - - 35000
Loan notes - - - 42 253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,247 539 2124 7.954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlerment 5364 - - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred income 25523 - - - - - 25523
Other creditors 222 - - - - - ez
6745% 1,350 1350 43494 539 17124 131316

crenewsd fo ore vea B February J023 2100 200 25 v (7 57 vattho by ance sneet date

renewod in iy MZ22 £

Te M Ty as

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property Investments These are set
outin the Investment Policies on page 34. All unguoied investments with a vatue over £1m and direct property investments with a
value over £5 m Ihon must be app-oved by the Boara for purchase.

The Company maintzins regular contact with tne banks providing revolv.ng faciities and renewal discussions commence
well ahead of facility renewal dates. 'n addition new opportunities for the provision of debt a-e explorea on an ongoing
basis

11.5 Credit risk

"ne failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transacton could result in the Group suffering
aloss. Atthe perniod end the largest counterparty nsk, which the Group was exposed 1o was within Debtors and Cash and cash
eguivalenis where the tota bank balances held w1t one counterparty was £56,326,000 (2022 £50,101,000)

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing 1srev ewed periodically by the
Manager, and imils are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker Cash at hankis only held with banks w th
7101 quality external credit ratings
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Financial instruments

Credit risk exposure

in summary, comparec to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximuim exgosure 1o creait nigk at 31 March was as “o lows

2023
Balance

Sheet
£'000

Debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

65,287
36,071
101,358

2023
Maximum
exposure
£'000
65,287
36,071

101,358

2022
Balance
Sheet
£000
97673
32,109

129,782

2022
Maximum
exposure
£000
97,673
32,109

129,782

Where the receivabies of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the regu-rement for impa:rment 1s assessed at each vea-
end. For ali ~eceivekles. 'n the 1able above, noimpairment nas been recognised in reation to expected credit losses as the
impact of these losses 1Is immatesial as at 31 March 2023 (37 March 2022 no impairment

Offsetting disclosures

norder 1o define its contractua! rights better and 1o secure rignig that wil nelp tne Group mitigate 1ts counterparty nisk,
the G oup may enter Imto an ISDA Master Agreement or s mlar agreement with 178 OTC derivat've contract counterpacties
An ISDA Master Agreement 1S an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs O7C genvatives and
foreign exchange contracts ana typ-cally coniains, among other things, col'ateral posting terms and netting provisions
nthe event of a default andsor termination event. Under an ISDA Master Agreement, the Greup has a comtractual nght

10 offset wth the counterparty certain derivative financial imstruments payabies andsor recewvables with co'latera

held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of defaut inc uding the banxrupicy or msolvency

0 the counterparty. However, ban<ruptcy or msolvency laws o a particufar jur'sdiction may ‘mpase restr ctions on or

proh.bitions aga nst the right of offset in bankruptcy, snsolvency or other evéents

The disciosures set out in the follow.ng tables mclude financiar assets ane Yinancia habilities that are subject to an

enforceable master netting asrangement or similar agreement

A1 31 Mamch 2023 and 2022 the Group's derivative gssets and 1abilities thy type and counterparty’ were as follows

Year ended 2023

Net amounts
of financial
assets/

(liabilities)
presented in
the Balance

Sheet
£000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs 4,662
4,662

FX forward contracts:

HSBC (386)
(386)

Cash collateral
pledged
£000

65,117
65,117

Year ended 2022

Net amounts
of financiat
assets/
liabilities
presented in
the Balance
Sheet

£'000

7657
7657

2,736
2736

Cash collateral
pledged
£000

45,133
45733

TR Property Irvestment irust




11 Financialinstruments
11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financiai assets
and finanzial liabilities are eitner carned in the balance sheet at ther fair value (nvestments) or the balance sheet
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value {debtors, creditars, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and
prepayments)
The fair values of the listed imvestments are derivea from tne closing price or last traded price &t which the securties are
quoted on the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges
The fai-value of contracts for difference are based on the underly ng I'sted investment vaiue as set cut abeve anc the
amount due from or 1o the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset o hab ity accordingly, which is
disclesed in Note 13 for the current year
The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) va.wation of the properties on the Balance
Sheet date by an incepenaent frm of valuers (<night Frankl
There was ane unguotec Invesiment at the Ba-ance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total vaiue of £2,573,000 (2022: Atrato,
£2.341,0000
intne Parent Company accounts Thee are investments of £36,3356,006 (2027 £36,297.000) 'n uniisted subs'aiares whnich
are classified as level 3.
The amgounts of change in fair value for invesiments ‘ne uding net returns on CFCs recogrised in tne consohdated profit
or loss for tne year was a ioss o° £594,086,000 (2022. £265.39%,00C gan)
11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group's capital management objectives are
- 1@ ensure that !t will be abie to continue as a3 going concern, ana
+ to maximise tne total return 1o 178 equity shareholders through an appropnate balance of equity capital and debt
The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2023 consisted of caled up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £968,346,000 (2022 £1,562,739,000) The Group does not regard the ioan notes and loans
as permanent capital.
The loan notes agreement requires compliance w'th a set of f-nancia covenants, ncluding
« Totai Borrowings shail not exceed 33% of Ad ustec Net Asset Value,
+ the Adjustec Total Assets shall at alt times be equivalent to a m nimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
- the Adjusted NAY shal not be less than £260,000,000

12 Debtors

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year
Securities and properties sold for

future settlement 2,739 2,739 33138 33138

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement - - 2736 2,736

Taxrecoverable 3,857 3,857 3,244 2879

Prepayments and accrued income’ 6,146 6,146 5168 5168

Amounts receivable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7657 7657

CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 45133

Other debtors o 1,848 1,854 497 497
65,287 65,293 97,673 97,208

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 7 903 03 903 ag3

Includes amounts nrespect of -ent f<¢e perods
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liabilities

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £°000 £000

Amounts falling due within cne year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 10,000 10,000 35,000 35,000

Securities and properties purchased

for future settlement 8,536 8,536 5364 5,364

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35,869

Amounts payable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 936 936 -

Tax payable 702 700 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25,523 25,523

Foreign exchange ferward contracts

for settlernent 386 386 - -

Other creditors 141 131 222 183
23,654 59,950 ) - 66,109 101,439

Non-current habilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43,933 42253 42,253
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2037 15,000 15,000 15,000 15.000

58,933 58,933 57253 57,253
Loan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company ‘ssued 1 92% Unsecured Euro 53,000,000 _oan hNotes and 3 59% _nsecured
CBP 15,000,000 Logn Notes which are due to be redeemed at par an the 10th February 2026 and 10th “ebruary 2031
respectively

The farr value of the 1 92% Euro _oan Notes was £43,879,000 {2022 £42.34C,000) and tne 3 594, CBF Lcan Notes was
£14.338,000{2022 £74,875.600) at 31 Marcn 2023

Using the IFRS 13 fair va ue hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorisec witmin _evel 2
The :0an notes agreemens reguires compliance with a set of finzncial covenants, Inciuding
+ Total Borrowings snall not exceed 33% of Adiustec het Asset Vaiue,
- the Adjusted Total Assets sha!, at all t mes ke equivalent to a mimimum of 30C* of Total Sarrow ngs, and
- the Adjusted NAY sha'l not be less tnan £260,000,000
Tne Company and Group comptiec w'th the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout 11e year
Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
0

Tne Croup a'so hag unsecured, muls -currency, “evclving short-term oz facrities totall ng £130,C00,000 (20
£130,000,000; at 31 March 2023 A7 21 Mach 2022 £10.000,090 was drawn on these facil ies (2022 £3500

22
C 001,

Tae matursy of these fac es s snown innetes 11 3and 11 4.

130 TR #roperty Investment Trust




13 Current and nen-current liabilities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £000
Opening liabilities from: financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows
Repayment of bank loans - (25,000) (25,000)
Mon cagh-flowe
Movement on foreign exchange 1,680 - 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 - 10,000 68,933

Called up share capital
Ordinary share capital

The ba ance c.assif ed a3 ord nary share capital includes tne nominal value proceeds on theissue of the Ordinary eguity
share capral comprising ordinary shares of 25p

Issued, allotted

Number and fully paid £000
Ordinary shares of 25p
ALT April 2022 ) 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2023 . 317350980 79338

The voting rights are disclosed 1n the Report of the Directors on page 49
Dur ng the year, the Company mace no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2022 none)

Since 37 March 2023 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account
The balance ¢ assified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on 1ssue of the
equ ty share capital compnising Orcinary shares of 25p

Capital redemption reserve

The capital recemption reserve is used 10 "ecord the amount equivalent 1o the nominal value of purchases of the
Company's own shares in order to maintam the Company's capital.

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£000 £'000 £:000

investment holding (losses) / gains (99,771) (81,449) 412,934 431,260
Realised capital reserves 828,859 N 802,597 918,057 891,806
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323,066
Revenue reserve 72,787 80,727 65277 73,207
Total retained earnings 801,875 801,875 1.396,268 1,396,268

The realised capital reserves are distributable by way of a divigend to shareholcers or utilised for the repurchase of share
capriial, net of any unrealised iosses on investments neid. The revenue reserve represents accumulatec revenue profits
from which annual dividends are pa'd.
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Notes te the financial statements
continued

17

18

19

20

Dividends

Year ended
31 March 2023

£000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 3.20p

{2021: 9.00p) per share 29,196

Interim dividend for the year ended 37 March 2023 of 5.65p

{2022 5.30p) per share ) 17,93
47,127

Year ended
31 March 2022
£'000

28,562

16819
45,381

Amounts not recagnised as distributions 16 equity holders
in the year:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 371 March 2023 of 9.85p
(2022:9.20p) per share o 31,259

- 28196

The final dividend has not beenincluged as aiiability in these financial statements .0 accorcance with 1AS 10 Events

a‘ter the reporting per.od’.

Set out below 1s the total dividend 1o be paid in respect of the year. Tn.s is the basis on which the requirements of 5 1158

of t1e Corporation Tax Act 2010 are consicered

Year ended
31 March 2023

£'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 371 March 2023 of 5.65p
(2022: 5.30p) per share 17,931

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 317 March 2023

of §.85p (2022 9.20p) per share 131,259

49,190

Company statement of comprehensive income

Year ended
31 March 2022
£'000

16,819

29,196
46,015

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Campany has not presented its own Statemen: ¢
Comprehens.ve income. The net loss after taxation of the Company dea t with i1 t7e accounts of the Group was

£547,266,000 (2022 £281,687.000 proAt;

Net asset value per ordinary share

Net asset value per Ord'nary share 15 based on the net assets attr butable 10 Orginary shares of £268,346,0C0 (2022

£1.562,739,000) and on 317,350,985 {2022 317,350,9801 Ordinary sharesin ‘ssue at tne year end

Commitments and contingent liabilities

AL 31 March 20232 the Groug had caprre commitments of £20,00C12022 £74,.000) but no conungent .ebr tes (2022 1

TR Property Irvestment Trust




2171 Subsidiaries

The Group has the fohowing principal subs dianes, all of which are registerec and operating in Scotiand, England and

Wales:
Name
New England Properties Limited

The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited

The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Six) Limited

Trust Union Properties {(Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Eight} Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Unicn Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Cardiffy Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale} Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two} Limited
Trust Urion Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance {18917) Plc

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited

FGH {(Newcastle) Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern} Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited
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Reg. Number

788895
28268672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2476015
2415843
2476017
2415839
2416018
2475836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2416027
2415768
2476030
2415772
2416031
24715765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SCe8799
1466619
g77481
1385209
2613905
1447221
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities

Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Naon-trading company
Non-traging company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-traging company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company
Investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

27

22

Subsidiaries

The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for t1em to take the exemption from the
requirement of an audit, in ine with the requirements of S 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Alithe subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are arginary shares.

Al companies have the registered office of Exchange nouse, Primrose Street, London, EC2A 2ZNY with the exception of
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited which 1s registered to 50 Lothian Road, ~estival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY

Related party transactions disclosures

Balances and ransactions between the Company and its subsidiares, wnich are related parties, nave been eliminated on
consolidation The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on dermanc

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22619

TR Property Finance Limited 13,255 13,270
New England Properties Limited (200 (20}
36,336 35869

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for eacn of the relevant
categaries specif.ed in 1AS 24 Reatec Party Disclosures is provided in the auditea part of the Directors Remuneration
Report on pages 63 and 65.

Directors’ transactions

Drectors' transactions nthe Company s shares are considerec to be a related party ‘ransaction due to the nature of therr
rao e as Directors

Movemen:s in Birectors' shareholcings are arsciosed within the Directors Remuneration Repor: onpage €5

23 Subsequent events

THere are no events that have ozcu-rec subsequen to the f nancia: year enc o repor:

TR Property Investrnent Trust
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures

Alternative Performance Measures are ndamerical
measures of the Company's current or historical
performance, financial position or cash flows, other
than the financiai measures defined or specfied in the
Financial Statements.

Tne measures defined below are considered to be
Alternative Performance Measures. They are viewed as
particularly relevant and are frequently quoted for closed
ended investment companies

Total Return

The NAV Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the
dividends in the assets of the Corrpany from the relevant
ex-dividend date. D'vidends are deemed to be reinvested
on the ex-dividend date as th's is the protocol used

by the Compary’s benchmark and other indices The
Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the
dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividerd date.

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 482 .43 456.5
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2023 (pence) 30513 278.0
Change 1n year (38.0%) (389%)
Im of dividends reinvested 2.5% 2.6%

Total Return for the year (35.5%)  (36.3%)

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 {pence) 417.97 392.50
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence} 492.43 456.50
Change in year 17.8% 16 3%
Impact of dividends reinvested 3.6% 36%

Total Return for the year 21.4% 19.9%

s

Ongoing Charges

The Ongoing Charges ratic has been calculated in
accordance with the guidance issued by the AIC as the
tota: of investment management fees and admun strative
expenses expressed as a percentage of the average

Net Asset Values throughout the year The defimition of
administrative expenses does include property retated
experses, the Ongoing Charges caiculation 1s shown
inclusive and exclus.ve of these expenses (o allow
comparison of the direct adm'n'strat've and managerment
charges witn tne majority of Investmert Trusts which do
not hold any direct property investments

Excluding
including Excluding Performance
Performance Performance Fees & Direct
Fees Fees Property Costs
£600 £'000 £000
Management
Fee (note 5} 6,240 6,240 6,240
Other
Administrative
expenses
{note 6) 1,705 1,705 1,705
Property
Costs 714 774
Less: Non
recurring
expenses B .
8,659 8.659 7.945
Average Net
Assets 1,184,462 1184462 1,184,462
Ongoing
Charge 2023 073% 0.73% 0.67%

Excluding
Including Including Performance
Year to Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2022 £000 £000 £000
Management
Fee (note 5) 31,140 6,651 6651
Other
Adrninistrative
expenses
{note &) 2,220 2,220 2220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less: Non
recurring
expenses
33,692 9,203 8,871
Average Net
Assets 1,536825 1,536825 1,536,825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 2 19% 0.60% 0.58%

TR Property Invesiment Trust



Net Debt

Net debt is the total value of loan notes, 10ans (including
notioral exposure to CHOs and TR3s) fess cash as a
proport’'on of et asset vaue

The net gearing nas been calculated as folows

Group Group

2023 pALYY

£000 £000

Loan notes 58,933 57,253
Loans 10,000 25000
CFD positions {notional exposure) 130,906 144642
Less: Cash {36071 (32,109)

Less: Cash collateral (included within

'Other debtors’ in Note 12) . {45099) (457133)
118669 159653

Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 1,562,739
Net gearing 12.3% 10.2%

The Ongomng Charges ratio provided nthe Company’s
Key Information Documrent is caiculated in e with
tne PRIIPs regl atiors which 1s different to the AIC
methodology above

Key Performance indicators

The Board assesses the performance of tne Manager
in meeting the Company's objective against a number
of Key Performrance Indicators, which are considered to
be Aternative Performance Measures Details of these
calculations are set out above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

Th'sis ca.cu ated by taking tne final dividend  inthe time

senes divided by the initial dividend - 1 the period, raised

to the power of 1 divided by the number of years' nthe

series

5 year period

a - 15.50p _
b =» o

Premium/(Discount)

The amount by wh'cn the market price of a share of an
investment trust company 1s higher or lower than the Net
Asset Value per share expressed as a percentage of the
NAY per share If tne share price is tower than the NAV per
share the shares are trading at a discount and if the share
price s higher than the NAV per share the snares are
tradirg at a premiam

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share (a) 305.13 492.43
Share price per share (b))  279.00 456.50
Premium or (Discount) (c= (b-a)/a (c) (8 6%) (7.3%)

AnnuJal Report & Accounts 2023

Ar average premsum or discoLt s calculated by takirg
the sum of each daily premium and discount for the
period under review, divided by the number of days in the
g'ver period.

2.0 Glossary of terms and
definitions AIFMD

The Alternative Furd Maragers Directive 1s ELropean
legis at'on which created a European wide framework
for regulating the managers of "alternative -nvestrrent
funds” (AlFs). It is designed to requiate any fund which
Is not a UCII S (Undertakings tor Collective Investment
in Trarsferab.e Securties) fund and which is maraged
or marketed in tne EU

AlC

The Association of Investrrert Companies, the
representative body for closed-erded investiment
companies.

Alternative Performance Measure

A frmancial measure of financial performance or financia
position other than a financial measure defined or
specified in the accounting statements.

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Reguiations a short, consumer friendly
Key Information Document s required setting oudt the
key features, risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP anc
s intended to assist irvestors to better understand the
Trust and make comparisons between Trusts

Tre document includes estimates of investment
performance under a namber of scenarios. These
calculations are prescribed by the reguiation and are
based purely on recent historical data It 1s important
for imvestors to rote that tnere 1S no judgement applied
and these do not in any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (KP{')

A KPLis a guantifilable measure that evaluates how
successful the trustis in meeting its objectives. The
Companry's KPls are discussed on pages 35 and 36.

MiFID

The Markets in Financial Insttuments Directive 1s the EU
iegislation tnat regulates firms who provide services 1o
clients Iinked to "financial ‘nstruments” (shares, bonds,
units o collective investment schemes and dervatives)
and the venues where those Instruments are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share

The vaiue of total assets less habilities (including
borrowings) div-ded by the number of shares inissue
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive ('AIFMD'}

In accordance with the AIFMD, informat.on in re.ation

to the Company's leverage and remuneration of the
Company’s AIFM, Columbia Threadreedle Investrment
Business L mited, 1srequred to be made available to
imvestors. Detailed regulatory disclosures including
tose on the AIFM's remureration policy are avallabe ar
tne Columbtia Threadneedie website or from Columbia
Threadneedle on request The numerica remuneration
disclosures inreiation to the AIFM's first relevant
accounting period wi | be made available in due course

Leverage

Under the AIFM Directive, 1t is necessary for AlFs
to disclose their leverage in accordance with
prescribed calculations,

Althougt feverage 1s ofteri used as anotner term for
gearing, under the AIFMD leverage 1s specifically defined
Two types of leverage calculations are defined, the gross
and commitment methods Trese methods summarly
express leverage as a ratio of the exposure of the AlF
against its net asset valle 'Exposdre’ typ cally ncludes
debt, the value of ary physica: properties subject to
mortgage, non-stering currency, equity or currency
hedging at absolute notional vaiues (even those Feid
purey for risk reduction purposes, such as forward
foreigr exchange contracts neld for currency nedging)
ard dervative exposure (converted into the equiva ent
underiying positions). The commitment method nets
off dervative mstruments, whi e the gross metnod
aggregates them.

The table below sets out the current maximur permitted
limit and the actua: level of leverage for the Company as
at 31 March 2023

Gross  Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual T38% 130%

The everage im'ts are set by the AIFM and appraved
by the Beard ard are inlire with the limits set oLt intne
Company's Articies of Association

Tnus should 1ot be confused with tne gearirg set out
-rthe Fnarciai Hgn ights which 's calculated order
tne trad 1 onal method set out Dy the Associat’'on of
Investmert Comrpan’es Thne AIFM s also required to
compiy with tne gearirg parameters set by the Board .~
relat on 1o borrowirgs

1c8

TR Progerty Investmert Trust
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice is hereby given that the Arnual General Meeting
of TR Property Investment Trust plc (the Company’) will
be held at the Royal Automobice Club, 89/91 Pall Mali
London SW1Y 5HS on Thursday 20 Suly 2023 at 2 30 pm
for the purpose of transacting the foliowing business:

To consider and, °f thought “it, pass the falowing
Resolutions, of which Resolut'ors 110 12 will be
proposed as Ordinary Resolutions a1d Resolut.ons 13
and 14 shall be proposed as Special Resolutions:

1 Toreceive the Report of the Directors and the
Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023,

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Poticy.

[

3 Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report
(excluding the Drrectors’ Remuneration Palicy) for
the year ended 31 March 2023,

4  Todeclare a firal dividend of 9.85p per Grdmary
share.

5 Tore-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director

6 Tore-elect Saran-Jane Curtis as a Director

7 Tore-elect Tim Git banks as a Director.

8 Tore-elect Buscla Sodeinde as a Director

9 Tore-elect Andrew Vaughan as a D rector.

10 Tore-appoirt KPMG LLP {the ‘Auditor’) as ALditor

of the Comrpany to noid office Lntil the corciLsion of

the next AnnLal General Meetirg of tne Compary

1T Toadthorse the Directors to determmine the
remyeneration of the Audtor.

4
[s9)

Special business

Ordinary resolution

12 THAT, ir substitution for all such existing authontes,
the Directors be gererally and unconditionally
authorised pursuant to and in accordance w'th
Sectior 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act)
to exercise al' the powers of the Company 10 a'lot
shares in the Company and to grant rignts to
subscribe for, or to convert ary security into, snares
inthe Company up to a nomiral value of £26,181 455
{being approximately 33% of the total ssued share
cap.ial of the Company as at the latest practicable
date pricr to publicat.on of this Not'ce) provided that
this authority sha'l expire at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2024
(or, if earlier, at the close of business on 19 October
2024), save that the Company shall be entitled to
make offers or agreemerts before the expiry of this
authorty which wou.d or might require shares to
be a'lotted or nghts to be granted after such expiry
and the Directars shall be entitled to aliot shares
and grant rights pursuant to ary suck offers o
agreements as if this authonty had not expired

Special resolutions

13 THAT, ir substitution for all such existing author:t:es
and subject 10 the passing of Resolution 12 set
out above, the Directors be empowered pursuant
to Sect'an 570 a~d Section 573 of the Act to ailet
eguity securities {as defined i~ Sectior 560 of the
act) for cash purstart to the authority corferred by
Resolutior 12 abave and/or to seli shares hield by the
Compary as treasury snares for cast as if Sect'on
561 of the Act did nat apply to ary such al oti~ent or
sale, provided that tus power shal: be mited:

(a) tothe allotment of equity secunties and sa e
of treasury shares for cash in cornection witn
an offer of, or "witat’'on to apply for, equity
secdrit’es

(i1 tosharerclders ™1 proporticn (as nearly
as may be practicable) to therr existirg
holdings; and

{1i} to holders of other equ ty securites as
required by the nights of those securtes, ¢r
as the Board otherw se cors:ders recessary,

ard sotnat tne Board may mpose any L mits or
restrictions ard make any arrangemerts whch it
cons ders necessary or appropr ate to dea: with
treasury snares, fractional entiterents record
dates, egal, regu atory or practical probiems in, or
under t1e aws of ary terntory or ary cther matter
ard

TR Property Investment ~rust




{b) 1n the case of the authority granted under
Resolut.on 12 and/or in1ne case of any sale
of treasury shares for cash, to the a.lotment
{otherwise than under paragraph (1) above)
of equity securiies or sale of treasury stares
up to a normiral amount of £3,966,887 {being
approximate y 5% of the total issued share
caplita of the Company as at the atest
practicable date prior to pablication of the notice
of meeting),

the power given by this resolution snall expre upon
the expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 12
above, save that the Company snall be entitied to
make offers or agreemerts before expiry of such
power whch would or might require equity securities
to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors
snall be entitled to aillot equity secur'ties pursuant

to any such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred herebyy had not expired

14 THAT the Company be ard 1s hereby generally and
uncond ticna.ly authorised \n accordance with
Section 707 of the Act to make one or more market
purchases (withir the meaning of Sect.on 693(4) of
tre Act) of Ordinary snares of 25p each in the capita!
of the Company on such terms and in such manner
as tne Directors may from time to time determine
provided that

(8) the max:mum number of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be purchased shall be 14 99% of
ine Company's Ord.nary shares in 1ssue at the
date of the Anrual General Meeting {(equivalent
to 47,570911 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior to
pubication of this Notice),

(b tne maximurm price {exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall not
be mare than the higher of:

() 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken
from the London Stock Exchange Daity
Cfficial List for the five busiress days
immediatery preceding the date on which
the Company agrees to buy the shares
concerned; and

(11} the higher of the price of the last
independent trade and the highest current
independent bid for an Orderary share in the
Company on the trading venue where the
purchaseis carried out at the relevant time,
and

Arnual Report & Accounts 2023

(c) the mimmurm price {exc usive of experses) whicn
may be paid for an Ordinary share sha:l be 25p
being the nominal value per Ordinary share,

the authenity hereby conferred shatl expire at

the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company in 2024 (or, f earler, at the close

of business on 19 October 2024} save that the
Company shall be ertitled to enter intc a contrac
to purchase Ordinary shares which well, or may, be
completed or execlted wholly or part'y after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ord:nary shares purstant to such contract as if the
power conferred hereby tad not expired

) Lattan

gy Order of the Board
Foraraor benafof
Co.ar-bia Threadneoedie
[wvestmert Bosess L mited
Corrpany secretary

12 J.re 2023

Registered Office

Company registered in England and Wales
Company tumber 34492

13 Woodstock Street

London W1{ ZAG

117

MIIAIBAN

uoda) obajens

ERNVIET ]

SIUIIFILLS B1ueUI4

2INS0{2SIP AW 41 DUE AIRSS0In

[ 74
=4
&
2
g
=3
&
[
5
3
o
2
3
&
=
©
3



Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@celumbiathreadneedle.com.

Shareholders who are not able or do not wish to atterd
the meeting in person will De abie to watch a live webcast
of the meeting. This wi'i include the formal busiress of
the meeting, the Manager's presentationr and questions
and answers. The webcast will not enable shareholders to
participate i1 the meeting or to vole. However, shareholders
wil; be nvited to submit questions through cur website,
by 12 00 noon on Tuesday 18 Ju'y 2023. Questiors

may be sent to the following email address. trpitagmig:
columblathreadneedie com. Questions of a very simiiar
rature may be grouped together to ensure the orderly
rurning of tne AGM

1 Amemberentitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice is entitled to appomnt one
or more prox es 10 exercige al' or any of the rghis of the
memper to attend, speak and vate nhis or her place

Shareholders are strongly encouraged to submi therr
proxy vote m advance of the meeting and to appo nt
the Chairman of the meeting as their proxy, rather than
any other named person who may not be permitted to
attend the AGM in tne evert of restrictions or Imits on
attendance. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company. To appent maore thar one proxy, tne proxy
form snould be photocopied and the name of the proxy
10 be appointed indicated or each proxy form together
with the number of shares that such proxy s appointed
in respect of. Completion and submission of a proxy
instruction wi! not preclude a member from attending
ard voting in person at the AGM [subject ta any
restnictians on physica’ atterdance)

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument
appointing a proxy must be returned by post by courier
or by hand tothe Company’s Registrars, Cor-putersnare
Irvestor Services PLC, Tre Pavilions, Bridgwater Road,
Bristo, B899 67V, or a'ternatively, by going to www
eproxyappointmenrt corr and foiowing the instractions
prov.ded All proxies must be appointed by no later than
48 nours before the time of the AGM I the case of
jort noders, where more than one of the jo'nt ro.ders
purports to appoint a proxy, only the appoirtment
sdbmtted by the most senior Folder will be accepted
Senority 18 determined by the order m wHicn the nares
of the jort holders appear in tne Company s Register of
Members in respect of the jo rt haldirg {the frst naTed
beng deemed the most senor)

{r order to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or
ary adjoured meeting (ard also for the purpose of
calcu ating how mary votes a persor may cast) a

™o

[~

persor must have his or her name entered on the
Companry's Register of Members by 2.30 pmor 18
July 2623 {ar 6 00 pir on the date two days before
any adjourned meeting). Changes to ertries on

the Register of Members after th's e shall be
disregarded \n determining the rights of any person to
attend or vote at the nreeting.

Voting wll be conducted or a poll at the meeting. On
a poll vote every sharenolder will through the'r proxy
have crevote for every Ordinary share of which he or
sheistre holder

Shareho ders should note that s possible that,
pursuant to reguests made by sharena.ders of the
Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company
may be required to publist ¢n a website a statement
settng oot any matter relating to. {) the audit of the
Company's accounts (Inciuding the Auditors Report
and the conduct of the acd't) that are to be iaid before
the AGM or {i) any crocamstance connecied with

ar auditor of the Company ceasing to hoid office
since the previols meeting at which anrual accounts
and reports were laid in accordance with Section

437 of the Act The Company may not requ re the
shareho ders requesting ary such website publication
10 pay s expenses in complyng with Sections 527 ar
528 of the of the Act. Where the Company is required
to place a staterrent o a website urder Section

527 of the Act, it must forward the staterrent to

the Copany's auditor not later than the tme wher

1 makes the statement available on t1e webste

The bus ness which may be deait with at the AGM
neludes any staterrent that the Company has beer
required Jnder Secticn 527 of the Act to publish or a
webs'te

Any corporation whicnis a member ¢f the Campany
canappoint one or rrore corporate representat'ves
who may exercise on its behafal of its powers as a
member provided trat they do not do so in rexation 1o
the same shares

Tre nght to appoint a proxy does not apply 1o persons
whaose snares are ~eid on their behalf by another
person ard who Fave been nominated to receive
cormmunication fror the Company 11 agcordarce
with Section 146 of the Act { Nonmnated Persaons’.
Nominated Persons may nave a nght urder ar
agresment with tne req'stered srareholder who nolds
shares or tneir behalf to be appointed (orto have
someore else appointed) as a proxy. Alternatvely, f
normnated persons do not have such ar ght, or do
rotw s to exercise L they may ~ave a nght under
SLCN ar agreerent to give Mstruchions to the persen
holding tne shares as to the exercise of vot'ng rgrts.

TR Proparty Investmert 'rust



6 CREST memrbers who wisn to appoirt a proxy
or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service mav do so forthe AGM 1o
be held on 20 July 2023 and any adjournmert(s)
thereof by using tne procedures described inthe
CREST Manual. CREST perscnal rmembers or other
CREST sponsored members, and these CREST
members who have appointed a voting service
provider should refer to their CREST sponsors or
vatirg service provider(s), who will be able to take
the approprate action on their behalf In order for a
proxy appomtrent or instruction made by mears of
CREST to be va id, tre appropriate CREST message
{a 'CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be property
authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
Ireland Lim'ted's specifications and must conta’n
the nformation requred for such instructions, as
described in the CREST Manual. The message must
be transmitted so as tc be recerved by the Company's
agent, Corrputershare Investor Services PLC (CREST
Participant ID 3RAS0), no later tnhan 48 hours before
the time appointed for the meeting. For this purpose,
the timre of receipt will be taken to be tne time (as
determined by the time stamp applied t¢ e Mmessage
by the CREST Appicatior Host) from which tne
Company's ageni s abie 10 retreve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and where applicable, ther
CREST sponsar or voting service provider should
note that Eurociear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make ava.lable spec al procedures in CREST for any
particular messages

Normai system tirings and limitations well therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It s the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take {or, If the CREST member
Is a CREST persora! member or sponsored member
or has appointed a voting service provider, tc procure
that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

to ensure that a message Is transmitted by means
of the CREST systern by any particular time. in this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsor or voting service provider

are referred in particular to those sections of the
CREST Manual congerning practical limitations of
tne CREST system and timings The Comrpany may
treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Irstruction inthe
circurnstances set out in Reguiation 35(5){a) of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2007,

7 Any member attending the meeting {subject to any
restrictions in place at the t me of the meetirg) has
the ngnt to ask questions The Company must cause
to be answered any such guesticn relating to the
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business beirng dealt with at the meeting but ne such
answer need be given if: (a) to do s woud interfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve
the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the
answer has already beer given on a websie in the form
of an answer to a question; or () it ‘s undesirable n

the Interests of the Company or the good order of the
meetirg that the question be answered. Questons of a
very similar rature may be grouped together to ensure
the orderly runaing of the AGM.

Unacceptable behavicur on the part of any snareholder
attending the AGM wil not be wolerated and the
Chairman has the right to deal wth sLch benaviour as
appropriste.

Under sectior 338 and section 338A of the Act,
members meeting the thresho'd requirerments in those
sections nave the night torequire the Company (1) 1o
give, to members of the Company ent'tled to receive
notice of the meeting, notice of a resolLt.on wnich

may proper y be moved and is ntended to be moved
at the meeting ard/ar (1) to include nthe business to
be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a
proposed resolut.on) which imay be properly included in
the business A resoiLtion may properly be moved or a
matter may properly be inc:uded In the business unless
{a) (Intre case of a resolution only) it would, 'f passed,
be ineffective (whether by reason of Inconsistency
witn any enactmenrt or the company's constitation or
otherwise}, (b) it1s defamatory of any person, or {¢) it

I1s frivolocus or vexatious. Such a request may bein

hard copy form or in electroric form, must identify the
resolution of which notice s (o be given or the matter
to be included in the business, must be authorised by
the person or persons making it, mLst be received by
the company not later than six clear weeks before the
meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be ncluded
inthe business only) must be accompanied by a
statement setting out the grounds for the request

As at 30 May 2023 (being the 1atest practicabie day prior
1o publication of this Notice), the issued share capitat

of the Company was 317,350,880 Ordinary shares of
25p each and no ordinary shares were held ir treasury.
Therefore, the total number of voting rights in the
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317,350 980.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, the Nomination
Committee ard the Directors’ Letters of Appointment
wili De available for inspection for at ieast 15 minutes
prior to and during the Company's AGM

You may not use any electronic address provided
either ir this Notice or ary related documents to
communicate for ary purposes other than those
expressly stated
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Company rmay process personal data of attendees

at the Annual General Meeting Tris may include
webcasts, photos, recording and audio and video lirks,
as wel as other forms of persoral data. The Company
sha. process such personal data in accordance witn its
pt vacy policy, which car fourd at www trpreperty.comy
lega..

TR Property Investrment Trust



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of the Directars’ Remuneration Pglicy, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
declaration of the final dividerd

The vote to approve the Remuneration Policy must
be put to sharenoders every three years. Fhe vole
10 approve the Remuneration Heport 1s advisory
only and wilt not require the Company to alter ary
arra~gements deta'led in the report shouid the
resclot'on not be passed

The Board is proposing a final dividerd for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of @ 85p per Ordnary share.

If approved at the AGM, the Company will pay the
div'dend on 1 August 2023 to those shareholders on
the Company's Register of Merrbers at the close

of bus' ness on 30 June 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resolutians deal with the re-glect on of Kate
RBolsover, Sarab-Jane Curtis, Tim Gillbanks, Busaola
Sodeinde and Andrew Vadghan In accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, a:l Directors
retire on an anrual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election, with the
exception of David Watson who will retire at the
conclusion af the AGM.

A performance evaluation has been completed and
the Board has determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstrates therr
commitment to their rele

Treir iographical details, which are set out on pages
44 and 45, demorstrate that the Board has the
appropriate balance of sk:lls, experierce,
independence and knowledge to lead tne Company.
Accordingly, the Board unanimously recommends
their re-eiection

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

These deal witn the reappomtment of the Auditor,
KPMG LLP and the authorisatior for the Directors to
determine the'r remuneration.

Annual Report & Accodnts 7023

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

Tne Board considers it appropriate that an acthonty
be granted to aliot shares nthe capita: of the
Company up to a maximum nominal amount of
£26,181,445 15 stated in the resoiuton (representirg
approximately one third of the Company’s issued
share caprtal as at 30 May 2023, being the latest
practical date prior to pubiication of this Not.ce of
the meetirg) As at 30 May 2023 the Company does
not hoid any shares in treasury.

I he Directors have no presert intention of exercising
tnis aLthonty and would ony expect to use the
authority if shares could be 1issued at. orat a
premium to, the Net Asset Vaiue per share

This authority will expire at the earl:er of the

conc usion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be neld in 2024 and close of busmess
on 19 Cctober 2024,

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

Tnis Resolution would give the Directors the
authority to al ot shares (or sell any shares wh:ch

the Company elects to hold 'n treasury) for cash
without first offering them to existing sharetolders in
proportion to ther existing shareholdings.

This authority would be limited to allotments

or sales in connection with pre-emptive offers

and offers to holders of otner equity secunities if
required by the rignts of these shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary, Or otnerwise
upto an aggregate namina amount of £3,966 887,
This aggregate nomiral amourt represents 5% of
the total iss.ed share cap'ta' of the Company as

at 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior

to publication of this Notice If the powers sought
by Resclution 13 are used in relation to a non-pre-
emptive offer, the Directors confirm their intention
to follow the sharenclder protections in paragraph 1
of Part 2B of the Pre-emption Group's Staterment of
Principles published in November 2022

This authority will expire at the earlier of the
conciusion of the Annual Genera- Meeting of the
Company to be hetd in 2074 and close of business
on 19 October 2024
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Qrdinary
shares

At the AGM held in 2022, a special resolutior was
passed wh'ch gave the Directors authority, until the
conclusion of the AGM in 2023, to rmake market
purchases of the Company’s own 1ssued shares up to
a maxmum of 14 .99% of the ‘'ssued share capital

The Board is proposing that tney should be given
renewed authority to purchase the Comrpany's
Ord'nary shares i1 the market. It belleves that to make
such purchases in the market at appropriate times and
prices 1s a suitable method of enhancing shareholder
value. The Company would, with'n guidel res set

from time to time by the Board, make either a single
purchase or a series of purchases, when market
conditions are suitable, with the ainr of maximising the
benefits to sharenoiders.

Where purchases are made at prices below the
preval ing Net Asset Value per share this wll ennance
the Net Asset Value for the remaining shareholders
Tnerefore purchases would anly be made at prices
below Net Asset Value Tire Board considers that -t
will be most advantageols to shiareholders for the
Company to be able to make such purchases as and
when it considers the timing 1o be favoudrable and
therefore does not propose to set a t metable for
making ary such purchases,

The Companies {Acqu'sition of Cwr Shares) (Treasury
Snares) Regulations 2003 enab-e companies in the
Urited Kingdom ta hold in treasury any of ther own
srares they have purchased with a view to poss ble
resa.e at a future date, rather than cancelling them,

If the Company does re-purchase any of its shares,
tne Directors do not currently intend to ho.d any of

the shares re-purchased in treasury. The shares so
re-purchased wili continue to be carcelled

The L sting Rues of the Financia! Conduct Autranty
It the maximun price (exciusive of expenses) which
may be paid for any sach skare. It shal not be more
thar the higher of:

(1) 105% of tne average of the middle market
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken from
the London Stock Exchange Daily Officia L'st for
the five business days mmediate y preceding the
date on whicn tre Company agrees to buy shares
corcerned ard

{n) theh.gher of the price of the ast ndependent
trade and the 'mghest current .ndependent bid for
an Ordmary snare in the Company on the trading
venue waere the purchase is carried out

The minimurr price to be paid wiil be 25p per
Ordinary snare (being the nominal value). The Listing
Rules also Imit a hsted company to purchases of
shares represerting up to 15% of its issued share
capitalin the market pursuant 1 a general authority
sucn as this Forthis reason, the Compary is limiting
‘ts authar ty to make such purcnases to 14 99% of
the Compary's Ordinary shares in issue at the date
of the AGM tmis 15 equ'va'ent to 47,570,811 Ordinary
shares of 256p each {rominal value £11,892,727)

at 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date grior to
publication this Natice The authority wili last unt!!
the concicsion of tne Annual Generai Meeting of the
Company to be held n 2024 or, if earlier, at the c.ose
of busimess on 19 October 2024

Recommendation

Tre Board believes that the resclutions contained
1 1h's Notice of Annua General Meetirg are n the
best interests of the Company and snareholders as
awnocle ardrecomimends that you vote n favour
of theim as your Directors interd to do inrespect of
their own beneficiai sharehold ngs

TR Froperty irvestmert Trust
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Directors and other information

Directors

D Watson (Chairman}
# Bolsover

S-JCurts

T Giillbanks

3 Soceinde
A\Vaughan

Registered office
13 Woodstock Street

London W1C 2AG

Registered number

Registered as an investment company in
England and Wales No 84482

AlIFM and Company Secretary
Calumbia Threadneedle Investnert

Business Lim.tec
Exchange House
Primrose Street
London ECZA 2NY

Please cortact Jonathan Latter for
Company Secreanzl and administrat ve

matters

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Capita LLP authonsed
and reguiated by the Finarcial Conduct

Authority

13 Woodstock Street
London W1C 2AG
Telephone 02035306372

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations

JLEmot ACA

Deputy Fund Manager
A Lhonnear

Direct Property Manager
G P Gay MRICS

aic

The Association of

trvestment Companies

Registrar

Comnutershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavil'ans, Bridgwater Road

gristo BS99 627

Telephone: 6370707 1355

Shareholders who hold their shares in
certificated farm can check ther holdings
with the Registrar Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via www investorcentre co.uk.
Please note that to gain access to your detalls
on the Computershare ste you wil need the
hoider reference numzer stated or the ton eft
hana correr of your share certificate

Auditor

KPMG LLP

15 Canada Square
Loendon E14 SGL

Stockbrokers

Pannure Gordor (JK; Lirmited
One New Charge

Lordon EC4MQAF

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Lim ted
150 Cheapsice
Lordon EC2V 6ET

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
Ore 3unhinl Row

| andon ECTY 8YY

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BNP Paribas Securites Services
10 Harewood Avenue

Lonaon NWT 6AA

Website
e ITproperty.com

Tax advisers
PricewatertouseCoopers LL?
Central Square South Orcharc Street
Newrasteupon “yne NET 347
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General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The half vear resilts are announced in iate Noverrber

The ful year results are annourced in early June.

Annual general meeting
The AGM s held inLondonin Ju y.

Dividend payment dates

Cividends are Lsually pa d on the Crdimary shares
as follows:

Interi™. January
Fina:August

Dividend payments

Dividerds can be paid to shareholders by reans of
BACS (Barkers' Automated Clearing Services); mandate
forms for ts purpose are ava'lable from the Registrar
Ater~atively, snareholders can write 1o the Registrar
(the address 's given on page 114 of this report) to give
their nstructions, these must include the bank account
nurber, the bank account title and the sort code of the
barkto whicn payments are to be made.

Dividend re-investment plan ('DRIP")

TR Property Investment Trust plc offers sharenclders the
opportunity to purchase furtner shares in the Company
through the DRIP Please note that following Brexit
sharenolders in the European Economic Area ('EEA)

are no longer able to part cipate in the DRIFE. DRIP forms
may be ocbtained frem Computershare Investor Services
PLC through their secure website www investorcentre
co.uk, oron 0376 707 1694 Charges apply, dealing
commission of 0.75% {subject to a min‘'mum of £2.50).
Government stamp duty of 0 5% also appl'es

Share price listings

The estirrated Net Asset Valde and market price of the
Company's Ordinary shares, ag we'l as the d-scount/
premium, are published dally in The Financia! Times.
They can alse be found on the Company's website at
www.trproperty.com

Share price information
ISIN GBODOSUGA097

SEDOL 0906409

Bloomberg

TRY LN KeLters

TRY L

Datastream TRY

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Benchmark

Deta'ls of the benchrark are given in the Strategic
Report on page 27 of this Annual Report and Accounts.
Tre benchmark index is pub ished daily and can

be fourd on Bloomberg;

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Eunope Capped Net Total
Return Index 11 sterlirg
Bloomberg. TRORAG Index

Disability Act

Coples of this Report and Acceunts ard other
documents issued by the Compary are availlable from
the Company Secretary. If needed copies car be made
available m a vanety of formats, including Brai e, audio
tape or.arger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, wnich has instalied textphores to allow
speech and heanng impaed people who have tneir own
textphone to contact them directly, witnout the reed
for an ntermediate operator, by dialling 0870 702 C3C5
Specially trained operaters are available during normal
business hours to answer gueries via this service
Asternatvely, If you prefertc go through a 'typetalk’
operator {provided by the Roya Naticnal Institute for
Deaf People) vou should dial 18007 followed by the
number you wisn to dial
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Where not fication has been provided ir advance,
the Company will arrange for copies of sharehoider
communications to be provided to the gperators of
nominee accounts. Mominge investors may attend
genera meetings ard speak at meetings when
invted to do so by the Crairman

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of ali or part of a sharehoider's
holding of Crdinary shares, the impact on the
shareholder's capitai gains tax base cost of the
conversion 1o S1g-ma shares n 2007 ard the
redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 should
he considered

In respect of the conversion tc Sigma in 2007,
agreement was reached with HM Revenue &
customs (HMRC') to base the apportionment of
e capital gains tax base cost on the propaortion
of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
snareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007,

Tnerefore if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20%
of their existirg Ordinary shares :nto Sigma shares
on 25 July 2007 the capital gans tax base cost of
ine rew Sigma shares acquired would be equal to
20% of the oi.ginal capital gains tax hase cost of
the Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion
The base cost of therr remaining ho ding of Ordinary
shares would tnen be 80% of the original capitai
ga:~s tax base cost of their Ordinary shares reld
pre-conversian

Az part of the re-des'gration of the S gma shares
nto Ordinary shares in December 2012, a further
shareholder’s agreement was reached with HMRC
that a shareholders capital gains tax base cost n
tve 1 new Ordirary snares should be eguivalent

to their capita ga'rs base cost nthe pre-existing
Sigma shares (1 e their capital gairs base cost urder
tne existirg agreemient If appicable)

If m doubst as to the conseqguerces of tn's agreeTent

with HMRC, sharebolders snould consult w th therr
owr professional advisors

vy
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

The Company's shares are listed and traded on the
London Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
shares trough their stockbroker, bank or other financ a;
intermediary

Holding shares in certificated form

Investors may nold thelr investment in cert ficated form
Curregistrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
whic™ enab-es investors to buy and sell shares quick'y
and easily oniine w'thout a broker or the need ta open a
trading account. Alternative'y the Investor Centre allows
nvestors to manage portfolios quickly and securely,
update detaiis and view balances without annual
charges. Further details are available by contacting
Computershare on 037C 707 1355 ar visit

www irvestorcentre co uk,

Trne Company offers sharenclders the opportunity

to purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividerd Re-investmert Plan (DRIFY) through the
registrar, Computershare Sr-arenolders car: obtain
further information on the DRIP through their secure
website www nvestarcentre co uk, or by phenng 0370
707 1694 Charges do apply. Please note that to gain
access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Corrputershare site you will need tne holder reference
number stated or: the top left hand corner of your share
cert ficate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

Arumber of banks and wealth managermrent
orgarisations provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs
threugh wrich UK clients can invest in the Company.

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge deal g
and other fees for operating the accounts, and investors
showid read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that tne charges best suit their
planned investment profiie Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary hetween provider and product.
Where dealing charges apply, ir some cases these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as
afiat charge. The optimum way to hold the shares wil- be
differert for each \nvestor depending upon the frequency
and s'ze of investments 1o he made.

Deta:is are given below of two provider s offering
shares in the Company, but there are many other oplions

Annual Report & Accounts 20232

Interactive investor ('ii')

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of
self-select investment plans, ncluding tax-advantaged
ISAs and SIPPs (Self-Invested Persanal Pension), and
Trading Accounts. For mere nformation, interactive
investor can be contacted on 0345 607 6001, or by
vISIING www.il.co.uk/

Interactive nvestor offer investors in the Campany and
other investment trusts a Iree on.ine shareholder voting
and informatior service that enables investors to receive
shareholder commrunications and, if they wisn, to vote on
the shareholdings neld In their account

The Company is also on the imteractive super 60 rated list,

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited ('CT’)}
Columbia Threadneedie offer a number of savings

pians for aduits and childrer, from genera! investment
accourts to a range of mvestrent ISAs and a Child
Trust Fund Eacn product gves vod the abinty to

Invest in arange of mvestiment trust compan-es. For
rore informat 'cn see inside the back cover Columbia
Trreadneedle can be contacted on 0800 136 42C, or visit
clinvest oo uk.

Please remember that the value of your mvestments and
any mcome from them may go down as well as up. Past
perfarmance is not a guide to future performance. You
may not get back the amount that you invest. If you are 1
ary doubt as to the suitab :ty of a plan or any investiment
available within a plan, please take professional advice

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS') BNP Paribas

Fo'lowing the acgu.sition of Alliance Trust Savings by
interactive investor, ATS sef-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive investor platform on
14th October 2019

In 2012 BNP Paribas c'osed down the part of their
business that operated Savings Schemes and I1SAs
Investors were given the choice of transferring their
schemes to Alliance Trust Savirgs (ATS) ortoa
provider of their own choice, or to close their accounts
and sell the holdirgs.

If investors did not respond to thesetters from BNP
Paribas, their accounts were transferred to ATS

Following the acqguisition of Alliance Trust Savings by
interactive nvestor ATS self directed accounts were
transterred to the interactive investor platform on

14 October 2019
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler rcom scams

Shareholders in a namber of Investment Trusts have
been approached as part of a snare fraud where they
are informed of an apportunity to sell their shares as the
companry is subject te a takeover bid. This is not true and
Is an atterrpt to defraud shareholders The share fraud
a'so seeks payment of a comrmission’ by sharehoiders
to tre part.es carrying out the fraud

Shareholders shouid remain alert to this type of scam
and treat with suspicior any contact by telephone
offering ar attractive investment opportunity, such

as a premium price for your snares, or an attempt to
convince you that payment s reguired in order to release
a settlernent for your shares These frauds may also
offer to sell your shares in companies which have little or
no value ar may offer you bonus shares. These so ca led
‘boiler room’ scams can a'so involve an attempt to obtan
your personai and/or banking information with which to
commitidentity fraud

The caller may be frendly and reassuring or they may
take a more urgent tone, encouraging you to act gu'ckly
ctnerwise yoL could lose money or miss out on a dea |

If you have been contacted by an unauthor'sed firm
regardirg your shares the FCA would like to hear
from you You can repart an anautharised firm using
the FCA helpline on 0800 111 6768 01 by visiting their
website whicn also bas other useful nformation,

at www. fca.crgouk

If you receive ary unsoicited investment advice
make sure you get the correct name of the person
and organisation If the calls persist. hang up If you
deal w:tn an unauthor.sed firm, you wilt not be eligible
to recewve payment under the Financial Services
Compensat.on Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager wou'd

never make unschicited telephone calls of suck a nature
to skharena ders
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your |SA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing ISAs 1o us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum cr £25 a month.
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25a month

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust {where the child is
noted as the beneficial owner) or kept In your name if you wish
o retain control over the investment. Investments can he made
froma £100 lump surn or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Anrual management charges anc other charges apply according to the
type of plan
Annual account charge
a0 VAl
LAN+HYAT
{25 WAl
You can pay the annual charge from yvour accourt. or by drect denit
linaddition to any annual subscrnipt on limits)

Dealing charges

£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for zez.s placed through the online
Columaia Threadneedle Invesior Poria) for 1SA; GIA/LISASJIA
and JISA. There are no deaing chargesona CTF.

Dealing charges anoly when skares are tought or sold tut not
on the reinvestment of cividencs or the nvestment of monthrly
direct debits. Government stamp duty of J.5% aisc applies on
the purchase of shares (where appiicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you
may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For requlatory purposes, piease ensure youd have
reaathe Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related 1o the product
yod are applyving for, anc the relevart Key Irformatior Docunments
(KIDs} for the investment trusts you want to ‘nvest into.

How to invest

To open a new Columbia Threadneedie Investments piar, appiy
online at ctinvest.co.uk

Onlire applications are not avalleb e if you are tTransferring

an existing plan with another prov der to Columbia Threadneedle
Investments, or fyod are applying fora new plan inmore than are
name but paper applicalions are evailable at ctinvest co.uk”
documents or by cortacting Columbia Threadneed-e Investments
New customers

Call 0800 136420* - .- - - Ukl
Emali:  invest@columbiathreadneedle.com

Existing plan holders

Cail: 03456003030 - w0 L s
Emallr  nvestorenguiriesiicolumbiattreadneed € com

Bypost:  Columbna Threadneedie Managerment Limted, -+ o

- be e

investor enguiries{:columbiathreadneed|e com

S,

YouCan 215G nvest i the Company through on e dea ng platforms for private investors tha: offer share dea g ard ISAs Curipanes ne oce Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JISA accounts are opened m the child's name and they have access 1o the money at age 18

= Cals may be recorded or monitored for frain ng and qualrty purposes

To fircdout ~iore, v 1 ctinvest.co.uk

03456003030, 2 00am - & 00pr- weekdays, ca ls may be recorded or o ored o ra ning and quanty puposoes

€ 2023 Coumbra Threadneodic Investimen:s Columbia Threadneos o Inveshmen s § the giola Drand name

of the o ur g anu [hreacneso e group of coripanes Fnane & promot ong areissued for market ng and

nfarmat o poses by Colurth a Threadreed e Managerment . mited, aotho sed andregulaled nrbe UK Dy

e Fmanca Conducs Authorsy 195000006: 721 LK
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